
TriTri--County ServicesCounty Services  

Board of Trustees Board of Trustees   

MeetingMeeting  

  
July 24, 2014July 24, 2014  















 

 

 
 

Executive Director’s Report 

July 24, 2014 

Announcements 

 

 The next regularly scheduled Board meeting is August 28th.  We expect this will be a 
large agenda like July so it is likely that committee meetings will start early.  
 

 I wanted to remind each of you that the annual Burnham Classic will be at the Magnolia 
Ridge Country Club in Liberty on August 1-3rd.  Over the last 24 years, the Burnham 
Classic has raised over $446,000 for Tri-County Services and our consumers.  Several of 
us will attend on Friday night and the Board is welcome to join us.  Big thanks to Mr. 
McKnight and his wife, Mable, for their years of support of the tournament.   

 

 Thank you for your attendance at the annual Board and Management Team Strategic 
Planning meeting last Saturday.  I know it is difficult to give up a day on the weekend, 
but the staff and I certainly appreciate your feedback on FY 2015 activities.  

 

 Also, please be aware that the ETBHN Board Strategic Planning meeting has been 
tentatively scheduled for October 15-16th at the Moody Gardens Hotel in Galveston.  I 
will provide you with additional details as soon as the information is confirmed.   
 

 As you are aware, we have a Board agenda item to accept the funding from the 
Montgomery County United Way for Substance Abuse Treatment and the Psychiatric 
Emergency Treatment Center (PETC).  However, this year, IDD Therapeutic Summer 
Camp funding was not approved.  I have attached a letter to this update explaining this 
decision.   

 

 We received word on Tuesday that we would have the Budget Hearing for Montgomery 
County on Tuesday, July 29th.   
 

 I wanted to let you know that Mr. Paschal completed his required Board training on 
Monday, July 14th and is ready to take his Oath of Office at the August Board meeting.  



 

 

Department of State Health Services (DSHS) 

 

 Over the last few weeks, we have attended a couple of County Crisis and Criminal 
Justice Meetings to address some discontent expressed by the local jail staff in 
Montgomery County and from criminal justice staff in Liberty County.    
 
On Wednesday, July 16th, Mr. McKnight, several Tri-County staff and I attended a 
meeting called by Judge Thomas Chambers in Liberty County.  Law enforcement groups, 
including local police officers, sheriff officers and constables were at the meeting.  Judge 
Chambers also invited law enforcement and judicial staff from Harris County who are 
involved with mental health commitments.  As the two systems were compared by the 
staff present, it became clear that Harris County’s system is both more sophisticated 
and better funded.  After a long discussion, I suggested that we form an executive 
workgroup to address Liberty County system issues associated with the mental health 
commitment process.  Judge Chambers will lead the group and I will plan to participate.  
As would be clear to all of you, our system is not going to mimic Harris County’s system 
in most ways.   However, we are hopeful that we can resolve some of the issues 
associated with commitments and other system issues with this workgroup.  
 
On Tuesday, July 22nd, Catherine Prestigiovanni, Lisa Bradt and I met with the 
Montgomery County Jail Administrator, Captain David Moore.  We discussed issues in 
the jail related to persons with mental illnesses and in the community center system.  
We agreed that there was a need for more frequent mental health screenings in the jail 
and discussed plans to assist the jail beyond what is currently done through the 
Outpatient Competency Restoration (OCR) program and the Jail Diversion program.   
 

 We continue to have nearly daily changes as our six (6) managed care organizations 
prepare for the implementation of Senate Bill 58.  We have formed a committee, which 
has recently been expanded to include several additional managers, to prepare for 
authorization processes which must be completed to get paid for these services.  
Several of the managed care organizations are still testing their payment systems and 
some have indicated that they may not be able to bill services in a manner that would 
be consistent with current Texas Medicaid Health Partnership (State Medicaid) billing 
procedures.  
 
The Texas Council continues to advocate for us with the Texas Health and Human 
Services Commission, but it appears that billing procedures and set-up may be delayed 
beyond the implementation date of Monday, September 1st.  It appears unlikely, 
however, that there will be a delay in implementation of this law and that we will be 
making changes throughout the next year.  As has been mentioned before, revenue 
should be predictable, but cash payments will likely be delayed throughout FY 2015.  
 



 

 

 As a part of our implementation of the Intensive Diversion and Evaluation 1115 
program, we will need to do some construction at the PETC.   The portion of the PETC 
that will be affected is at the front of the facility, not the portion that is a part of the 
Crisis Stabilization Unit.   While this construction was always planned, the scope of 
construction has increased because DSHS has indicated that all observation programs 
funded by 1115 must meet Texas Administrative Code requirements. We have engaged 
an architect and hope to have bids available for review at the August Board meeting.  

Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS) 

 

 We received word from DADS that we will receive increased Texas Home Living 
(TxHmL) waiver enrollment slots for the remainder of the year.   Tri-County received 59 
TxHmL slots in July.  The State has indicated that they will send out 725 additional slots 
per month, statewide, until the waiver funding is utilized.   It takes our staff about 8 
hours per person to enroll them in the waiver.  DADS has given the Local Authorities an 
increase in the timeline to complete the enrollment from 90 to 120 days due to the 
number of slots released.  After 120 days, extension of the enrollments can be 
requested, if required.  

Drug Enforcement Agency Meeting Summary 

 

 On Tuesday, June 24th, I was invited (along with all of the Executive Directors of ETBHN 
Centers) to meet with the DEA in Beaumont regarding ETBHN Telemedicine.  All of the 
ETBHN Centers in the southeast Texas region attended the meeting, and we were joined 
by Gulf Coast Attorney, Linda Bell, Texas Council Risk Management Fund Attorney, Pam 
Beach, and Texas Council Attorney, Carvan Adkins. 

 
At question is the Ryan Haight Online Pharmacy Consumer Protection Act and our use of 
telemedicine to prescribe Schedule II or Schedule III controlled substances. Although 
this act has been on ETBHN’s radar for about a year as a result of an incident with a 
Spindletop doctor contracted through ETBHN for children’s services (where lots of 
Schedule III medications are prescribed), I did not understand that it might apply to us 
because we have not been contracting for child psychiatry and do not allow, by 
formulary, most Schedule II medications for adults.   

 
While we are relatively new to the use of ETBHN prescribers, primarily for 1115 
programs, it appears that this act also applies to our internal prescribing via our internal 
network.    

 
There will be an effort, led by Texas Council Attorney, Carvan Adkins, to get our clinic 
locations (rather than the prescriber) licensed to have medications prescribed via 
telemedicine.  We do not currently have our facilities licensed by the DPS because we 
are a state agency and they have not felt that we needed to be.  However, we must 



 

 

have facility DPS licenses before we can get a facility DEA license.  In the interim, I have 
notified staff that Schedule II and III medications may not be prescribed via 
telemedicine. 

Cleveland HUD Project Update 

 

 Our staff continue to work toward closing on the Independence Oaks project in 
Cleveland.  Recent hurdles have included the waiting period for the building permit as 
well as the releasing of surface rights on the title.   We have received the building permit 
and David Deaton is close to resolving the title issues.  At this point I expect that we will 
close on the project sometime in August.   

 
After we close, we will have a groundbreaking ceremony in Cleveland.  As always, we 
would love to have you attend and will make sure you are notified about the ceremony 
so you can attend if you are able.  





CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S REPORT 

July 24, 2014 
 

 
DADS Fiscal Monitoring Review – From July 15th through July 18th, DADS conducted an 

on-site financial monitoring review.  The purpose of the financial monitoring review was to 

examine the Local Authorities compliance of laws and regulations in accordance with the FY 

2013 and FY 2014 Performance Contracts and verification of the accuracy of the data 

submitted to the Texas Department of Aging and Disabilities Services during that same 

period.   

 

The monitoring visit included a review of the Board minutes, policies and procedures, 

personnel files, financial records, verification of the financial statements submitted to DADS, 

verification of the costs and revenue reported in the Report III, review of the indirect costs 

and cost methodology as reported in the FY 2013 independent audit and a review of the 

expenditures.  They also reviewed of our fixed asset inventory process and did a spot check 

on some of the inventory items at a couple of our IDD locations.  

 

Also, the auditors met and interviewed key staff in the IDD service area.  On the program 

side, they did visit the Huntsville Day Habilitation program and were very impressed with 

the Program Coordinator and the program itself.  Overall, they were very complimentary 

towards all of our staff and the work that we do.   

 

Normally, they provide a draft letter of areas of concern but our exit interview was verbal.  

Here are the items that they indicated would be on the written report:   

 

 In reviewing the personnel files, it was noted that not all employees received 

their performance evaluation as required in the procedures.   

 

 On our CARE III report, the report has changed this year and some columns 

were combined into more broad categories.  They recommended that we 

make some changes in our reporting for the final FY 2014 CARE III to base 

our services on percent of services provided by type such as HCS, ICF, or 

Texas Home Living and to the service code level.  

 

 
FY 2015 Budget – We are getting near the end of the FY 2015 budget process.  I am still 

in the process of reviewing the managers’ submittals and comparing to the current FY 2014 

budget.  After this stage is complete, we will have management team meetings to 

determine where we can trim some items or make adjustments that can be identified.  This 

is where we will decide on the lapse in wages to be used for the final budget of salary and 

fringe lines.  And we will also determine if we can purchase any new items requested for 

programs based on their need justification.  All this will happen and final numbers compiled 

so we can bring back a balanced budget to the board for final approval at the August board 

meeting.   

 

 

Fixed Asset Inventory – We have completed the fixed asset inventory that is required by 

both DADS and DSHS contracts.  We received back all the count sheets from all locations 

and have updated all the fixed asset tables in Anasazi.  We did a complete new count of 

William E. Hall since we had moved staff from various locations to this building and 

purchased new furniture and equipment.  All staff completed the submittals in a timely 



manner and the process went very smooth this year.  We have done some spot checks at 

various locations and also had review by the DADS team which helps us to ensure our 

process is accurate.   
 

County Annual Funding Request – We have completed all the annual funding requests to 

our three counties.  We had a Walker County budget hearing on July 8th which was attended 

by Tracy Sorensen, Morris Johnson and I.  Judge Pierce asked for more details about 

funding by County that Evan has since provided and also some information about access to 

the school districts in the Walker County area.  They did not tell us “no” about the increase 

but we doubt that we will receive an increase over the current amount of $28,728.   

 

We have the Montgomery County budget hearing next Tuesday at 9:15.  We also asked for 

an increase and we will see how that goes.  Historically, it has not gone very well.  Their 

current funding is $211,525.   

 

Liberty County does not have budget hearings so will get notified of our funding amount in 

the mail or through the payments that they send.  The current funding amount for Liberty is 

$63,624.   

 

 

FY 2011 Rehabilitation and Targeted Case Management Settle-up – We have 

received all but $16,083 of the $164,407 FY 2011 Rehabilitation and Targeted Case 

Management settle-up.  This is the last year we will receive the settle-up payments.  This 

process was restructured in FY 2012 and the rates were to be adjusted to compensate for 

the variation in costs for centers.  It moved to an average as a system instead of center by 

center costs. If we don’t receive the remaining part within the next week we will be calling 

to track the payment.   

 

 

FY 2013 Desk Reviews of HCS, TxHmL, ICF and MEI Cost Reports – We have been 

receiving questions from Texas Health and Human Services Commission, Office of Inspector 

General-Compliance Division, Cost Report Review Unit - San Antonio in regards to the FY 

2013 Cost Reports.  At this point, they are just asking specific questions and we are 

responding within the required time frame.  So if anything of significant comes from these 

desk reviews, I will report to you next month.   
 



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Accept the 2014-2017 Montgomery County United 
Way Awards and Approve the Funding Agreement 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
Earlier this year, three grant applications were submitted to Montgomery County United 
Way (MCUW) for consideration during the 2014-2017 Strategic Investment cycle in the 
priority area of Health and Wellness. Tri-County received a notification of awards in the 
amount of $131,893 for each of the three years in the Strategic Investment cycle 
contingent upon performance outcomes/measures for the following two programs: 
 

1. Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center Day Program 
First Year Award Total: $55,281 

 
2. Substance Abuse Treatment Program 

First Year Award Total: $76,612 
 
Unfortunately, the grant application for the Intellectual/Developmental Disabilities Summer 
Camp was not approved for funding. 
 
MCUW requested all necessary documents be returned by July 15th; however, it requires 
approval by the Board of Trustees. We were advised to submit a copy of the funding 
agreement with the Executive Director’s signature prior to the deadline then to return the 
fully executed copy with the Board Chairman’s signature after Board approval at the 
meeting on July 24th. The Executive Director, Evan Roberson, contacted the Board 
Chairman, David Walker, for authorization to sign and return the initial funding agreement 
to MCUW.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
2014-2017 MCUW Agreement for Funding 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Accept the 2014-2017 MCUW Awards and Approve the Funding Agreement 
 

 

8



9



10



11



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Local 
Plan 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
It is a contract requirement for Community Centers to have a Local Plan in line with the 
State of Texas Health and Human Services Strategic Plan.  This plan considers local 
stakeholder input in the planned direction for provided services.  In the past, Tri-County 
had a combined Local Plan for mental health and intellectual and developmental disability 
services (IDD).  In 2008, a Local Planning and Network Development statute required the 
development of a separate plan for mental health services.  
  
For Fiscal Years 2015 and 2016, staff completed the planning process for stakeholders of 
persons with IDD or related conditions.  A series of nine (9) planning meetings were held 
across our four (4) primary service areas.  Two (2) evening planning meetings were also 
provided to ensure that community members had both day and evening options for 
participating in the planning sessions.  In addition to face-to-face meetings, staff distributed 
surveys to stakeholders in both in paper and electronic format.  
 
Stakeholders are interested in the following focus areas for this plan: 

 Development of additional resources for services, including seeking additional 
funding;  

 Improvement of community relationships, specifically with regard to the educational 
system; 

 Additional bilingual staff to communicate with monolingual Spanish stakeholders; 

 Family support groups, and; 
 Community education about IDD, available resources, and navigation through the 

changing system of care 
 
These focus areas can be viewed in the Goals and Objectives section of the IDD Local Plan 
on page 12. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
IDD Local Plan for FY 2015-2016 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve the IDD Local Plan for FY 2015-2016 
 

 

12



 

 

 

 

Tri-County Services 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  
Local Plan 

For Fiscal Years 2015 – 2016 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 _______________________________   _________________ 
                   Evan Roberson, Executive Director    Date 

 
  

13



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 2 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Tri-County Services 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Local Plan 

 
 
Introduction 
In March 2014, Tri-County Services (Tri-County) initiated the Fiscal Year 2014 planning process 
to determine the direction of services for persons with Intellectual and Developmental 
Disabilities (IDD). Tri-County staff began collecting survey information from individuals served, 
families, interested stakeholders, and local officials (stakeholders) regarding the direction for 
services.  Tri-County staff also coordinated nine (9) face-to-face planning meetings with 
stakeholders to gather input about plan direction.  Following a successful turnout during the 
2009 planning cycle, a mono-lingual Spanish planning meeting in Montgomery County was 
coordinated as a part of the 2014 planning process in order to continue efforts to educate local 
stakeholders about our services and seek input from this growing population regarding special 
needs.  Two evening planning meetings were also provided to ensure that community members 
had both day and evening options for participating in the planning sessions.  Information 
gathered from these activities has been evaluated and will be discussed later in this plan. 
 
Philosophy 
Tri-County has the following C.O.R.E Values: 
 

 Commitment We are committed to Honesty and Integrity 
 Optimism  We are optimistic about the future of those we serve and for Tri-County 
 Respect Everyone deserves to be treated with dignity and respect 
 Excellence We will strive for excellence in all that we do 
 
Tri-County’s Mission Statement 
Our mission is to enhance the quality of life for those we serve and our communities by 
ensuring the provision of quality services for individuals with mental illness, substance abuse 
disorders, and intellectual/developmental disabilities.  
 
Tri-County’s Vision Statement 
Our vision is to develop a mental health and developmental disabilities care system with 
adequate resources that ensures the provision of effective and efficient services to meet the 
need of our community. 

To achieve our vision, we will partner with the community to: 
 Expand the availability of new and existing resources; and  
 Assure the availability of technically and culturally competent staff 

 
 
 
 

14



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 3 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 
 
Service Area Demographics: 
 

 
 

The largest of the three counties in the Tri-County service area, Montgomery County, is 
contiguous to the north boundary of Harris County.  It consists of 1,077 square miles of rural 
and urban areas with a population of 455,746 (2010 Census) with approximately 27% under the 
age of 18 (U.S. Census Bureau).  The racial makeup is Caucasian 70%, Hispanic origin 21.7%, 
African American 4.6%, and Other 1.3% (2012 U.S. Census).  The 2012 Per capita income was 
$50,796 (2012 US Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA)).  Liberty County is the contiguous county 
east of Harris and Montgomery Counties and has 1,176 square miles of rural territory with a 
population of 75,643 (2010 Census).  The racial makeup is Caucasian 68.6%, Hispanic origin 
18.7%, African American 10.7%, and Other 2%.  Children under the age of 18 make up 25.4% of 
the population (2012 U.S. Census).  Per capita income is $35,067 (2012 US BEA).  Walker County 
is north of Montgomery County, consists of 802 square miles, and is considered rural.  With a 
population of 67,861 (2010 Census), the racial makeup is Caucasian 58%, Hispanic origin 17.2%, 
African American 22.4%, and Other 2.4%.  About 16.1% of the population are under the age of 
18 (2012 Census), and the per capita income is $26,840 (2012 BEA). 
 

For Walker and Liberty Counties, it should be noted that all Texas Department of Corrections 
inmates are counted in the census numbers.  There are an estimated 14,000 inmates in Walker 
County (20.5% of total population) and 4,500 inmates (6% of total population) in Liberty 
County.  In addition to inflating the number of residents in the county, the inmate population is 
also disproportionately ethnic. 
 

Montgomery County has experienced a 55% growth rate from the 2000 Census to the 2010 
Census and is considered the 24th fastest growing county in the United States. 

Finally, it should be noted that the census number for Hispanic persons, especially in 
Montgomery County but probably to a lesser degree in our other two counties, is considered to 
be underreported due to concerns about governmental survey processes.  
 

 

15



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 4 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Persons served with Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 
 

Priority Population: 
The Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities priority population consists of: 

 Persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities, as defined by Texas Health and 
Safety Code §591.003; 

 Individuals with a pervasive developmental disorder (including autism) or autism 
spectrum disorder, as defined in the current edition of the Diagnostic and Statistical 
Manual; 

 Individuals with a related condition who are eligible for, and enrolling in services in the 
ICF/IID Program, Home and Community-based Services (HCS) Program, or Texas Home 
Living (TxHmL) Program; 

 Nursing facility residents who are eligible for specialized services for intellectual and 
developmental disabilities or a related condition pursuant to Section 1919(e)(7) of the 
Social Security Act; and 

 Children who are eligible for Early Childhood Intervention services through the 
Department of Assistive and Rehabilitative Services (DARS). 

 
The determination of intellectual and developmental disabilities and the diagnosis of pervasive 
developmental disorders and related conditions must be made through the use of assessments 
and evaluations performed by qualified professionals. 
 

Service Population Prioritization: 
Since resources are insufficient to meet the service needs of every individual in the intellectual 
and developmental disabilities priority population, services should be provided to meet the 
most intense needs first.  Intense needs are determined as follows: 

 An individual is in danger or at risk of losing his or her support system, especially the 
living arrangements or support needs to maintain self; 

 An individual is at risk of abuse or neglect; 

 An individual’s basic health and safety needs are not being met through current 
supports; 

 An individual is at risk for functional loss without intervention, preventive or 
maintenance services; or 

 An individual demonstrates repeated criminal behavior. 
 

Persons Served In FY 2013: 
In Fiscal Year 2013, Tri-County provided Services to 826 individuals with Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities and their families. 
 
Priority Population Prevalence Data: 
On average, 2-3% of the total population will have a diagnosis of an intellectual and 
developmental disability or a related condition.  If this prevalence data is applied to our service 

16



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 5 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

area, it is estimated that approximately 16,000 persons in Tri-County’s service area have a 
qualifying diagnosis for state funded Intellectual and Developmental Disability Services. 
 
Current Tri-County Service Array 
Tri-County currently provides the following services: 

 Screening – the process of gathering information to determine the need for services. 

 Eligibility Determination – an interview and assessment or endorsement conducted to 
determine if an individual has an intellectual and developmental disability or is a 
member of the intellectual and developmental disabilities priority population. 

 Service Coordination – assistance in accessing medical, social, educational, and other 
appropriate services and supports that will help individuals served achieve a quality of 
life and community participation acceptable to them, as described in the Plan for 
Services and Supports. 

 Continuity of Services –  
Service Coordination performed for: 

o Individuals residing in a state IDD facility whose movement to the community is 
being planned or for a person who formerly resided in a state facility and is on 
community-placement status; or 

o An individual enrolled in the HCS or ICF/MR program to maintain the individual’s 
placement or to develop another placement for the individual. 

 Service Authorization and Monitoring – Service Coordination provided to an individual 
who is assessed as having a single need. 

 Service Coordination- HCS or TxHmL Program – Service Coordination for individuals 
enrolled in the HCS or TxHmL Program. 

 Community Support – individualized activities that are consistent with the person’s 
person-directed plan and provided in the individual’s home and community locations. 
Supports include: 

o Habilitation and support activities; 
o Activities for the individual’s family that help preserve the family unit and 

prevent out-of-home placement; 
o Transportation for individuals served between home and their community 

employment or habilitation site; and 
o Transportation to facilitate the individuals’ employment and participation in 

community activities. 

 Respite – planned or emergency short term relief services provided to the individual’s 
unpaid caregiver when the caregiver is temporarily unavailable to provide supports due 
to non-routine circumstances. 

 Employment Assistance – assistance to individuals served in locating paid, 
individualized, competitive employment in the community setting. 

 Supported Employment – provided to a person who has paid, individualized, 
competitive employment in the community. 

17



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 6 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Day Habilitation – assistance with acquiring, retaining, or improving self-help, 
socialization, and adaptive skills necessary to live successfully in the community and to 
participate in home and community life. 

 Intermediate Care Facilities for persons with Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities 
(ICF/IID) – eight six-bed permanent living environments for persons who qualify for 
placement.   

 Texas Home Living Waiver – provides selected essential services and supports to 
persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities that are living in family 
homes or their own homes. 

 Home and Community-based Services (HCS) – provides individualized services and 
supports to persons with intellectual and developmental disabilities who are living 
with their family, in their own home or in other community settings, such as small 
group homes. 

 Permanency Planning – a philosophy and planning process that focuses on achieving 
family support for individuals under 22 years of age by facilitating permanent living 
arrangements that include an enduring and nurturing parental relationship.  

 PASRR Evaluation – An evaluation of an individual in a nursing facility to determine if the 
individual is appropriately placed and whether they have a mental health or intellectual 
and developmental disability that would benefit from alternative placement or 
supplemental services.  

 IDD ACT Services - Multidisciplinary approach to provide intensive short term behavior 
intervention for person’s diagnosed with an intellectual and developmental disability, 
autism or PDD and a co-occurring serious/persistent mental illness and/or severe acting 
out behavior.  This program focuses on crisis prevention through the use of applied 
behavior analysis (ABA).  ABA is a scientific, systematic approach that focuses on the 
observable relationship between environmental events and the target behavior. 
Behavior specialists work to identify the underlying motivations (i.e., behavioral 
“functions”) of challenging behaviors, while simultaneously working to teach more 
appropriate behavior to replace the challenging behavior.  
 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Organizational Chart 
(See Appendix A) 
 
Gathering Public Input in the Planning Process 
 

Survey Response: 
Tri-County developed a survey about our IDD services which was distributed to local 
stakeholders and at local planning meetings.  Staff distributed surveys both in paper and 
electronic format via Survey Monkey.  Surveys were provided to our IDD PNAC members, 
IDD Authority Staff and individuals served, Tri-County Board of Trustees, local CRCGs, and 
to other stakeholders by email. Paper copies were also made available at each public 
planning meeting.  

18



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 7 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 
Although surveys were made available in Spanish, no Spanish surveys were completed.   
Questions on the survey included both closed and open ended questions about services.  
 

Planning Session Closed Ended Responses:  
Graph of local stakeholder response type: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Graph of response by county of residence: 
 

3 

11 

4 

12 

Response Detail by Affliliation 

Consumers

Family Member/Guardian

Actively Involved Person

Other Interested
Stakeholder

19



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 8 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 
 
Survey results indicate that 91% of stakeholders are satisfied with the courtesy and 
competency of all employees.  Local stakeholders were generally less satisfied with the 
condition of the facilities where services were provided and indicated a desire for 
increased services and resources to better meet the needs of the community.  
 
Community Forums: 
In addition to the survey process, nine (9) community meetings were held to gather 
information from stakeholders about services and plan direction.  Interested stakeholders 
were provided with a brief education about Tri-County, the purpose for the planning 
process and were asked several open-ended questions. 
 

Local Planning Meetings 
Date Location 

April 15, 2014 Montgomery County – CRCG 

April 16, 2014 Huntsville – Public Forum 

April 16 & 18, 2014 Conroe – Public Forums 

April 17, 2014 Mono-lingual Spanish – Public Forum 

April 18, 2014 Cleveland – Public Forum 

April 22, 2014 Liberty – Public Forum 

April 30, 2014 IDD Planning and Network Advisory Meeting 

May 1, 2014 Walker County – CRCG 

 
Planning Session Open Ended Responses: 
A series of open ended questions were asked of local stakeholders through both the survey 
process and at planning meetings.  Obviously, open ended questions are more unique in 

24 

2 

4 

Response Detail by County 

Montgomery

Liberty

Walker

20



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 9 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

nature, but staff attempted to categorize answers to questions in order to summarize this 
data. 
 

1. What services would you like Tri-County to provide which are not currently being 
offered? 

Stakeholders expressed concerns about the amount of funding available to serve 
individuals in our service area citing both the fast rate at which our population is 
growing in our service area, as well as the rate at which the interest lists for particular 
services and waivers are continuing to increase.  They reiterated that there remains a 
need to increase awareness in the community of what Tri-County already does and 
stated that more outreach and education programs are needed.  Stakeholders felt that 
with the implementation of Senate Bill 7 which would place many intellectual and 
developmental disability services into managed care by the year 2020, now was the 
time to educate the community on how this will change the way that they currently 
navigate the IDD service system. 

 

2. What do you like best about the services which Tri-County provides? 
In general, stakeholders expressed gratitude that Tri-County was around to offer 
the services that are provided and noted high satisfaction with the Service 
Coordination provided through Tri-County.  Many stakeholders expressed concerns 
about what they would do without the services that they are able to receive  noted 
that they felt that Tri-County was doing a great job at advocating for individuals 
served but also reported anxiety about the changes which will place much of IDD 
into the managed care model and what this will mean for both the individuals 
served and their families.  

 

3. What could we do to improve the services we provide to persons with Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities and/or their families? 

Stakeholders seemed to have very consistent ideas about what Tri-County could do 
to improve the services they provide to individuals served, many similar to those 
identified in the previous planning cycle.  Specifically, stakeholders cited the need 
to seek additional financial resources for our community so more persons can 
receive the treatment they need, the need for more information which will facilitate 
their understanding of the issues their family member has, more communication 
with families, more education for families about ways that they can deal with their 
family member’s disability, and more education to the general public on the 
resources available for these individuals and their families including respite 
providers and available transportation options.  Stakeholders also cited adequate 
salaries for employees and continued recruitment of bilingual staff members as an 
area that they would like to see increase. 

 

4. What type of Education/Information would you like Tri-County to provide? 

21



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 10 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Several stakeholders mentioned the need for more publicity about the services 
offered by Tri-County, as well as additional educational training for families and 
significantly involved individuals aimed at how to handle various obstacles 
commonly met by individuals served and or their families.  In addition, stakeholders 
requested information and education on the implications of Senate Bill 7 and how 
individuals served and their families could prepare to prevent a loss or reduction in 
services provided.  
 

5. Do you believe the services being provided in the community by Tri-County are meeting 
community needs? 

Although many of the stakeholders felt that Tri-County was doing a good job meeting 
community needs with the resources available, there was a general consensus that 
additional funding and services were needed.  Stakeholders expressed the need for 
additional services such as more respite, transportation options, as well as additional 
services for individuals on interest lists, specifically for those individuals who have 
graduated high school and are still on an interest list for waiver services.  

 
 

6. What have you heard about Senate Bill 7 and what role would you like Tri-County to play 
with regard to Senate Bill 7? 

The majority of stakeholders had not heard of Senate Bill 7 or the transition of IDD 
services into managed care and expressed an interest in receiving additional 
information and education about how this bill may impact individuals with IDD and their 
families as well as how these individuals can prepare to navigate the new system of care 
to prevent a disruption and/or reduction in services.  When asked what role they would 
like Tri-County to play in the process, they cited education and information 
dissemination to the community as an important aspect of our relationship with the 
community during this process.  

22



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 11 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Stakeholder Information Summary: 
Over a time period of several months, Tri-County staff collected information from 
interested stakeholders about Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 
provided by the Center and asked for input about other services need by this population.  
A total of 30 surveys were received back, and several persons attended a total of 9 
community forums.  Although there were a great deal of interesting responses collected in 
this process, staff believe that the convergence of responses is especially significant. Areas 
of stakeholder convergence included: 

 Belief that legislators need to understand the expanding needs of persons with 
Intellectual and Development Disabilities and that additional funding be sought for 
our regular services;  

 Belief that the community and families of persons with Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities need greater awareness about these disorders and how 
to navigate the changing system of care; 

 The need for culturally competent bilingual staff (Spanish/English) to serve as 
contact and service staff for persons who do not speak English; 

 Belief that much more effort is needed to educate the community about 
Intellectual and Development Disabilities, specifically in schools, the business 
community and families; and, 

 The need for family support groups and family education opportunities are needed 
in the community. 

 
Tri-County Services Area Goals and Objectives: 
In April of 2014, Tri-County’s Intellectual and Developmental Disability Planning Network 
Advisory Committee reviewed stakeholder input from the local planning process and 
recommended general direction for 2015 and 2016 Local Planning Goals and Objectives.  
Of special concern to them were educational opportunities for all stakeholders, increased 
funding for persons served and efforts to educate the community about changes coming to 
the Intellectual and Developmental Disability care system, and information on how to 
navigate these changes in order to avoid any disruption or reduction in services .  Before 
consideration of the Goals and Objectives for this two year planning period, the following 
community and center strengths, needs, and barriers should be considered: 
 

Strengths: 

 Tri-County has experienced service and management staff who are knowledgeable 
about Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS) rules and contract 
requirements. 

 Tri-County has a history of fiscal and program audit excellence. 

 Tri-County remains focused on providing the best services possible for persons with 
Intellectual and Development Disabilities. 

 Tri-County has a long standing positive relationship with the community. 

23



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 12 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Tri-County has excellent Board governance and positive relationships with state and 
county officials. 

 Tri-County has grant expertise and is able to manage complex funding streams from 
grant funders. 

 Tri-County has strengthened data reporting and outlier management. 
 

Community Needs and Priorities: 

 Tri-County needs additional financial resources to keep up with the growth in our 
service area. 

 Tri-County needs to retain and continue to recruit culturally competent bilingual 
staff persons. 

 Tri-County needs to find innovative ways to make stakeholders aware of our 
services and educate them about the disorders that their family members are 
experiencing. 

 Tri-County needs to educate the community on navigating the IDD system of care 
including information on interest lists, waivers, Senate Bill 7, and preparing 
individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities and their families for 
changes and resources available during typical developmental life stages. 

 

Barriers: 

 There has been rapid growth of the Tri-County Service area while funding has 
essentially been static. 

 Department of Aging and Disability Services contract requirements do not provide 
much opportunity for flexibility in service design with currently available funding. 

 Community stigma exists for persons with Intellectual and Developmental 
Disabilities which can limit opportunities. 

 The size of the Tri-County service area presents problems related to efficient service 
design. 

 There are only very limited public transportation opportunities in the Tri-County 
service area. 

 State regulations and mandates put centers at a disadvantage when competing with 
non-governmental entities for services. 

 
 

Outcome: 
Tri-County will ensure the provision of quality services for individuals with Intellectual and 
Developmental Disabilities and enhance the quality of life in our community. 
 

Goals and Objectives: 
Goal:  Provide Additional Education to the community, family members, and 

significantly involved individuals  

24



 
 

 
Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities  Page 13 of 13 
Local Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Objective:  Tri-County will seek new ways to educate the community about services 
provided, resources available, and navigation of the changing system of care 
for individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities. 

Objective: Tri-County will continue to seek opportunities to build relationships with the 
educational system as a means of reaching the parent/educator population.     

 
Goal:   Recruit Culturally Competent Bilingual Staff 
Objective:  Tri-County will continue to focus on retaining and recruit bilingual staff. 
 
Goal:    Administrative Support for the Local Plan 
Objective: Tri-County will apply Grant and Resource Development to study, design and 

seek funding for new Intellectual and Developmental Disability programs. 
Objective:  Tri-County will use relationships with local and state officials to continue 

explaining the need for additional funding in our service area. 
Objective:  Tri-County and East Texas Behavioral Health Network Utilization 

Management and Planning Network Advisory Committees will review the 
cost effectiveness of the current service design and will make 
recommendations about service design changes which will provide greater 
efficiency. 

Objective:  Tri-County will use their Quality Management Department to evaluate 
programs for contract compliance and quality of services and will make 
efforts to ensure health, safety, and well-being of persons in services. 

25



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Quality 
Management Plan 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
In 2006, Tri-County split the Center’s Quality Management Plan into a plan for mental 
health services and a plan for intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD) services due 
to increasingly different expectations for quality management activities in the contracts for 
Department of State Health Services (DSHS) and Department of Aging and Disability 
Services (DADS). 
 
As a part of the planning activities for persons with IDD which were undertaken this year, 
the IDD Quality Management Plan was reviewed and updated as necessary to ensure 
compliance with DADS contract requirements and Texas Administrative Code (TAC).  This 
plan will remain in effect for two years, unless a program change requires the plan to be 
revised.   
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
IDD Quality Management Plan for FY 2015-2016 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve the IDD Quality Management Plan for FY 2015-2016 
 

 

26



 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Tri-County Services 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities 

Quality Management Plan 

For Fiscal Years 2015 – 2016 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 _______________________________   _________________ 
Evan Roberson, Executive Director    Date 

27



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 2 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Introduction 

 

The Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD) Quality Management (QM) Plan 

is a document written to provide a qualitative framework of activities that are designed to 

ensure that individuals who are receiving services through Tri-County Services (Tri-

County), are receiving quality services provided by culturally competent and adequately 

trained staff in a manner that is financially viable. 

 

The IDD QM Plan is guided by Tri-County’s stakeholders, the performance contract 

between Tri-County and the Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services 

(DADS), the Board of Trustees, the Center’s Local Plan, East Texas Behavioral 

Healthcare Network (ETBHN), the Management Team, the Intellectual and 

Developmental Disabalities Planning Network Advisory Committee (IDDPNAC), and 

the Regional Planning Network Advisory Committee (RPNAC). 

 

The QM Department continues to work closely with program managers and direct service 

staff to ensure that they are compliant with contract requirements and Texas 

Administrative Codes (TAC).  We are constantly measuring, assessing, and striving to 

improve our local authority functions to ensure that our stakeholders receive the highest 

quality of services possible while maintaining contract compliance, including the 

accuracy, consistency, and timeliness with which service provision information is 

provided to DADS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 3 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

MISSION, VISION AND PHILOSOPHY STATEMENT 

 

Mission 

 

Our mission is to enhance the quality of life for those we serve and our communities by 

ensuring the provision of quality services for individuals with mental illness, substance 

abuse disorders and intellectual/developmental disabilities. 

 

Vision 

 

Our vision is to develop a mental health and developmental disabilities care system with 

adequate resources that ensures the provision of effective and efficient services to meet 

the need of our community. 

To achieve our vision, we will partner with the community to: 

 Expand the availability of new and existing resources; and  

 Assure the availability of technically and culturally competent staff 

 

Philosophy/Values 

 

The CORE Values of Tri-County Services are: 

 

 Commitment We are committed to honesty and integrity 

 Optimism We are optimistic about the future of those we serve and for Tri-County 

 Respect Everyone deserves to be treated with dignity and respect 

 Excellence We will strive for excellence in all that we do 

 

Mission of the Quality Management Department 

 

The mission of the Quality Management Department is to ensure that the highest possible 

quality of services is provided to our stakeholders. 

 

Direction 

 

The Quality Management Program focuses on a systematic, objective, and continuous 

process for monitoring, evaluating, and improving the quality and appropriateness of 

service delivery systems within our organization.  The QM Program assists Tri-County in 

assuring existing standards of care are met and provides the framework to obtain 

feedback from stakeholders on the manner in which the center conducts its business. 

 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Authority Responsibilities 

 

Tri-County continues to ensure that we are developing and managing a network that 

offers consumer choice to the highest extent possible.  Tri-County contracts with outside 

providers when practical and requires contracted medical providers meet the same 

29



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 4 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

professional qualifications as providers employed by the Center.  ETBHN, our local 

IDDPNAC, and the RPNAC provide best value analysis for Center services on a regular 

basis.  In addition, we analyze Cost Accounting Methodology data and Medicaid 

Administrative Claiming results to identify areas where improvements are needed.  

 

To expand our service capacity, Tri-County continues to seek opportunities for grant 

funding and service contracts.  We are also actively pursuing fundraising opportunities 

and soliciting donations.  Additionally, Tri-County continues to analyze and improve 

productivity so that more services can be provided with existing resources.  

 

Goals of the QM Program 

 

The goals of the QM Program are designed to ensure that Tri-County’s QM activities are 

measuring the key elements of quality services provided to individuals with IDD.  These 

goals are meant to be a foundation for the QM Department and are not intended to be the 

only activities of the department. 

 

Goal 1: Direct the internal program review process to consistently, effectively, and 

efficiently monitor and evaluate the provision of services to individuals with 

intellectual and developmental disabilities (IDD). 

 

Performance Standards: 

1. Participate in internal program reviews throughout the year and produce 

reports for programs reviewed. 

 

Measurable Activities: 

1. Update, as necessary, all program review tools to be in compliance with TAC, 

Medicaid rules, state performance contracts and other state regulations, as 

applicable. 

2. Complete program reviews for selected service programs annually. 

3. Provide feedback to reviewed programs that include department strengths, 

weaknesses, and recommendations for improvement. 

4. Provide the program review report to program managers and the Management 

Team within four (4) weeks of report completion. 

5. Follow up with program managers regarding plans of correction as needed. 

6. Provide updates from program reviews to the IDD Quality and Utilization 

Management (QUM) Team for evaluation. 

7. Continually monitor the program review process and make modifications as 

needed to ensure that the process is measuring critical program elements. 

 

Outcomes: 

1. All tools used in the program review process are being reviewed and updated, 

as necessary, prior to each program review audit. 

30



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 5 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

2. Reports are completed for each program and are shared with program 

managers for their input before being presented to the Management Team. 

3. Reports have been provided within four (4) weeks of completion. 

4. The QM Department has followed up with program managers regarding their 

plan of correction as needed. 

5. Several changes have been made to the program review process, such as 

having program managers complete the chart reviews and having the QM staff 

complete a follow-up audit of a smaller percentage of charts for validity 

purposes.  This enables the program manager to assess the strengths or 

weaknesses of their staff in completing person directed plans, progress notes 

and other areas of concern. 

6. Program managers have provided training to program staff when weaknesses 

are noted during the program review. 

7. The QM Department has presented program results for evaluation, as 

necessary, at the QUM meetings. 

 

Goal 2:  Successfully coordinate the Center’s organizational self-assessment 

activities as a part of the ongoing evaluation and monitoring process of Tri-County. 

 

Performance Standards: 

1. At intervals designated by DADS, ensure that organizational self-assessment 

activities are completed and submitted. 

2. At intervals designated by DADS, ensure that applicable improvement plans are 

completed, submitted, and reviewed. 

 

Goal 3: Support Tri-County in meeting or exceeding all applicable requirements 

and standards. 

 

Performance standards: 

1. Review all new Texas Administrative Codes (TAC) that apply to services to 

persons with IDD. 

2. Assure that all programs have a current copy of the TAC or know how to quickly 

access the information if maintained electronically. 

3. Review Tri-County’s Policies and Procedures as a part of the internal program 

review process. 

 

Measurable results: 

1. Review all new TAC posted in the TAC Viewer within two (2) weeks. 

2. Forward relevant TAC to programs within two (2) weeks of review. 

3. Look at each program manual (whether maintained in hard copy or 

electronically) as part of the a program review process to ensure programs have 

the most current TAC, contract requirements, and related memorandum of 

understanding (MOU).  

31



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 6 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

4. Review applicable policies and procedures and make recommendations for 

revision to ensure compliance with current requirements. 

 

Outcomes: 

1. The QM Department reviews all new TAC posted in the TAC Viewer within two 

(2) weeks. 

2. The QM Department continues to forward all new TAC to appropriate programs 

within two (2) weeks of review. 

3. The QM Department looks at the program manual during each program review. 

The QM Department continues to contact program managers if the program 

manual does not have current TAC and assists the manager as needed to ensure 

that current TAC is in program manuals.  

 

Goal 4: To ensure individuals served are treated with dignity and respect. 

 

Measurable activities: 

1. Monitor all allegations of abuse, neglect, and exploitation. 

2. Ensure relevant training is provided to staff when trends are noted. 

3. Ensure all individuals served are provided with a copy of the rights handbook, 

that it is explained to them in a way they understand, and is documented in the 

individual’s clinical record. 

4. Ensure that all staff knows who to contact in the event of an allegation of abuse, 

neglect, and/or exploitation. 

5. Investigate all rights complaints in a timely manner and ensure that these 

complaints are handled with confidentiality. 

6. Make reasonable improvements to programs resulting from complaints of 

individuals served. 

7. For a deficiency identified by DADS related to critical health, safety, rights, or 

abuse and neglect, the deficiency will be corrected immediately, and within five 

(5) business days after receipt of a request from DADS, a corrective action plan 

(CAP) will be developed that adequately addresses the correction of the 

deficiency. 

 

Outcomes: 

1. The Rights Protection Officer monitors, reports on, and makes recommendations 

to management regarding abuse, neglect, and exploitation allegations and 

investigation results. 

2. When appropriate, trainings are provided to program staff resulting from 

allegations in an attempt to reduce instances of abuse, neglect, and exploitation 

during this fiscal year.  

3. Individuals served are provided with rights booklets upon admission, as well as 

annually, and documentation is made in the individual’s clinical record. 

4. During program review audits staff are asked questions related to how, where 

and when to report events of abuse, neglect, and exploitation. The ability of staff 

32



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 7 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

to answer these questions correctly is part of the program review process and 

feedback is provided to program managers within a reasonable amount of time. 

5. All complaints are handled with confidentiality and in a timely manner. 

6. The Rights Protection Officer and the program managers have worked well 

together in ensuring that complaints from individuals served and/or other 

stakeholders are taken seriously and reasonable changes are made as a result of 

complaints, if necessary. 

7. Tri-County strives to work collaboratively with DADS to ensure that individuals 

served receive the best care possible. 

 

Goal 5: To ensure that Contract Targets and Performance Measures are met. 

 

Performance Measures: 
1. Serve 120 non-waiver individuals with IDD per quarter. 

2. Ensure that 95% of enrollments into HCS meet timelines. 

3. Ensure that 95% of Permanency Plans are completed within the correct timeline. 

4. Ensure that 95% of TxHmL meet timelines. 

5. Ensure that 100% of individuals on the HCS interest list are contacted within 

timelines. 

 

Measurable Activities: 
6. Monitor Tri-County’s status on all performance measures in the Quality and 

Utilization Management (QUM) and Junior Utilization Management (JUM) 

Committees. 

7. Issue warnings from the JUM or QUM committees if any of the measures trend 

low or fall below contract expectations. 

8. Ensure that reports used by DADS to monitor our agencies performance are 

identified and made available to program staff. 

 

Outcomes: 
1. Tri-County continues to perform within the required expectations. 

2. Information will be shared about ways non-program departments can assist 

program staff in meeting targets. 

3. All program and utilization staff will be aware of status on reaching agency 

targets and performance measures. 

4. Information on the status of reaching goals will be shared with the Management 

Team. 

5. QUM and program staff commit to working together to monitor the status of 

performance measures. 

 

In addition to the goals above, other QM Responsibilities of the Center to ensure 

best quality include: 

 Effectively monitoring the Center’s interest list program. 

 Effectively administering the Center’s local planning process. 

33



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 8 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Effectively administering the Center’s risk management and contract 

compliance system. 

 Effectively monitoring and maintaining other contract guidelines. 

 

Quality-Related Responsibilities of Management and Committees 

 

Tri-County is dedicated to promoting a team approach to serving persons with mental 

illness and IDD.  Tri-County continues to work diligently at increasing the lines of 

communication between levels of management, quality-related committees, and all staff. 

We continue to strive to enrich the lives of individuals served and their families. 

Although we adhere to the team philosophy, there must also be groups of people 

identified to focus on specific aspects of the Center.  The leadership groups and 

committees of Tri-County are the following: 

 

The Board of Trustees: 

 Responsible for the provision of a comprehensive program of mental health and 

IDD services in its service area. 

 Strives to obtain the highest quality of service for the lowest cost. 

 Establishes mental health and IDD services directly and/or through contractual 

arrangements stressing accessibility, availability, acceptability, and continuity of 

care, based on the financial capability of the Center. 

 Develops and executes plans for the continued financial stability and the 

acquisition of adequate resources to accomplish the purposes and objectives of the 

Center. 

 Establishes an on-going quality assurance program that provides for appropriate 

review systems which monitor client care. 

 Reviews, at least quarterly, monthly reports of programmatic and fiscal activities. 

 Promotes the objectives of the Center to the community by utilizing the media 

and other forms of communication. 

 

The Executive Director: 

 Ensures the Executive Management Team implements, oversees, and reviews 

QM activities. 

 Ensures the Management Team receives and evaluates internal and external 

reports for all QM activities. 

 Ensures that program operations and policies and procedures are in compliance 

with local, state, and federal statutes and regulations. 

 Evaluates and monitors QM performance outcomes to ensure compliance with 

the QM plan. 

 Appoints members to agency committees. 

 Ensures that Center goals and objectives are developed annually and that 

progress toward goals is monitored on at least a quarterly basis. 

 Implements Board Policies through the development of operational procedures. 

34



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 9 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Responsible for overall operations of the Center and compliance with the 

performance contract. 

 

The Management Team: 

The Management Team consists of the Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer, 

Director of Human Resources & Human Resource Development, Medical Director, the 

Director of Quality Management and Support, Director of Crisis Services, Director of 

IDD Provider Services, Director of IDD Authority Services, and the Behavioral Health 

Director.  

 

The Management Team meets weekly and is responsible for: 

 Implementing, overseeing, and reviewing QM activities. 

 Reviewing and evaluating internal and external reports for all QM activities. 

 Reviewing committee reports to ensure that issues related to individuals’ needs 

are properly addressed. 

 Monitoring and assuring compliance to all contract requirements, standards, and 

codes. 

 Ensuring that changes in contracts and standards are provided to the relevant 

program staff. 

 Serving as liaisons to all agency committees. 

 Reviewing key service indicators and outcomes at least quarterly. 

 Reviewing financial reports on a monthly basis. 

 Monitoring all risk data for employees and individuals served on at least a 

quarterly basis. 

 Monitoring results of internal program review audits. 

 

The Administrator of Quality Management:  

The Administrator of Quality Management’s duty, in cooperation with the Management 

Team, is to ensure oversight of a QM plan that describes the on-going method for 

assessing, coordinating, communicating, and improving the QM functions, processes, and 

outcomes of the Center. The Administrator of Quality Management: 

 Co-chairs the QUM Committee. 

 Serves as a member of the JUM Committee. 

 Serves as a member of the Corporate Compliance Committee. 

 Works closely with the Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management and 

IDD program managers to measure, analyze, and improve service capacity and 

access to services. 

 Reviews aggregate critical incident data for IDD services and ensures it is 

reported accurately and in a timely manner to DADS. 

 Provides the Management Team with reports so they can oversee and review QM 

activities. 

 Completes all program review audits for each selected program. 

35



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 10 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Monitors and reports QM outcomes to the Management Team on at least a 

quarterly basis. 

 Assists the Rights Protection Officer with monitoring trends in client abuse, 

neglect, and exploitation and assigns follow-up responsibilities to appropriate 

staff. 

 Coordinates the agency’s RMTS program. 

 Develops and ensures stakeholder surveys are distributed in all three local service 

areas every 2 years and monitors results of program specific surveys. 

 Monitors the Performance Contract for compliance. 

 

Rights Protection Officer: 

 Acts as the Center’s Rights Protection Officer. 

 Receives and follows up on complaints until there is resolution. 

 Assists the Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management with various 

appeals and fair hearing processes, as needed. 

 Assists the Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management with monitoring 

rights and abuse data for trends. 

 Assists with the completion of all program review audits conducted throughout 

the year. 

 

Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management: 

 Co-Chairs the Center’s Safety Committee. 

 Monitors rights, abuse, safety and health data for trends, and provides information 

to the Management Team on at least a quarterly basis. 

 Co-chairs the QUM Committee. 

 Serves as a member of the JUM Committee. 

 Serves as a member of the Corporate Compliance Committee. 

 Monitors services to ensure the most efficient use of resources. 

 Monitors services to ensure they are provided in line with state and contractual 

guidelines. 

 Assists the Director of QM and Support with implementing and monitoring the 

Corporate Compliance Action Plan.  

 

Consumer Rights Review Team (CRRT): 

The Rights Protection Officer (RPO) is mandated by the Texas Administrative Code for 

the protection, preservation, promotion, and advocation of the health, safety, welfare, 

legal, and human rights of consumers.  The CRRT assists the RPO, as warranted, for 

collaborative reviews.  The responsibilities of the CRRT and/or RPO may include: 

 Ensuring due process for consumers when a limitation of rights is being 

considered.  

 Meeting as requested by the RPO to conduct business.   

36



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 11 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Reviewing behavior modification plans to ensure that consumer rights are 

protected. 

 Reviewing medication changes for some consumers if necessary. 

 Reviewing the Critical Incident Report (rights, abuse, safety, and neglect) 

data.   

Recommendations from the CRRT and/or RPO are submitted to the Management Team 

when adverse trends, patterns, or barriers are identified. 

 

Safety Committee: 

The Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management chairs the Center’s Safety 

Committee.  The Safety Committee is comprised of selected members who review data 

from a variety of sources to identify situations that pose a risk to individuals served, the 

community, employees, and/or the Center.  In conjunction with the Safety Officer, the 

Safety Committee creates, implements, and maintains a system of tracking, reporting, and 

evaluating the Center Safety Plan.  Trends, recommendations, and decisions made or 

identified by the Safety Committee are sent to the Management Team for review.  The 

Safety Committee meets at least quarterly, and as necessary, to conduct business. 

 

Risk Management Team: 

The comprehensive Risk Management Team is responsible for the development, 

implementation, support, monitoring, and evaluation of the comprehensive Risk 

Management Program.  Executive management staff serve as permanent members of this 

team, with additional staff serving on an as-needed basis.  Information on rights and 

abuse will be presented to the Risk Management Team.  This team meets weekly or as 

often as is necessary to conduct its business. 

 

Quality and Utilization Management (QUM) Committee: 

The QUM committee has representation from an array of staff in IDD services.  The 

Administrator of QM and the Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management are the 

committee chairs. Members include the Director of IDD Provider Services, the Director 

of IDD Authority Services, the Coordinator of IDD Intakes and Enrollment, the 

Administrator of IDD Authority Services, and the Data Coordinator.  The Director of QM 

and Support also attends the meetings and acts as a liaison for the Management Team. 

The duty of the QUM Committee is to ensure the Center is effectively managing its 

resources and improving the efficiency of the QUM process.  To fulfill its responsibility, 

the QUM Committee will meet at least quarterly, and will: 

 Work to review and coordinate internal auditing of services and programs to 

ensure compliance with the Texas Administrative Code, the Center’s Performance 

Contracts, the Texas Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS), other 

state agencies as applicable, and any MOU relevant to the provision of IDD 

services. 

 Review data for IDD Services, consumer complaints, consumer deaths, 

abuse/neglect allegations, voter registration activities, incident reports, safety 

37



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 12 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

committee recommendations, staff productivity, interest lists, program satisfaction 

surveys, and any other data or reports that reflect compliance with quality 

standards. 

 Review any recommendations of the local IDDPNAC and participate in and 

submit, as requested, information to the RPNAC. 

 Review results of program review audits. 

 Monitors performance in relation to defined contract performance measures, 

including outcomes. 

 Reviews reports regarding appeals of eligibility for services. 

 Makes recommendations to managers, as necessary, regarding changes to the 

current service delivery and/or data collection system to ensure timely and 

efficient adherence to required performance measures, including outcomes. 

 Makes recommendations, as necessary, to the Management Team on how to 

efficiently and effectively meet the requirements for various contracts. 

 Proposes consideration of a variety of strategies that may lead to better use of 

available resources and possible ways of increasing resources. 

After review of the above, the QUM committee will determine whether there are 

indications that changes are needed in the delivery of services, to policies and procedures, 

or to the training needs of staff.  The committee’s Management Team member will be 

responsible for presenting the committee recommendations to the Management Team for 

review and approval. 

 

Junior Utilization Management Committee (JUM): 

The Director of Quality Management and Support chairs this committee.  The Junior 

Utilization Management Committee (JUM) consists of the Administrator of Utilization 

and Risk Management, the Administrator of Quality Management, and the Manager of 

Information Technology Services.  Additional Center staff are brought to JUM meetings 

as deemed necessary.  The JUM Committee meets at least three times a month to analyze 

factors that might be affecting Tri-County’s ability to meet contract performance 

expectations.  To fulfill its responsibilities the JUM Committee: 

 Reviews a list of contract expectations and performance on these issues up to the 

date of the meeting. 

 Updates a document that is accessible to all managers, that reflects agency 

performance on target measures. 

 Sends emails to managers of programs that are below contract expectations, 

informing them of program areas that are not in compliance with contract 

expectations. 

 Reviews contract due dates and sends reminders to staff about upcoming contract 

deadlines. 

 Creates custom reports for problem areas so staff can be more knowledgeable 

about factors that are affecting contract compliance.  

38



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 13 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Scrutinizes data that is submitted to determine possible data problems that might 

be affecting performance. 

 Invites program managers to present compliance concerns to the committee so 

that the JUM can assist with problem-solving activities. 
 

 

Grid Review Team (GRiT): 

 Sets up encounter data modalities to ensure correct submission to the DSHS data 

warehouse. 

 Reviews the Chargemaster report to ensure that charges are accurate and up to 

date. 

 Reviews the IDD service array to ensure that we are in compliance with the 

performance contract. 

 Reviews service code definitions to ensure that they are in line with the service 

array and the performance contract. 

 Meets quarterly and/or as needed. 

 
 

Corporate Compliance Committee: 

The Corporate Compliance Officer chairs this committee.  The Corporate Compliance 

Committee is comprised of the Director of Quality Management and Support, Human 

Resources Director, Administrator of Utilization and Risk Management, Administrator of 

Quality Management, Rights Protection Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, 

Reimbursement Manager, and the Criminal Justice Services Program Administrator.  The 

Corporate Compliance Committee is scheduled to meet at least quarterly, but the 

meetings may be scheduled more frequently, as determined by the existing needs of the 

Center. 

The Corporate Compliance Committee is responsible for reviewing corporate compliance 

issues on both a systems level and an individual provider level to determine whether there 

are changes that the Center needs to make to ensure compliance with rules and laws 

related to ethics, service, and/or billing.  To fulfill its responsibility, the committee will: 

 Provide oversight of the Center’s Corporate Compliance Program. 

 Review results of external audits and make recommendations for corrective 

actions (i.e. changes to policies and procedures, staff training) as necessary to 

assure compliance with federal funding rules. 

 Coordinate information and actions with the QUM Committee.  

 Review findings of any Corporate Compliance investigations. 

 Assure that staff are provided with education regarding corporate compliance 

issues at least quarterly. 

 Evaluate the Chargemaster Review, which is completed by the Grid Review Team 

at least annually. 

 Review Corporate Compliance Programs of Tri-County’s large contractors who 

do not wish to participate in the Tri-County Compliance Program. 

39



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 14 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 Review the Corporate Compliance Action Plan at least annually to determine if 

modification or additions are needed. 

 Report all Corporate Compliance allegations, findings, and dispositions (e.g. 

increased employee training, termination of employment, corrected 

billing/financial reports) to the Board of Trustees on at least a quarterly basis. 

 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Planning Network Advisory Committee 

(IDDPNAC): 

The purpose of the IDDPNAC is to advise the Board of Trustees on planning, budget, 

and contract issues, as well as the needs and priorities for the service area.  Members are 

appointed by the Board of Trustees and represent persons with IDD.  The IDDPNAC is 

charged with providing input on local needs, best value, and local planning.  One member 

of the IDDPNAC is asked to sit on the RPNAC for the East Texas Behavioral Healthcare 

Network.  The IDDPNAC is composed of nine members, at least 50% of which are 

individuals served, or family members of persons with IDD.  Staff from Tri-County 

serves as ex-officio members of the IDDPNAC to provide support and information, as 

necessary and appropriate, for the IDDPNAC to conduct its business.  Ex-officio 

members have a voice but no vote at IDDPNAC meetings.  Tri-County will replace 

IDDPNAC members within 3 months of their leave.  The IDDPNAC is always given the 

opportunity to make recommendations to the Board through the Director of Quality 

Management and Support.  The responsibilities of the IDDPNAC include, but are not 

limited to: 

 Advising the Board of Trustees on planning, budgeting, and contract issues, as 

well as the needs and priorities in Tri-County’s service area. 

 Obtaining stakeholder input on service needs and delivery, and presenting this 

information to the Board of Trustees and the Executive Director. 

 Assisting with annual recognition of Tri-County volunteers, and with patron and 

Center advocacy projects. 

 Reviewing and providing input on the local plan. 

 Assisting in promoting Tri-County in the community through education efforts, 

presentations, and contact with key community and political leaders.    

 Meeting at least quarterly. 

 Providing an annual report to the Board of Trustees.   

 

Regional Planning Network Advisory Committee (RPNAC): 

Tri-County, as a member of ETBHN, collaborates with member Centers for the provision 

of certain administrative support.  ETBHN formed the RPNAC to be made up of at least 

one (1) IDDPNAC member from each ETBHN member Center (although it can be as 

many as two from each Center).  At least one of Tri-County’s IDDPNAC members, the 

Administrator of Quality Management, and the Rights Protection Officer, attends the 

quarterly RPNAC meetings.  Tri-County IDDPNAC members who are on the RPNAC, 

Management Team staff, and Quality Management staff work with other ETBHN Centers 

to meet the following goals: 

40



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 15 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

 To assure that the ETBHN network of providers will continuously improve the 

quality of services provided to all consumers through prudent mediation by 

network leadership. 

 To continuously activate mechanisms to proactively evaluate efforts to improve 

clinical outcomes and practices. 

 To maintain a process by which unacceptable outcomes, processes, and practices 

can be identified. 

 To facilitate Best Value Determinations and Service Evaluations; evaluations 

shall take place one service at a time, as determined by the Regional Oversight 

Committee (ROC).  ETBHN will collect and compile data and distribute it to 

member Centers. 

 

 

ORGANIZATIONAL MEASUREMENT, ASSESSMENT AND IMPROVEMENT 
 

Measuring, Assessing, and Improving the Accuracy of Data Reported by the Local 

Authority: 

Tri-County continues to work on perfecting the data that is used for measurement of our 

activities.  Our focus remains to identify areas of weakness and ensure that improvements 

are made when necessary.  Tri-County employs specific staff who work to ensure that the 

mapping of our internal procedure codes to the state grid code is correct.  Our staff is 

dedicated to re-evaluating and adjusting our system to improve its efficiency, as 

necessary.  Tri-County batches encounter data to the state on a daily basis so that reports 

from the DADS data warehouse can be used daily for monitoring our progress toward 

meeting performance measures.  Each day, selected staff review encounter data warnings 

so that corrections can be made in Tri-County’s clinical system that might affect batching 

accuracy.  Data entries completed by clinical staff are monitored to ensure accountability 

of the accuracy of service data.  Additionally, Tri-County staff are doing the following 

activities: 

 CARE reports used for monitoring performance are sent to JUM members, as 

well as program managers, for review. 

 The billing department has begun monitoring weekly service reports.  In this 

review, staff review billing for possible billing errors.   

 The billing department looks for diagnosis errors as a part of their weekly billing 

review. 

 Monthly billing suspense reports are provided to clinical staff to correct billing 

errors.   

 

Internal Program Review Process: 

One of Tri-County’s self-assessment initiatives is the Program Review process.  The 

Administrator of Quality Management, assisted by other Quality Management staff, 

completes this process.  This internal auditing process looks at each program’s 

compliance with the contract and applicable standards.  Program outcomes (including 

41



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 16 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

program manuals and program descriptions), quality and satisfaction endeavors, progress 

toward meeting DADS Performance Measures, financial reports, personnel development, 

and compliance with the Health Insurance Portability Accountability Act (HIPAA) are 

measured in this process.  Chart audits, interviews with program staff, interviews with the 

program manager, inspection of the facilities, review of consumer satisfaction surveys, 

and review of the program manual are all a part of this process. A defined scoring 

criterion is established to determine each program’s score; this score then determines the 

rating level that the program receives.  The program score is used to measure progress 

from one year to the next, as well as for comparison within the Center.  Documentation 

and chart review tools used in this audit are developed from the Performance Contract, 

relevant Texas Administrative Code, and other State regulations, as applicable. The tools 

will continue to be changed as necessary to ensure we are measuring compliance with the 

most current standards and guidelines.  A result of each program review audit is shared 

with the program manager who makes a plan of correction, if necessary, and submits it to 

the Administrator of Quality Management.  A final report is generated and presented to 

the Management Team.  The Center’s QUM Committee also reviews the results of each 

IDD program review audit. 

 

Satisfaction Survey: 

Satisfaction surveys are completed as part of the Center’s self-assessment process.  Each 

program has developed its own questionnaire and distributes it to their consumers at least 

quarterly.  The results are used to make reasonable changes to the program.  The HCS 

program continues to complete customer service surveys as required by the HCS program 

standards.  The Department of Aging and Disability Services HCS survey team reviews 

the results of these surveys during their annual program review.  Results of satisfaction 

surveys are also reviewed during the program review process to ensure that any problem 

areas have been resolved.  

 

Stakeholder Involvement and Input: 

External service providers and other stakeholders will receive information through 

meetings.  One example of this is the Partnership for Quality Improvement (PQI), which 

is a meeting between Tri-County staff and staff from a contract agency.  This meeting is 

used to exchange information, discuss any problems, and review data.  Tri-County staff 

are involved in community meetings so issues including quality can be addressed.  Area 

organizations in which Tri-County participates include the Community Resource 

Coordinating Group (CRCG), Montgomery County Homeless Coalition, United Way, 

United Way Funded Partners, Disaster Recovery Committee, United Way Disaster 

Recovery Task Force, Conroe Rotary Club, Montgomery County Disaster Assistance 

Planning Committee, HCS Advisory Committee, the local Intellectual and 

Developmental Disabilities Planning Network Advisory Committee (IDDPNAC), 

Regional Planning Network Advisory Committee (RPNAC), the Cleveland Advisory 

Board, Healthcare Alliance of Montgomery County, and three jail diversion task force 

groups.  Participating in these groups enables Tri-County staff to network and collaborate 

with representatives from other area agencies. 

42



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 17 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

We continue to strive to engage individuals served, their families, providers, advocates, 

local officials, volunteers, staff, and the general public in planning initiatives. 

Information needed to ensure Tri-County identifies community values, service needs, and 

priorities for the persons in the Department of Aging and Disability Services (DADS) 

priority population is obtained in many different ways.  Networking and collaborating 

with community agencies, as well as distribution of surveys to obtain stakeholder input, 

have helped us to identify service gaps and priorities.  

Tri-County’s Home and Community Based Services program (HCS) has an advisory 

committee that meets at least quarterly and is composed of individuals served, legally 

authorized representatives (LARs) of individuals served, community representatives, and 

family members. The goal of this committee is to assist the program provider to perform 

the following activities: 

 Evaluating and addressing the satisfaction of individuals served, or legally 

authorized representatives (LAR) of individuals served, with the program 

provider’s services. 

 Soliciting, addressing, and reviewing complaints from individuals served or their 

LAR’s about the operations of the program. 

 Reviewing all allegations of abuse, neglect, and exploitation alleged to have been 

committed by program provider personnel against individuals and the program 

provider’s practices for preventing the occurrence or reoccurrence of abuse, 

neglect, and exploitation. 

 Participating in a continuous quality improvement review of the program 

provider’s operations and offering recommendations for improvement for action 

by the program provider as necessary. 

In addition to the information staff receive through networking and collaboration, our 

Center developed a survey to obtain information from our stakeholders to determine what 

Tri-County could do to improve specific IDD services or supports, the types of education 

the community would like Tri-County to provide, services the Center does not currently 

provide that are deemed as beneficial to the community, additional comments,  overall 

satisfaction with Tri-County, and feedback on the transition impact of IDD services into 

managed care.  The survey was developed by the Administrator of Quality Management, 

the members of the agency’s Quality Management Committee, and the members of the 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Planning Network Advisory Committee 

(IDDPNAC).  These stakeholder surveys were hand-delivered and mailed to individuals 

served, families, community agencies, healthcare organizations, schools, and 

governmental entities. These surveys were also given to members of the CRCG and the 

IDDPNAC, with the request to complete them and to distribute to other stakeholders to 

complete.  Details on the results of this survey effort can be found in the Center’s 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Local Plan. 

 

Clinical Records Review: 

43



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 18 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

The Program Review process also looks at clinical records.  This process is a structured 

approach to reflect standard and contract compliance and the quality and quantity of a 

program’s clinical records.  This internal auditing process helps programs achieve better 

overall quality of clinical records.  Periodically, the QUM Committee will also review 

clinical records. 

 

Corporate Compliance: 

Tri-County continues to implement and monitor initiatives that are outlined in the 

Center’s Corporate Compliance Action Plan.  Corporate Compliance training is part of 

the new employee orientation.  All employees and the Board of Trustees receive annual 

training on Corporate Compliance.  Mandatory training helps protect the Board of 

Trustees, employees of all levels, and contractors against the negative consequences of 

federal healthcare fraud and abuse.  The Corporate Compliance Procedure requires that 

the Center develop an improved culture of sensitivity and awareness of federal funding 

requirements and compliance obligations.  All Corporate Compliance allegations are 

investigated and, if needed, corrective action is taken.  Corporate Compliance training 

issues are discussed with employees by their supervisor on a quarterly basis.  An 

executive level staff member continues to be the Corporate Compliance Officer and the 

Corporate Compliance Committee meets at least quarterly. 

To ensure compliance with the Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (DRA), Tri-County has 

modified our Corporate Compliance Program to include the following: 

 The Corporate Compliance Policy has been revised to include: 

o Reference to the Corporate Compliance Action Plan as the guide for 

Corporate Compliance activities in the Center. 

o Requirement that that training includes information on: 

 The Federal False Claims Act 

 The State Medicaid False Claims Act 

 Qui Tam 

 The Corporate Compliance Action Plan was developed to guide the activities of 

the Corporate Compliance Program at Tri-County.  

 The Community Based Services Agreement was modified to specify that 

contractors with Tri-County had to either: 

o Participate in the Tri-County Compliance program, or 

o Provide their Corporate Compliance information to our committee for 

review and approval. 

 The Corporate Compliance Training was revised to reflect all changes. 

 The Agency Employee Handbook was revised to reflect all Corporate Compliance 

Program changes. 

 

Staff Development: 

To ensure the provision of quality services, Tri-County staff receive on-going training.   

Training is provided to staff using various media.  In addition to computer based training, 

44



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 19 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

the Training Department also provides a variety of face-to-face trainings.  Included in this 

training is a Corporate Compliance training review. 

As program managers have identified problems or potential problems in their 

departments, the Training Department has developed specific computer based training 

modules, as well as provided face-to-face training to the program staff.  The training 

department has taken on a very proactive collaborative approach to improving the 

competencies of direct service program staff, which improves the quality of services they 

provide to the individuals with whom they work. 

For supervisors, we have a required a half-day supervisor training bi-annually, given and 

developed by The Management Team; ongoing optional supervisory trainings provided 

by the Training Department, and; annual supervisory training by the Texas Council of 

Risk Management. 

Tri-County staff may also receive training from the Texas Council Risk Management 

Fund and other regional and statewide conferences.  The Training Department ensures 

that all staff are current on their training and no lapse occurs.  Tri-County ensures that 

professional clinical staff’s licensing and credentials are current.  Tri-County is 

committed to on-going professional training and provides a variety of experts to provide 

training on such topics as cultural diversity, customer service, responsible care, best 

practices, and teaching strategies for persons with intellectual and developmental 

disabilities and mental illness. 

 

 

Rights, Abuse/Neglect, Safety, and Health Data: 

Rights related issues, as well as abuse and neglect information, is tracked, reviewed, and 

reported on a regular basis through the Rights Protection Officer.  Tri-County safeguards 

the health and safety of individuals served, families, and staff through the ongoing 

monitoring and reporting of critical incidents, medication errors, infection control events, 

maintenance, and safety reports.  The QUM Committee reviews the Critical Incident 

Reporting (CIR) data quarterly, looking for trends in all aspects of the data.  If trends are 

found, improvement plans are requested from the appropriate program.  The Safety 

Committee reviews those incidents involving maintenance and safety issues.  The 

Management Team reviews these reports at least quarterly and takes remedial action as 

appropriate.  Complaints are tracked through all levels of the organization, and each 

complaint continues to be tracked until it is resolved. 

When an allegation is confirmed by the Rights Protection Officer, the Administrator of 

Utilization and Risk Management and the appropriate program manager determine what 

the Center can do to keep incidents from happening again.  Occasionally, staff have 

received more in-depth, face-to-face training on topics such as positive behavior 

management, customer service, and abuse and neglect.  Often these trainings are 

customized for other programs in an attempt to proactively reduce the incidents of abuse, 

neglect, and exploitation before it occurs. 

45



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 20 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

All individuals served or their legally authorized representatives (LARs) will be provided 

information on all available providers of IDD services in the area, including the State 

Schools, and will be informed of all choices.  No efforts will be undertaken to persuade 

families to choose one option over the other. 

 

 

PLAN FOR REDUCING CONFIRMED INSTANCES OF ABUSE AND NEGLECT 

 

On a quarterly basis, the Rights Protection Officer presents information relevant to abuse 

and neglect of persons served.  This data includes not only confirmed allegations, but also 

unconfirmed and inconclusive allegations.  The data are reviewed and analyzed by the 

QUM Committee for trends or patterns involving particular programs, certain staff or 

persons served.  If trends or patterns are identified, recommendations for improvements 

are made, and improvement plans are requested if necessary.  Tri-County QM 

Department staff  have worked closely with the providers to assist with increased staff 

training to include documented annual updates in all training areas for new employees, as 

well as for current employees.  The Safety Committee also reviews the data to determine 

any trends or patterns related to safety and makes necessary recommendations. 

Tri-County continues its efforts to safeguard the well-being of the individuals they serve.  

The 1-800 line routed directly to the Rights Protection Officer continues to be a helpful 

tool to both individuals served and staff.  Individuals served may stay in touch with the 

Rights Protection Officer without having to make a long distance phone call.  Although 

the 1-800 line is picked up by voicemail after hours, the Rights Protection Officer 

instructs consumers in her message on how to reach the Department of Family and 

Protective Services (DFPS) 1-800 line in cases of abuse, neglect, or exploitation.  If 

DFPS is contacted about potential abuse, neglect, or exploitation, they will contact the 

Rights Protection Officer on a pager which is on 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.  If the 

individual served seeks an operator after hours by pressing zero during the voicemail 

message, instructions are given on how to contact our after-hours crisis service.  We 

continue to pursue a diligent education program on how to exercise rights and contact the 

Rights Protection Officer, as well as the Department of Family and Protective Services, 

when there is a need.  We ask that each department include a small portion of Rights 

Training in their staff meetings on a regular basis. 

In identifying improvement opportunities, it is important to note the significance of 

quality staff training.  Our staff gets both face-to-face and computer based training upon 

date of hire, with strict completion dates.  Retraining in these areas continue on an annual 

basis via computer based and face-to-face training.  In addition, the Rights Protection 

Officer may conduct training with specific program staff as needed. 

Additionally, the QM Department has face-to-face interviews with program staff during 

the program review process of each department to ensure that staff members are 

knowledgeable in reporting rights, abuse, neglect, and exploitation issues.  During the 

review, each facility is checked to ensure that proper information on how to contact the 

46



 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities    Page 21 of 21 

Quality Management Plan, FY 2015-2016 

Rights Protection Officer and the DFPS is posted with easy to understand instructions on 

how to utilize the information. 

The Center continues to focus on best hiring practices in order to reduce the turnover rate 

of our employees.  Significant efforts to retain staff continue to be explored and utilized 

when financially viable for the Center, including pay increases, higher quality health 

insurance, and increases in our match of retirement funds.  The Center continues in its 

commitment to seek and identify new ways to provide quality services to individuals with 

resources that are available.  

 

 

REVIEWING AND UPDATING THE IDD QM PLAN 

 

The IDD QM Plan will be reviewed as needed by the Administrator of Quality 

Management and potential changes will be discussed with at least one Management Team 

staff.  At least every 2 years, the QM Plan is re-evaluated for its effectiveness.  If the plan 

is not determined to be effective, new activities including intensified monitoring efforts, 

re-assignment of staff, and/or the appointment of additional committees or improvement 

teams will be considered.  The IDD QM Plan is reviewed and approved every 2 years by 

the Board of Trustees.  This plan will be amended, as needed, if any portion of the plan is 

modified or discontinued. 

47



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Community Resources Report 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Community Resources Report 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

48



Community Resources Report 
May 23, 2014 – July 24, 2014 

 

Volunteer Hours: 
Location May June 

Conroe 134 191.5 

Cleveland 5 1 

Liberty 126.5 5.5 

Huntsville 14 113.5 

Total 279.5 311.5 
 

 

COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES: 
5/23/14 Women of Distinction Luncheon The Woodlands 

5/27/14 Hispanic Outreach Professional Enrichment (H.O.P.E.) The Woodlands 

5/31/14 Emergency Preparedness Fair Conroe 

6/2/14 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

6/5/14 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

6/5/14 Walker County Community Resource Coordination Group Huntsville 

6/5/14 Disaster Behavioral Health Regional Meeting Houston 

6/6/14 Region 2 1115 Waiver Meeting League City 

6/10/14 Montgomery County CARES Meeting Conroe 

6/10/14 Montgomery County Managed Assigned Counsel Board Meeting Conroe 

6/11/14 Roots of Change Coalition Conroe 

6/12/14 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

6/17/14 Walker County Child Fatality Review Team Meeting Huntsville  

6/17/14 Liberty County Child Fatality Review Team Meeting Liberty 

6/17/14 Montgomery County Community Resource Coordination Group Conroe 

6/19/14 Up2You Coalition Huntsville 

7/3/14 Walker County Community Resource Coordination Group Huntsville 

7/3/14 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

7/7/14 Montgomery County Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

7/8/14 Walker County Budget Hearing Huntsville 

7/9/14 Roots of Change Coalition Conroe 

7/11/14 Region 2 1115 Waiver Behavioral Health Summit Galveston 

7/15/14 Montgomery County Community Resource Coordination Group Conroe 

7/17/14 Walker County Child Fatality Review Team Meeting Huntsville 

7/17/14 Up2You Coalition Huntsville 

UPCOMING ACTIVITIES:   

8/1-8/3/14 Burnham Classic Golf Tournament Liberty 

8/4/14 Montgomery Homeless Coalition Meeting Conroe 

8/7/14 Cleveland Chamber of Commerce Luncheon Cleveland 

8/14/14 Huntsville Chamber of Commerce Breakfast Huntsville 

8/18/14 Youth Mental Health First Aid Training – San Jacinto Elementary Conroe 

8/26/14 Disaster Response Training Houston 
 49



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Consumer Services Reports for May and June 2014 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Consumer Services Reports for May and June 2014 

 
Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

50



Consumer Services Report 
May 2014 

 

Consumer Services 
Montgomery 

County 
Cleveland Liberty 

Walker 
County 

Total 

Crisis Services, MH Adults/Children 

Persons Screened, Intakes, Other Crisis Services 447 31 37 52 567 

Crisis and Transitional Services (LOC  0, LOC 5) 45 3 5 1 54 

Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) Served 54 4 0 3 61 

Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) Bed Days 297 21 0 14 332 

Contract Hospital Admissions 6 0 1 1 8 

Diversion Admits 13 1 1 4 19 

Total State Hospital Admissions 2 0 0 1 3 

 
Routine Services, MH Adults/Children 

Adult Service Packages (LOC 1m,1s,2,3,4) 965 119 92 131 1307 

Adult Medication Services 624 57 68 88 837 

Child Service Packages (LOC 1-4 and YC) 331 30 11 40 412 

Child Medication Services 145 12 6 10 173 

TCOOMMI (Adult Only) 99 8 5 10 122 

Adult Jail Diversions 8 0 0 0 8 

 
Persons Served by Program, IDD 

Number of New Enrollments for IDD Services 6 0 0 0 6 

Service Coordination 470 22 48 59 599 

 
Persons Enrolled in Programs, IDD 

Center Waiver Services (HCS, Supervised Living, TxHmL) 38 7 18 22 102 

Contractor Provided ICF-MR 18 12 11 6 47 

 
Substance Abuse Services 

Children and Youth Prevention Services 119 156 0 13 288 

Youth Substance Abuse Treatment Services/COPSD 17 0 0 1 18 

Adult Substance Abuse Treatment Services/COPSD 24 0 0 0 24 

 
Waiting/Interest Lists as of Month End 

Department of State Health Services-Adults 0 0 1 0 1 

Department of State Health Services-Children 0 0 0 0 0 

Home and Community Based Services Interest List 1395 112 126 131 1764 

 
May Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1271 128 123 171 1693 

Child Mental Health Services 353 32 12 49 446 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 543 42 62 66 713 

Total Served by County 2167 202 197 286 2852 

 
April Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1332 130 116 181 1759 

Child Mental Health Services 346 26 11 40 423 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 523 43 63 66 695 

Total Served by County 2201 199 190 287 2877 

 
March Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1221 134 124 173 1652 

Child Mental Health Services 323 22 14 39 398 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 516 44 62 64 686 

Total Served by County 2060 200 200 276 2736 

 

51



Consumer Services Report 
June 2014 

 

Consumer Services 
Montgomery 

County 
Cleveland Liberty 

Walker 
County 

Total 

Crisis Services, MH Adults/Children      

Persons Screened, Intakes, Other Crisis Services 435 37 39 47 558 

Crisis and Transitional Services (LOC 0, LOC 5) 45 0 2 0 47 

Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) Served 60 3 2 3 68 

Psychiatric Emergency Treatment Center (PETC) Bed Days 354 16 9 16 395 

Contract Hospital Admissions 15 0 1 2 18 

Diversion Admits 13 0 0 3 16 

Total State Hospital Admissions 9 0 0 1 10 

 
Routine Services, MH Adults/Children 

Adult Service Packages (LOC 1m,1s,2,3,4) 1000 125 99 133 1357 

Adult Medication Services 667 62 57 64 850 

Child Service Packages (LOC 1-4 and YC) 334 34 11 38 417 

Child Medication Services 171 18 2 14 205 

TCOOMMI (Adult Only) 100 8 5 13 126 

Adult Jail Diversions 7 0 0 0 7 

 
Persons Served by Program, IDD 

Number of New Enrollments for IDD Services 10 0 0 0 10 

Service Coordination 485 26 48 66 625 

 
Persons Enrolled in Programs, IDD 

Center Waiver Services (HCS, Supervised Living, TxHmL) 46 5 23 28 102 

Contractor Provided ICF-MR 17 12 11 6 46 

 
Substance Abuse Services 

Children and Youth Prevention Services 119 156 0 13 288 

Youth Substance Abuse Treatment Services/COPSD 17 0 0 0 17 

Adult Substance Abuse Treatment Services/COPSD 25 0 0 2 27 

 
Waiting/Interest Lists as of Month End 

Department of State Health Services-Adults 0 0 0 0 0 

Department of State Health Services-Children 0 0 0 0 0 

Home and Community Based Services Interest List 1414 114 127 131 1786 

 
June Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1309 132 119 175 1735 

Child Mental Health Services 334 34 14 42 424 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 555 49 63 70 737 

Total Served by County 2198 215 196 287 2896 

 
May Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1271 128 123 171 1693 

Child Mental Health Services 353 32 12 49 446 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 543 42 62 66 713 

Total Served by County 2167 202 197 286 2852 

 
April Served by County 

Adult Mental Health Services 1332 130 116 181 1759 

Child Mental Health Services 346 26 11 40 423 

Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities Services 523 43 63 66 695 

Total Served by County 2201 199 190 287 2877 

 

52



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Program Updates 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Program Updates 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

53



Program Updates 
May 23, 2014 – July 24, 2014 

MH Crisis Services 

1. Substance abuse education activities have been added to the PETC day program. 
2. Position descriptions were written for the Intensive Evaluation and Diversion program.  

The positions have been posted and we will begin interviewing prospective candidates 
soon.  This program’s anticipated start date is September 1st. 

3. Our Mobile Crisis Outreach Team currently has two vacancies.   
4. Judge Thomas Chambers of Liberty County called a meeting to discuss issues regarding 

the crisis service system in Liberty County.  The Judge invited staff from the Mental 
Health Division of the Harris County Constable’s Office and representatives of their 
Mental Health Court. An executive workgroup will be formed to address the crisis 
service issues in Liberty County. 

 

MH Adult Services 

1. The mental health waiting list for adults and children was officially dissolved.  
2. One of our mental health outpatient psychiatrists resigned and her last day was July 

15th; however, she has agreed to contract for on-call work.  A Locum Tenens prescriber 
has been contracted with for coverage at the medication clinic.  

3. A prescriber contracted through ETBHN has agreed to add an extra day for intake visits 
on Friday via televideo.  

4. The 1115-Integrated Healthcare program is up and running.  We have over 200 clients 
waiting for a scheduled appointment.  Currently, prescriber services are being provided 
by an Advanced Practitioner RN who also works at the PETC.  We are still seeking a 
part-time physician for the program.  

 

MH Child Services 

1. We are in the midst of our S.O.A.R. summer day camp for eligible children on our 
mental health caseload.  This year, we have two 20-day sessions that provide the 
campers with the opportunity to participate in daily groups and skills training. 

2. Our C&A rehab staff and licensed clinicians have thus far been better able to keep the 
children and youth engaged in services during the summer months.    

 

Criminal Justice Services 

1. TCOOMMI caseloads remain above the contracted minimum of 110. 
2. The Outpatient Competency Restoration (OCR) program had a site visit from DSHS 

Courtney Heard, which went very well.  
3. Jail diversion efforts have intensified to increase the amount of diversions granted and 

decrease jail population. 
4. There was one individual admitted to OCR in June to make a total of ten served for FY 

2014. The annual OCR target is 15.  
 

54



Substance Abuse Services 

1. The Adult Substance Abuse Treatment programs have started two new marketing 
campaigns to generate increased referrals. We have been asked to speak at agency in-
service meetings with Montgomery County Emergency Assistance and Montgomery 
County Women’s Center.      

2. The Youth Substance Abuse Treatment program is receiving a large number of internal 
referrals from child mental health services.    

3. The Youth Substance Abuse Prevention program is busy with summer programming.  
We have prevention skills groups at the Boys and Girls Club in Huntsville and at our 
own S.O.A.R. summer day camp. We have also formed two groups that meet weekly at 
our RP location.  
   

IDD Services 

1. The local authority received 84 Texas Home Living slots and ten HCS slots. 
2. The IDD Accelerated Community Treatment (ACT) program is currently working with 

ten individuals. 
3. Individuals are experiencing issues with maintaining their Medicaid eligibility. It appears 

to be due to the increase in paperwork requirements. One individual can receive up to 
four different packets each year that can be overwhelming to complete.  

4. Individuals have started to receive their packets to select Managed Care Company to go 
into effect September 1, 2014. 
 

Support Information   

1. Veteran Affairs: Our Veteran Services Liaison has resigned and interviews for a 
replacement are currently underway.      

2. Planning Network Advisory Committees (PNACs): The MHPNAC met on May 21st 
and the IDDPNAC on June 4th to discuss a date to schedule Youth Mental Health First 
Aid Training (YMHFA).  Staff will be providing the training on two Saturdays in August 
for those PNAC members who are interested in learning more about how adults can 
assist youth in our community who may be in the early stages of developing a mental 
health problem or who may be experiencing a mental health crisis. 

 

55



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  FY 2014 Goals and Objectives Progress Report 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Board of Trustees and Management Team met on July 13, 2013 for the annual 
strategic planning retreat and to develop the goals for FY 2014.  Goals were discussed and 
a consensus was reached.  Subsequently, the Management Team developed objectives for 
each of the goals.  These goals are in addition to the contractual requirements of the 
Center’s contracts with the Department of State Health Services and the Department of 
Aging and Disability Services.  
 
The Board also requested that quarterly progress reports be presented as a “year-to-date 
summary.” 
 
This report shows progress through the 3rd Quarter of FY 2014. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
FY 2014 Goals and Objectives Progress Report 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

56



Goals & Objectives FY 2014 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

Year-to-Date Progress Report 

September 1, 2013 – May 31, 2014 

Goal #1 – Community Awareness 

Objective #1 
Form a committee, which includes staff and one Board liaison, to identify three/four 
options for a new organizational name and logo for Tri-County Services by January 31, 
2014. 

 After a review of names used by community centers around the nation and a survey 
taken by staff and stakeholders, staff recommended ‘Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare’ 
as the new name for the Center.  

 Logos for the 39 community centers were evaluated by the Management Team. The 
committee has contacted two of the four organizations which developed the logos that 
the Management Team liked most.  

 The committee has reviewed basic questions like logo color and design features that we 
would like to include.  

 With the departure of Sandy Kelly, Public Information Coordinator, who was 
spearheading this activity, there has been some delay in interviewing the other two 
organizations.  After interviewing these organizations, one will be selected to begin logo 
development.  

Objective #2 
Present options for a new organizational name and logo to the Board of Trustees for 
approval by February 28, 2014. 

 Staff requested potential organizational names from Tri-County staff and compiled a list 
of five names for the Board to review. 

 On April 24, 2014, the Board approved the recommendation to select ‘Tri-County 
Behavioral Healthcare/Health Care’ as the DBA name for Tri-County MHMR Services 
contingent upon approval and further investigation conducted by the Executive 
Director.  

 Center attorneys have suggested that Tri-County should officially change their name to 
‘Tri-County Behavioral Healthcare’ rather than file another doing-business-as name.  
This would require approval by the three Commissioners’ Courts. 

57



Goals & Objectives FY 2014 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Objective #3 
Develop marketing materials related to the new organizational name and logo by April 
30, 2014. 

 There have been a series of discussions about marketing materials that will be used 
when the name and logo is changed.  This will be an activity for the Public Information 
Coordinator that will be hired to replace Sandy Kelly.   

Objective #4 
Market the new organizational name to area stakeholders during the fourth quarter of 
FY 2014. 

 Without the name and logo finalized, we were not able to work on this Objective during 
the third quarter.  However, we have been planning marketing activities.  

Objective #5 
During Tri-County’s Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (IDD) Local Planning, 
distribute information and answer questions about Senate Bill 7 and the impact on 
IDD Services. 

 There were guests at the IDD Planning Network Advisory Committee to discuss Senate 
Bill 7 and the impact on the community.   

 Staff attended state meetings to learn more about Managed Care for persons with IDD 
under Senate Bill 7.  

 A total of nine meetings were held during the IDD Local Planning process between April 
15th and May 1st. The IDD Local Plan for FY 2015-2016 was drafted for approval by the 
Board. 

Goal #2 – Technology  

Objective #1 
Develop a technology improvement plan by January 31, 2014. 

 A consultant, Jerry Carnley, was hired and will develop a technology improvement plan 
with the assistance of Tri-County’s IT Director.   

 Jerry has reviewed the IT Department’s staffing pattern and hardware and is preparing a 
set of recommendations for the Management Team.  

Objective #2 
Identify two technological improvements from the improvement plan which can be 
implemented by the end of FY 2014. 

 A series of potential priorities were discussed by IT staff and the Management Team 
members, but we have delayed implementation as we await the consultant’s report.  

58



Goals & Objectives FY 2014 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Goal #3 – Funding  

Objective #1 
Hire a consultant to advise the Management Team about fundraising activities which 
will generate revenue for the Center by January 31, 2014. 

 Four fundraising consultants were interviewed by Sandy Kelly. 

 The consultants felt that it would be better to start off with smaller fundraising activities 
before attempting a gala or other major event. 

Objective #2 
Present options for fundraisers to the Board of Trustees for input and approval by 
June 1, 2014. 

 Several of the Management Team members have been involved in discussing public 
relations events which would target certain populations (e.g. parents of IDD consumers, 
families and friends of persons who committed suicide, etc.).  The plan would be to seek 
sponsors/underwriters who would provide funding for these events.  We would hope to 
cover costs initially but eventually plan to develop these types of events into bigger 
fundraising opportunities.  

Objective #3 
Develop new relationships with at least two new businesses in our service area and 
seek their involvement in fundraising activities. 

  No activity on this Objective in the third quarter. 

Goal #4 – Staffing 

Objective #1 
Identify key positions by agency department for additional training and leadership 
opportunities by November 30, 2013. 

 Key positions were identified by management and several training opportunities were 
offered to these individuals. 

Objective #2 
Establish at least four training opportunities for these staff by August 31, 2014. 

 National Council Leadership Development Training 

 Mental Health First Aid Training  

 Texas Council Risk Management Fund Supervisor Training  

 Peer Support Training  

59



Goals & Objectives FY 2014 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

Goal #5 – Facilities 

Objective #1 
Hire a consultant to assist a committee, which includes one staff and one Board 
liaison, in the development of a plan to move toward the creation of a consolidated 
service location for Montgomery County and the City of Liberty by February 28, 2014.  

 Staff identified potential consultants in the first quarter.  

 Brad Browder was appointed to the staff/Board committee that will be reviewing the 
consultant’s recommendations.  

 A consultant, Mike Duncum, was hired. Mr. Duncum has reviewed Center properties 
and he presented his initial findings to the Board of Trustees at the annual Board and 
Management Team Strategic Planning meeting on July 19th.  

Objective #2 
Create a strategy for the disposition of property currently owned by the Center by 
February 28, 2014. 

 Mr. Duncum is reviewing property and has developed a strategy for disposition of 
property that is currently owned by the Center.  This strategy was reviewed at the 
annual Board and Management Team Strategic Planning meeting on July 19th.  

 

60



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  3rd Quarter FY 2014 Corporate Compliance and 
Quality Management Report 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 
 

The Department of State Health Services’ Performance Contract has a requirement that the 
Quality Management Department provide “routine” reports to the Board of Trustees about 
“Quality Management Program activities.”   
 
Although Quality Management Program activities have been included in the program 
updates, it was determined that it might be appropriate, in light of this contract 
requirement, to provide more details regarding these activities. 
 
Since the Corporate Compliance Program and Quality Management Program activities are 
similar in nature, the decision was made to incorporate the Quality Management Program 
activities into the Quarterly Corporate Compliance Report to the Board and to format this 
item similar to the program updates.  The Corporate Compliance and Quality Management 
Report for the 3rd quarter of FY 2014 are included in this Board packet. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
3rd Quarter FY 2014 Corporate Compliance and Quality Management Report 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

61



 

 

Corporate Compliance and  
Quality Management Report 

3rd Quarter, FY 2014 
 

 

Corporate Compliance Activities 
 

A. Key Statistics: 
1. There was one (1) Corporate Compliance investigation in the 3rd quarter of FY 2014.  

This review was initiated after a supervisor noticed a steep increase in staff’s 
productivity that was inconsistent with previous performance.  This case is currently 
pending final review.  

2. Daily Compliance Reviews of documentation, based upon a random sample selection 
process, continue to be completed by the Quality Management Department in order 
to identify and address any compliance concerns prior to billing.       

 
B. Committee Activities: 

1. The Corporate Compliance Committee met on May 7, 2014 and reviewed the 
following: 

a. A summary of 2nd quarter Corporate Compliance investigations. 
b. A review of audits that were requested by various funding sources; and  
c. Legal updates on compliance issues including the Top Compliance Risk Areas 

for 2014 with regard to Community Behavioral Health Organizations 
(CBHO’s).  These areas include: 

i. HIPAA 
ii. Fraud 
iii. Employee and Contractor Screening; and 
iv. Federal Grants Management 

 
Quality Management Initiatives 
 

A. Key Statistics: 
1. Staff responded to (1) DSHS Initiative. 
2. Staff responded to three (3) record requests. 

 
B. Reviews/Audits: 

1. Staff reviewed, prepared, and submitted records requested from DSHS in 
preparation for a Statewide Comprehensive Mental Health and Substance Abuse 
review which took place on-site the week of April 7 – 11.   

2. Staff collected, reviewed, and submitted seven (7) records requested by Aetna. 
3. Staff collected, reviewed, and submitted twenty (20) records to MCHD related to an 

Office of the Inspector General Review. 
4. Staff collected, reviewed, and submitted eight (8) records requested by Medicaid. 

 
C. Internal Programs Reviewed by Quality Management: 

1. Staff completed the Crisis Services Program Review. 
2. Staff completed the Intake and LOC 2 (therapy) Program Review.  

62



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  4th Quarter FY 2014 Corporate Compliance Training 
 
 
Committee:  Program 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
As part of the Center’s Corporate Compliance Program, training is developed each quarter 
for distribution to staff by their supervisors. 
 
This training is included in the packet for ongoing education of the Tri-County Board of 
Trustees on Corporate Compliance issues.  

 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
4th Quarter FY 2014 Corporate Compliance Training 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

63



Page 1 of 2 

 

For more information on this topic go to:                     *   http://www.socialmedicine.org/2009/01/16/big-pharma/no-more-drug-    
                                                                                                    company-pens-a-trojan-horse/      

                                                                              http://oig.hhs.gov/fraud/docs/complianceguidance/042803pharmacymfgnonfr.pdf  
                                                                                                            http://oig.hhs.gov/ 
 

 

The Federal Anti-kickback Statute:  
How it relates to you as an employee of a Community Behavioral Health 

Organization (CBHO) 
4th Quarter, FY 2014 Corporate Compliance Training 

 
 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Anti-kickback Statute is a criminal prohibition against direct and indirect payments made 

with the purpose of inducing or rewarding the referral or generation of federal healthcare 

business.
 
 The statute extends equally to the solicitation or acceptance of payment for referrals. In 

addition to criminal penalties, violators may be subject to hefty fines and exclusion from federal 

healthcare programs.  

 

Although liability under the Anti-kickback Statute ultimately hinges on an individual’s intent, it 

is important to identify practices that may present significant potential for abuse. As a CBHO 

that is financed with federal healthcare dollars, Tri-County employees should examine 

remunerative relationships and understand when any aspect of such relationships may be 

violating the Anti-kickback Statute.  (Many health care funding mechanisms may include federal 

dollars even if they appear to be coming from another source (e.g. state Substance Abuse 

Treatment funding).  As a result, all health care funding at the Center should be considered 

federal for purposes of this Policy.) Any single component of an arrangement that induces or 

rewards referrals or recommendations of federal healthcare business is enough to violate the 

Anti-kickback law. Employees and agents should be aware that the anti-kickback statute 

prohibits in the health care industry some practices that are common in other business sectors. In 

short, practices that may be common or longstanding in other businesses are not necessarily 

acceptable or lawful when soliciting federal health care program business. 

 

Questions to ask when determining remunerative relationships: 
 Are free products and services offered/accepted to encourage their use? 

 Are free products and services offered/accepted to encourage a business arrangement 

with a federal healthcare business such as a CBHO? 

 Does the arrangement or practice have a potential to interfere with clinical decision-

making?  

 Has anything of value been offered to any individual in a position to make decisions 

about product selection or business affiliation related to the federal healthcare business? 

(this could include physicians or any other agency role charged with decision making 

surrounding business relationships) 

 Would acceptance of the remuneration diminish, or appear to diminish, the objectivity of 

professional judgment?  

 

Examples of Federal Anti-kickback Statute Violations in CBHOs: 
 A mental health caseworker is contacted by a Private Psychiatric Hospital who tells them 

that they will be paid for referral of clients to their hospital with Medicaid. 

 An IDD Service Coordinator or HCS service provider owns a portion of a durable 

medical goods company and refers their clients to this company to purchase supplies with 

Medicaid benefits. 

64



Page 2 of 2 

 

For more information on this topic go to:                     *   http://www.socialmedicine.org/2009/01/16/big-pharma/no-more-drug-    
                                                                                                    company-pens-a-trojan-horse/      

                                                                              http://oig.hhs.gov/fraud/docs/complianceguidance/042803pharmacymfgnonfr.pdf  
                                                                                                            http://oig.hhs.gov/ 
 

 

 A financial staff working at a CBHO is gifted tickets to a sporting event from a bank to 

entice them to come in and discuss a potential business arrangement. 

 A drug company comes on site to educate a small group of doctors and nurses about a 

new drug and while there provides branded pens and food to the rest of the staff who 

were not a part of the educational session  

(“As of January 1, 2009 - Providing items for healthcare professionals’ use that do not advance 
disease or treatment education — even if they are practice-related items of minimal value (such 
as pens, note pads, mugs and similar “reminder” items with company or product logos) — may 
foster misperceptions that company interactions with healthcare professionals are not based on 
informing them about medical and scientific issues. Such non-educational items should not be 
offered to healthcare professionals or members of their staff, even if they are accompanied by 
patient or physician educational materials.”) 

 

Remember, if the remuneration is intended to generate any federal health care business, it 

potentially violates the anti-kickback statute.  It is important that we encourage those we do 

business with to comply with the best practice guidelines to avoid any risk related to being found 

in violation of the Anti-kickback Statute. 

 

If you have questions or concerns about Corporate Compliance, talk with your supervisor or 

contact the Corporate Compliance Officer, Tanya Bryant, at: tanyab@tricountyservices.org or by 

phone at 936 521-6115.  

65

mailto:tanyab@tricountyservices.org


 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Appoint Nominating Committee for FY 2015 Board 
Officers 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Board Chair will select representatives for the Nominating Committee for FY 2015 Board 
Officers.  Typically, the committee is made up of three members and includes a 
representative from each county.  One of the members will also be designated to serve at 
the chair of the committee.  
 
The annual election of officers will occur at the August Board meeting. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Appoint Nominating Committee for FY 2015 Board Officers  
 

 

66



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Appoint Executive Director Evaluation Committee 
 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Board Chairman will select representatives for the FY 2014 Executive Director 
Evaluation Committee.  Typically, the committee has been made up of three members and 
includes a representative from each county.  One of the members will also be designated to 
serve at the chair of the committee.  
 
The results of the Executive Director Evaluation will be reviewed at the August Board 
meeting.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Appoint Executive Director Evaluation Committee 
 

 

67



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Board of Trustees Oath of Office 
 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Walker County Commissioner’s Court appointed Mr. Jacob Paschal to fill the unexpired 
term of Mr. Len George which will expire on August 31, 2014. Mr. Paschal will recite his 
oath of office at the Board meeting. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Oath of Office Recitation 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Recite Oath of Office 
 

 

68



69



                    

OATH OF OFFICE 
 

I, ___________________,  

do solemnly swear, 

that I will faithfully execute  

the duties of the office of Trustee 

of Tri-County Services, 

and will, to the best of my ability 

preserve, protect, and defend the Constitution 

and laws of the United States and of this State; 

and I furthermore solemnly swear 

that I have not directly nor indirectly, 

paid, offered, or promised to pay, 

contributed, nor promised to contribute 

any money, or valuable thing, 

or promised any public office or employment, 

as a reward for the giving or withholding a vote 

to secure my appointment, 

and further affirm that I, 

nor any company, association, or corporation 

of which I am an officer or principal 

will act as supplier of services or goods, 

nor bid or negotiate to supply 

such goods or services, for this Center, 

so help me God. 

70



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Personnel Reports for May and June 2014 
 
 
Committee:  Executive 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Personnel Reports for May and June 2014 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

71



TRI-COUNTY SERVICES

PERSONNEL BOARD REPORT

MAY 2014 

 VOLUNTARY INVOLUNTARY  MONTHLY YEARLY

STAFF    NEW HIRES SEPARATED SEPARATION SEPARATION BUDGETED FILLED TURNOVER TURNOVER

CLASSIFICATIONS MO. YTD. MO. YTD.   MO. YTD.   MO. YTD. POSITIONS POSITIONS  PERCENT PERCENT

Bachelor's

Qualified Mental Health Professionals 5 30 1 18 1 15 3 95 87 1% 19%

Qualified Developmental Disability 

Professionals (State Title) 1 5 1 1 21 20 0% 5%

Licensed Staff 6 1 1 17 17 0% 6%

Medical

     Physicians 1 1 1 9 6 0% 11%

    Advanced Practice Nurses 3 1 1 4 3 0% 25%

     RN's 3 1 1 14 13 0% 7%

     LVN's 2 13 10 0% 0%

Techs/Aides

     MH 3 4 1 1 20 17 0% 5%

     IDD 1 5 4 6 4 4 2 31 28 13% 19%

Supervisor/Manager           

     MH 1 3 3 16 16 0% 19%

     IDD 8 8 0% 0%

Program Support 12 7 4 3 44 40 0% 16%

Central Administration 2 1 3 1 2 1 21 19 5% 14%

Business Services 14 14 0% 0%

Maintenance/Janitorial/Lawn 1 2 1 2 1 1 1 23 20 4% 9%

GRAND TOTALS 11 76 7 45 7 34 0 11 350 318 2% 13%

72



TRI-COUNTY SERVICES

PERSONNEL BOARD REPORT

JUNE 2014

 VOLUNTARY INVOLUNTARY  MONTHLY YEARLY

STAFF    NEW HIRES SEPARATED SEPARATION SEPARATION BUDGETED FILLED TURNOVER TURNOVER

CLASSIFICATIONS MO. YTD. MO. YTD.   MO. YTD.   MO. YTD. POSITIONS POSITIONS  PERCENT PERCENT

Bachelor's

Qualified Mental Health Professionals 3 33 2 20 1 16 1 4 96 87 2% 21%

Qualified Developmental Disability 

Professionals (State Title) 5 1 1 22 20 0% 5%

Licensed Staff 6 1 1 17 17 0% 6%

Medical

     Physicians 1 1 1 9 6 0% 11%

    Advanced Practice Nurses 3 1 1 4 3 0% 25%

     RN's 3 1 1 14 13 0% 7%

     LVN's 1 3 14 11 0% 0%

Techs/Aides

     MH 4 1 1 20 17 0% 5%

     IDD 5 6 4 2 30 27 0% 20%

Supervisor/Manager           

     MH 1 3 3 15 15 0% 20%

     IDD 8 8 0% 0%

Program Support 1 13 3 10 1 5 2 5 43 40 7% 23%

Central Administration 1 3 3 2 1 21 19 0% 14%

Business Services 1 1 1 1 14 13 7% 7%

Maintenance/Janitorial/Lawn 1 3 2 4 1 2 1 2 23 20 9% 17%

GRAND TOTALS 7 83 8 53 4 38 4 15 350 316 2% 15%

73



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve May 2014 Financial Statements 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
May 2014 Financial Statements 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve May 2014 Financial Statements 
 

 

74



May 2014 Financial Summary 

Revenues for May 2014 were $2,178,424 and operating expenses were $2,161,453 
resulting in a gain in operation of $16,971.  Capital Expenditures and Extraordinary 
Expenses for May were $3,709 resulting in a gain of $13,263.  Total revenues were 
122.33% of the monthly budgeted revenues and total expenses were 132.35% of the 
monthly budgeted expenses. 
 
Year to date revenues are $18,830,919 and operating expenses are $18,393,723 leaving 
excess operating revenues of $437,196. YTD Capital Expenditures and Extraordinary 
Expenses are $152,392 resulting in a gain YTD of $284,804. Total revenues are 98.26% of 
the YTD budgeted revenues and total expenses are 97.88% of the YTD budgeted expenses 
 
REVENUES 
YTD Revenue items that are below the budget by more than $10,000: 

Revenue Source YTD 
Revenue 

YTD 
Budget 

% of 
Budget 

$ 
Variance 

DSHS – Gen Rev - NGM 491,020 529,418 92.74% 38,398 

 
 
DSHS – Gen Rev – NGM – This line item is under budget due to positions that are funded by 
NGM that had been vacant for the entire year. We anticipate using the lapsed funds for the 
Children’s Summer Camp program as we have done in previous years.  We have hired all 
the staff for the summer camp and camp is being provided as we speak. 
 
 
EXPENSES 
YTD Individual line expense items that exceed the YTD budget by more than $10,000: 

Expense Source YTD 
Expenses 

YTD 
Budget 

% of 
Budget 

$ 
Variance 

No items to report     

 
 
 

75



 TOTALS  COMBINED 
FUNDS 

 TOTALS  
COMBINED FUNDS Increase

May 2014 April 2014 (Decrease)
  

 ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS
Imprest Cash Funds 4,550                           4,550                      -                         
Cash on Deposit-General Fund 8,676,409                    9,370,950               (694,541)                
Cash on Deposit-Debt Fund -                              3,274                      (3,274)                    
Accounts Receivable 1,594,981                    1,902,178               (307,198)                
Inventory 9,093                           9,246                      (153)                       
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,285,033                  11,290,199             (1,005,167)             

FIXED ASSETS 5,730,985                    5,730,985               -                         

OTHER ASSETS 43,792                         37,016                    6,776                     

TOTAL ASSETS 16,059,810                17,058,201           (998,391)               

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED REVENUE, FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 837,119                       875,522                  (38,403)                  

NOTES PAYABLE 473,777                       473,777                  -                         

DEFERRED REVENUE 1,043,014                    2,022,432               (979,418)                

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
Line of Credit - Tradition Bank 963,631                       982,908                  (19,278)                  
Bond Series 2004 -                              -                          -                         

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES FOR
General Fund 284,804                       271,541                  13,263                   
Debt Service Fund -                              -                          -                         

FUND EQUITY
RESTRICTED
     Net Assets Reserved for Debt Service (963,631)                     (1,456,686)              493,055                 
     Reserved for Debt Retirement 963,631                       1,230,000               (266,369)                
COMMITTED
     Net Assets-Property and Equipment 5,730,985                    5,730,985               -                         
     Reserved for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement 387,871                       
     Reserved for Facility Improvement & Acquisitions 2,426,254                    
     Reserved for Board Initiatives 1,500,000                    
     Reserved for 1115 Waiver Programs 516,833                       
     Reserved for Board Policy Requirements -                              879,405                  (879,405)                
     Reserved for Equipment Reserve -                              354,290                  (354,290)                
     Reserved for Inventory Reserve -                              32,973                    (32,973)                  
     Reserved for Operations and Programs -                              2,046,849               (2,046,849)             
ASSIGNED
     Reserved for Workers' Compensation 274,409                       274,409                  -                         
     Reserved for Current Year Budgeted Reserve 55,499                         49,332                    6,167                     
     Reserved for Insurance Deductibles 100,000                       100,000                  -                         
     Reserved for  Accrued Paid Time Off (473,777)                     
UNASSIGNED
     Unrestricted and Undesignated 1,939,391                    3,190,463               (1,251,072)             
TOTAL LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE 16,059,810                17,058,201           (5,355,572)            

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of May 31, 2014

76



General 
Operating   Final

Funds May 2014 August 2013

 ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS
Imprest Cash Funds 4,550                    4,550                        5,325                  
Cash on Deposit-General Fund 8,676,409             8,676,409                 7,747,392           
Cash on Deposit-Debt Fund -                        -                            421,561              
Accounts Receivable 1,594,981             1,594,981                 1,657,784           
Inventory 9,093                    9,093                        6,661                  
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 10,285,033           10,285,033               9,838,723           

FIXED ASSETS 5,730,985             5,730,985                 5,730,985           

OTHER ASSETS 43,792                  43,792                      36,317                

-                            -                      
16,059,810         16,059,810              15,606,026       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED REVENUE, FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 837,119                837,119                    1,340,397           

NOTES PAYABLE 473,777                473,777                    473,777              

DEFERRED REVENUE 1,043,014             1,043,014                 426,256              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
Line of Credit - Tradition Bank 963,631                963,631                    1,135,612           
Bond Series 2004 -                        -                            410,000              

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES FOR
General Fund 284,804                284,804                    1,108,422           
Debt Service Fund -                        -                            -                      

FUND EQUITY
RESTRICTED
     Net Assets Reserved for Debt service-Restricted (963,631)               (963,631)                   (2,019,389)          
     Reserved for Debt Retirement 963,631                963,631                    1,230,000           
COMMITTED -                            -                      
     Net Assets-Property and Equipment-Committed 5,730,985             5,730,985                 5,730,985           
     Reserved for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement 387,871                387,871                    -                      
     Reserved for Facility Improvement & Acquisitions 2,426,254             2,426,254                 -                      
     Reserved for Board Initiatives 1,500,000             1,500,000                 -                      
     Reserved for 1115 Waiver Programs 516,833                516,833                    -                      
     Reserved for Board Policy Requirements-Committed -                        -                            879,405              
     Reserved for Equipment Reserve-Committed -                        -                            354,290              
     Reserved for Inventory Reserve-Committed -                        -                            32,973                
     Reserved for Operations and Programs -Committed -                        -                            2,046,849           
ASSIGNED -                            -                      
     Reserved for Workers' Compensation-Assigned 274,409                274,409                    274,409              
     Reserved for Current Year Budgeted Reserve -Assigned 55,499                  55,499                      -                      
     Reserved for Insurance Deductibles-Assigned 100,000                100,000                    100,000              
     Reserved for  Accrued Paid Time Off (473,777)               (473,777)                   
UNASSIGNED -                            -                      
     Unrestricted and Undesignated 1,939,391             1,939,391                 2,082,041           
TOTAL LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE 16,059,810         16,059,810              15,606,026       

 Memorandum Only 

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of May 31, 2014

 TOTALS 

77



MONTH OF YTD
INCOME: May 2014 May 2014

Local Revenue Sources 111,424                  1,077,833               
Earned Income 861,221                  7,003,765               
General Revenue-Contract 1,205,780               10,749,321              
TOTAL INCOME 2,178,424             18,830,919             

EXPENSES:
Salaries 1,136,708               9,615,844               
Employee Benefits 222,027                  1,872,053               
Medication Expense 40,321                    299,376                  
Travel-Board/Staff 35,076                    302,425                  
Building Rent/Maintenance 23,246                    264,236                  
Consultants/Contracts 482,785                  4,107,478               
Other Operating Expenses 221,289                  1,932,311               
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,161,453             18,393,723             

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 16,971                  437,196                 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles, Building 3,709                      152,392                  
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                          
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 3,709                    152,392                 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,165,162             18,546,115             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 13,263                  284,804                 

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary
For the Month Ended May 2014

and YTD as of May 2014

78



YTD APPROVED Increase
May 2014 BUDGET (Decrease)

INCOME:

Local Revenue Sources 1,077,833                 1,355,535             (277,702)            
Earned Income 7,003,765                 7,009,704             (5,939)                
General Revenue-Contract 10,749,321               10,798,359           (49,038)              
TOTAL INCOME 18,830,919               19,163,598           (332,679)            

EXPENSES:
Salaries 9,615,844                 9,635,750             (19,906)              
Employee Benefits 1,872,053                 1,887,243             (15,190)              
Medication Expense 299,376                    294,118                5,258                  
Travel-Board/Staff 302,425                    323,542                (21,117)              
Building Rent/Maintenance 264,236                    281,813                (17,577)              
Consultants/Contracts 4,107,478                 4,186,268             (78,790)              
Other Operating Expenses 1,932,311                 2,001,256             (68,945)              
TOTAL EXPENSES 18,393,723               18,609,990           (216,267)            

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 437,196                    553,608                (116,412)            

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 152,392                    338,012                (185,620)            
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                     
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 152,392                    338,012                (185,620)            

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,546,115               18,948,002           (401,887)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 284,804                  215,596               69,208              

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            -                        -                     
Bond Payments Disbursements -                        -                     
Interest Income   
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                          -                       -                   

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary

Compared to Budgeted
Year to Date as of May 2014

79



MONTH OF APPROVED Increase
INCOME: May 2014 BUDGET (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 111,424                    90,555                  20,869                
Earned Income 861,221                    498,977                362,244              
General Revenue-Contract 1,205,780                 1,191,212             14,568                
TOTAL INCOME 2,178,424                 1,780,744             397,680              

EXPENSES:
Salaries 1,136,708                 749,630                387,078              
Employee Benefits 222,027                    188,756                33,271                
Medication Expense 40,321                      63,320                  (22,999)              
Travel-Board/Staff 35,076                      30,202                  4,874                  
Building Rent/Maintenance 23,246                      33,040                  (9,794)                
Consultants/Contracts 482,785                    306,377                176,408              
Other Operating Expenses 221,289                    224,377                (3,088)                
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,161,453                 1,595,702             565,751              

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 16,971                      185,042                (168,071)            

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 3,709                        40,223                  (36,514)              
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                            -                     
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 3,709                        40,223                  (36,514)              

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,165,162                 1,635,925             529,237              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 13,263                    144,819               (131,556)          

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            -                        -                     
Bond Payments Disbursements -                        -                     
Interest Income  
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                          -                       -                   

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary

Compared to Budget
For the Month Ended May 2014

80



YTD YTD Increase
INCOME: May 2014 May 2013 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 1,077,833                       1,372,091                 (294,258)           
Earned Income 7,003,765                       7,820,675                 (816,910)           
General Revenue-Contract 10,749,321                     9,419,007                 1,330,314          
TOTAL INCOME 18,830,919                     18,611,773               219,146             

EXPENSES:  
Salaries 9,615,844                       8,931,677                 684,167             
Employee Benefits 1,872,053                       1,655,816                 216,237             
Medication Expense 299,376                          230,037                    69,339               
Travel-Board/Staff 302,425                          294,896                    7,529                
Building Rent/Maintenance 264,236                          213,992                    50,244               
Consultants/Contracts 4,107,478                       4,182,889                 (75,411)             
Other Operating Expenses 1,932,311                       1,756,281                 176,030             
TOTAL EXPENSES 18,393,723                     17,265,588               1,128,135          

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 437,196                          1,346,185                 (908,989)           

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 152,392                          119,663                    32,729               
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds 319,339                    (319,339)           
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 152,392                          439,002                    (286,610)           

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 18,546,115                     17,704,590               841,525             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 284,804                          907,183                    (622,379)           

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                                 319,339                    (319,339)           
Bond Payments Disbursements -                    
Interest Income -                    
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                                 319,339                    (319,339)           

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary
With May 2013 Comparative Data

Year to Date as of May 2014

81



MONTH OF MONTH OF Increase
INCOME: May 2014 May 2013 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 111,424                     158,716                    (47,292)                  
Earned Income 861,221                     824,464                    36,757                   
General Revenue-Contract 1,205,780                  1,039,683                 166,097                  
TOTAL INCOME 2,178,424                  2,022,863                 155,561                  

EXPENSES:  
Salaries 1,136,708                  1,014,692                 122,016                  
Employee Benefits 222,027                     182,134                    39,893                   
Medication Expense 40,321                       37,486                      2,835                     
Travel-Board/Staff 35,076                       30,773                      4,303                     
Building Rent/Maintenance 23,246                       36,790                      (13,544)                  
Consultants/Contracts 482,785                     562,015                    (79,230)                  
Other Operating Expenses 221,289                     194,730                    26,559                   
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,161,453                  2,058,620                 102,833                  

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 16,971                       (35,757)                    52,728                   

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 3,709                         5,670                        (1,961)                    
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                            35,482                      (35,482)                  
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 3,709                         41,152                      (37,443)                  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,165,162                  2,099,772                 65,390                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 13,263                       (76,909)                    90,172                   

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            35,482                      (35,482)                  
Bond Payments Disbursements -                         
Interest Income -                         
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                            35,482                      (35,482)                  

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary
With May 2013 Comparative Data

Year to Date as of  May 2014

82



MONTH OF MONTH OF Increase
INCOME: May 2014 April 2014 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 111,424                     114,960               (3,536)               
Earned Income 861,221                     834,067               27,154               
General Revenue-Contract 1,205,780                  1,335,431            (129,651)           
TOTAL INCOME 2,178,424                  2,284,457            (106,033)           

EXPENSES:
Salaries 1,136,708                  1,210,094            (73,386)             
Employee Benefits 222,027                     276,661               (54,633)             
Medication Expense 40,321                       32,250                 8,071                
Travel-Board/Staff 35,076                       38,008                 (2,933)               
Building Rent/Maintenance 23,246                       45,980                 (22,733)             
Consultants/Contracts 482,785                     477,068               5,717                
Other Operating Expenses 221,289                     230,395               (9,106)               
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,161,453                  2,310,456            (149,003)           

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 16,971                       (25,999)                42,970               

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 3,709                         15,018                 (11,310)             
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                            -                      -                    
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 3,709                         15,018                 (11,310)             

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,165,162                  2,325,474            (160,312)           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 13,263                       (41,017)                54,280               

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            -                      -                    
Bond Payments Disbursements -                    
Interest Income  
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                            -                      -                    

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary
With April 2014 Comparative Data

As of May 2014

83



YTD YTD YTD YTD YTD
Mental Other Agency Approved 
Health IDD Services Total Budget Increase

INCOME: May 2014 May 2014 May 2014 May 2014 May 2014 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 801,653                     112,193                        163,989                        1,077,833                     1,355,535              (277,702)             
Earned Income 1,563,326                  4,288,835                     1,151,603                     7,003,765                     7,009,704              (5,939)                 
General Revenue-Contract 9,583,230                  1,166,092                     10,749,321                   10,798,359            (49,038)               
TOTAL INCOME 11,948,209                5,567,120                     1,315,592                     18,830,919                   19,163,598            (332,679)             

EXPENSES:
Salaries 6,721,980 1,980,432                     913,433                        9,615,844                     9,635,750              (19,906)               
Employee Benefits 1,275,011                  415,998                        181,045                        1,872,053                     1,887,243              (15,190)               
Medication Expense 281,118                     18,257                          299,376                        294,118                 5,258                   
Travel-Board/Staff 183,040                     80,181                          39,205                          302,425                        323,542                 (21,117)               
Building Rent/Maintenance 171,428                     76,843                          15,964                          264,236                        281,813                 (17,577)               
Consultants/Contracts 1,433,573                  2,603,601                     70,304                          4,107,478                     4,186,268              (78,790)               
Other Operating Expenses 1,266,583                  452,655                        213,073                        1,932,311                     2,001,256              (68,945)               
TOTAL EXPENSES 11,332,733                5,609,710                     1,451,281                     18,393,723                   18,609,990            (216,267)             

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 615,476                     (42,590)                         (135,689)                       437,196                        553,608                 (116,412)             

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 90,669                       10,890                          50,832                          152,392                        338,012                 (185,620)             
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                                -                       
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 90,669                       10,890                          50,832                          152,392                        338,012                 (185,620)             

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,423,402                5,620,600                     1,502,113                     18,546,115                   18,948,002            (401,887)             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Expenses 524,807                     (53,480)                         (186,521)                       284,804                        215,596                 69,208                 

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                             -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       
Bond Payments Disbursements -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       
Interest Income -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       

 Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over 
Expenses -                             -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary by Service Type 

Compared to Budget
As of YTD Ended May 2014

84



$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Income and Expense

Income
Expense

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14

85



-$200,000

-$100,000

$0

$100,000

$200,000

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Income after Expense

-$500,000

-$400,000

-$300,000

May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14

86



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve June 2014 Financial Statements 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
June 2014 Financial Statements 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve June 2014 Financial Statements 
 

 

87



June 2014 Financial Summary 

Revenues for June 2014 were $2,276,462 and operating expenses were $2,174,574 
resulting in a gain in operation of $101,888.  Capital Expenditures and Extraordinary 
Expenses for June were $4,948 resulting in a gain of $96,940.  Total revenues were 
101.82% of the monthly budgeted revenues and total expenses were 97.64% of the 
monthly budgeted expenses. 
 
Year to date revenues are $21,107,381 and operating expenses are $20,568,297 leaving 
excess operating revenues of $539,084. YTD Capital Expenditures and Extraordinary 
Expenses are $157,340 resulting in a gain YTD of $381,744. Total revenues are 98.64% of 
the YTD budgeted revenues and total expenses are 97.85% of the YTD budgeted expenses 
 
REVENUES 
YTD Revenue items that are below the budget by more than $10,000: 

Revenue Source YTD 
Revenue 

YTD 
Budget 

% of 
Budget 

$ 
Variance 

ICF Program – Title XIX 1,954,682 1,976,621 98.89% 21,939  

DSHS – Gen Rev – NGM 576,882 603,190 95.63% 26,308 

 
ICF Program – Title XIX – As we have talked about this entire fiscal year, we have a 
number of consumers that we are unable to bill for ICF services until they receive approval 
for ICF Medicaid coverage.  We anticipate being able to back bill for approximately $30,000 
within the next week.  We also have an additional amount pending approval that may bill 
after the close of this fiscal year.   
 
DSHS – Gen Rev – NGM – This line item is under budget due to positions that are funded 
by NGM that had been vacant for the entire year. We anticipated using the lapsed funds for 
the Children’s Summer Camp program as we have done in previous years.  Camp is now 
underway and we have begun recording NGM revenue to this cost center to cover camp 
expenses. We expect to use nearly all the NGM funds by year end. 
 
EXPENSES 
YTD Individual line expense items that exceed the YTD budget by more than $10,000: 

Expense Source YTD 
Expenses 

YTD 
Budget 

% of 
Budget 

$ 
Variance 

Contract Hospital - Child 117,725 100,000 117.72% 17,725 

 
Contract Hospital – Child – This line item is been trending higher than we initially 
budgeted all year.  We have adjusted this line during both budget revisions but continue to 
have children admitted to the hospital.  Children tend to have longer lengths of stay which 
contributes to this increase.   

88



 TOTALS  COMBINED 
FUNDS 

 TOTALS  
COMBINED FUNDS Increase

June 2014 May 2014 (Decrease)
  

 ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS
Imprest Cash Funds 4,400                           4,550                      (150)                       
Cash on Deposit-General Fund 9,665,056                    8,676,409               988,647                 
Cash on Deposit-Debt Fund -                              -                          -                         
Accounts Receivable 1,512,693                    1,594,981               (82,288)                  
Inventory 9,452                           9,093                      358                        
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 11,191,600                  10,285,033             906,567                 

FIXED ASSETS 5,730,985                    5,730,985               -                         

OTHER ASSETS 30,487                         43,792                    (13,305)                  

TOTAL ASSETS 16,953,072                16,059,810           893,262                

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED REVENUE, FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,030,275                    837,119                  193,156                 

NOTES PAYABLE 473,777                       473,777                  -                         

DEFERRED REVENUE 1,640,014                    1,043,014               597,000                 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
Line of Credit - Tradition Bank 944,383                       963,631                  (19,248)                  
Bond Series 2004 -                              -                          -                         

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES FOR
General Fund 381,744                       284,804                  96,940                   
Debt Service Fund -                              -                          -                         

FUND EQUITY
RESTRICTED
     Net Assets Reserved for Debt Service (944,383)                     (963,631)                 19,248                   
     Reserved for Debt Retirement 963,631                       963,631                  -                         
COMMITTED
     Net Assets-Property and Equipment 5,730,985                    5,730,985               -                         
     Reserved for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement 387,871                       387,871                  
     Reserved for Facility Improvement & Acquisitions 2,426,254                    2,426,254               
     Reserved for Board Initiatives 1,500,000                    1,500,000               
     Reserved for 1115 Waiver Programs 516,833                       516,833                  
     Reserved for Board Policy Requirements -                              -                          -                         
     Reserved for Equipment Reserve -                              -                          -                         
     Reserved for Inventory Reserve -                              -                          -                         
     Reserved for Operations and Programs -                              -                          -                         
ASSIGNED
     Reserved for Workers' Compensation 274,409                       274,409                  -                         
     Reserved for Current Year Budgeted Reserve 61,666                         55,499                    6,167                     
     Reserved for Insurance Deductibles 100,000                       100,000                  -                         
     Reserved for  Accrued Paid Time Off (473,777)                     (473,777)                 
UNASSIGNED
     Unrestricted and Undesignated 1,939,391                    1,939,391               -                         
TOTAL LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE 16,953,072                16,059,810           893,263                

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2014

89



General 
Operating   Final

Funds June 2014 August 2013

 ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS
Imprest Cash Funds 4,400                    4,400                        5,325                  
Cash on Deposit-General Fund 9,665,056             9,665,056                 7,747,392           
Cash on Deposit-Debt Fund -                        -                            421,561              
Accounts Receivable 1,512,693             1,512,693                 1,657,784           
Inventory 9,452                    9,452                        6,661                  
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 11,191,600           11,191,600               9,838,723           

FIXED ASSETS 5,730,985             5,730,985                 5,730,985           

OTHER ASSETS 30,487                  30,487                      36,317                

-                            -                      
16,953,072         16,953,072              15,606,026       

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED REVENUE, FUND BALANCES

CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,030,275             1,030,275                 1,340,397           

NOTES PAYABLE 473,777                473,777                    473,777              

DEFERRED REVENUE 1,640,014             1,640,014                 426,256              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR
Line of Credit - Tradition Bank 944,383                944,383                    1,135,612           
Bond Series 2004 -                        -                            410,000              

EXCESS(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES FOR
General Fund 381,744                381,744                    1,108,422           
Debt Service Fund -                        -                            -                      

FUND EQUITY
RESTRICTED
     Net Assets Reserved for Debt service-Restricted (944,383)               (944,383)                   (2,019,389)          
     Reserved for Debt Retirement 963,631                963,631                    1,230,000           
COMMITTED -                            -                      
     Net Assets-Property and Equipment-Committed 5,730,985             5,730,985                 5,730,985           
     Reserved for Vehicles & Equipment Replacement 387,871                387,871                    -                      
     Reserved for Facility Improvement & Acquisitions 2,426,254             2,426,254                 -                      
     Reserved for Board Initiatives 1,500,000             1,500,000                 -                      
     Reserved for 1115 Waiver Programs 516,833                516,833                    -                      
     Reserved for Board Policy Requirements-Committed -                        -                            879,405              
     Reserved for Equipment Reserve-Committed -                        -                            354,290              
     Reserved for Inventory Reserve-Committed -                        -                            32,973                
     Reserved for Operations and Programs -Committed -                        -                            2,046,849           
ASSIGNED -                            -                      
     Reserved for Workers' Compensation-Assigned 274,409                274,409                    274,409              
     Reserved for Current Year Budgeted Reserve -Assigned 61,666                  61,666                      -                      
     Reserved for Insurance Deductibles-Assigned 100,000                100,000                    100,000              
     Reserved for  Accrued Paid Time Off (473,777)               (473,777)                   
UNASSIGNED -                            -                      
     Unrestricted and Undesignated 1,939,391             1,939,391                 2,082,041           
TOTAL LIABILITIES/FUND BALANCE 16,953,072         16,953,072              15,606,026       

 Memorandum Only 

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2014

 TOTALS 

90



MONTH OF YTD
INCOME: June 2014 June 2014

Local Revenue Sources 103,853                  1,181,685               
Earned Income 823,955                  7,827,720               
General Revenue-Contract 1,348,655               12,097,976             
TOTAL INCOME 2,276,462             21,107,381             

EXPENSES:
Salaries 1,113,691               10,729,535             
Employee Benefits 220,947                  2,093,000               
Medication Expense 35,676                    335,052                  
Travel-Board/Staff 43,438                    345,863                  
Building Rent/Maintenance 47,458                    311,694                  
Consultants/Contracts 479,021                  4,586,499               
Other Operating Expenses 234,344                  2,166,654               
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,174,574             20,568,297             

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 101,888                539,084                 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles, Building 4,948                      157,340                  
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                          
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 4,948                    157,340                 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,179,522             20,725,637             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 96,940                  381,744                 

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary
For the Month Ended June 2014

and YTD as of June 2014

91



YTD APPROVED Increase
June 2014 BUDGET (Decrease)

INCOME:

Local Revenue Sources 1,181,685                 1,418,612             (236,927)            
Earned Income 7,827,720                 7,852,291             (24,571)              
General Revenue-Contract 12,097,976               12,128,494           (30,518)              
TOTAL INCOME 21,107,381               21,399,397           (292,016)            

EXPENSES:
Salaries 10,729,535               10,788,664           (59,129)              
Employee Benefits 2,093,000                 2,126,225             (33,225)              
Medication Expense 335,052                    335,995                (943)                   
Travel-Board/Staff 345,863                    355,926                (10,063)              
Building Rent/Maintenance 311,694                    304,753                6,941                  
Consultants/Contracts 4,586,499                 4,676,638             (90,139)              
Other Operating Expenses 2,166,654                 2,249,532             (82,878)              
TOTAL EXPENSES 20,568,297               20,837,733           (269,436)            

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 539,084                    561,664                (22,580)              

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 157,340                    342,568                (185,228)            
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                     
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 157,340                    342,568                (185,228)            

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,725,637               21,180,301           (454,664)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 381,744                  219,096               162,648            

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            -                        -                     
Bond Payments Disbursements -                        -                     
Interest Income   
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                          -                       -                   

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary

Compared to Budgeted
Year to Date as of June 2014

92



MONTH OF APPROVED Increase
INCOME: June 2014 BUDGET (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 103,853                    63,077                  40,776                
Earned Income 823,955                    842,587                (18,632)              
General Revenue-Contract 1,348,655                 1,330,135             18,520                
TOTAL INCOME 2,276,462                 2,235,799             40,663                

EXPENSES:
Salaries 1,113,691                 1,152,914             (39,223)              
Employee Benefits 220,947                    238,982                (18,035)              
Medication Expense 35,676                      41,877                  (6,201)                
Travel-Board/Staff 43,438                      32,384                  11,054                
Building Rent/Maintenance 47,458                      22,940                  24,518                
Consultants/Contracts 479,021                    490,370                (11,349)              
Other Operating Expenses 234,344                    248,276                (13,932)              
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,174,574                 2,227,743             (53,169)              

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 101,888                    8,056                    93,832                

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 4,948                        4,556                    392                     
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                            -                     
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 4,948                        4,556                    392                     

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,179,522                 2,232,299             (52,777)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 96,940                    3,500                   93,440              

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            -                        -                     
Bond Payments Disbursements -                        -                     
Interest Income  
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                          -                       -                   

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary

Compared to Budget
For the Month Ended June 2014

93



YTD YTD Increase
INCOME: June 2014 June 2013 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 1,181,685                       1,480,062                 (298,377)           
Earned Income 7,827,720                       8,681,378                 (853,658)           
General Revenue-Contract 12,097,976                     10,534,655               1,563,321          
TOTAL INCOME 21,107,381                     20,696,095               411,286             

EXPENSES:  
Salaries 10,729,535                     9,943,135                 786,400             
Employee Benefits 2,093,000                       1,836,392                 256,608             
Medication Expense 335,052                          258,644                    76,408               
Travel-Board/Staff 345,863                          328,797                    17,066               
Building Rent/Maintenance 311,694                          238,256                    73,438               
Consultants/Contracts 4,586,499                       4,660,516                 (74,017)             
Other Operating Expenses 2,166,654                       1,963,563                 203,091             
TOTAL EXPENSES 20,568,297                     19,229,303               1,338,994          

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 539,084                          1,466,792                 (927,708)           

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 157,340                          121,559                    35,781               
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds 354,821                    (354,821)           
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 157,340                          476,380                    (319,040)           

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,725,637                     19,705,683               1,019,954          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 381,744                          990,412                    (608,668)           

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                                 354,821                    (354,821)           
Bond Payments Disbursements -                    
Interest Income -                    
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                                 354,821                    (354,821)           

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary

With June 2013 Comparative Data
Year to Date as of June 2014

94



MONTH OF MONTH OF Increase
INCOME: June 2014 June 2013 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 103,853                     107,971                    (4,118)                    
Earned Income 823,955                     860,703                    (36,748)                  
General Revenue-Contract 1,348,655                  1,115,648                 233,007                  
TOTAL INCOME 2,276,462                  2,084,322                 192,140                  

EXPENSES:  
Salaries 1,113,691                  1,011,458                 102,233                  
Employee Benefits 220,947                     180,575                    40,372                   
Medication Expense 35,676                       28,607                      7,069                     
Travel-Board/Staff 43,438                       33,901                      9,537                     
Building Rent/Maintenance 47,458                       24,264                      23,194                   
Consultants/Contracts 479,021                     477,627                    1,394                     
Other Operating Expenses 234,344                     207,282                    27,062                   
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,174,574                  1,963,714                 210,860                  

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 101,888                     120,608                    (18,720)                  

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 4,948                         1,896                        3,052                     
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                            35,482                      (35,482)                  
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 4,948                         37,378                      (32,430)                  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,179,522                  2,001,092                 178,430                  

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 96,940                       83,230                      13,710                   

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            35,482                      (35,482)                  
Bond Payments Disbursements -                         
Interest Income -                         
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                            35,482                      (35,482)                  

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary

With June 2013 Comparative Data
Year to Date as of June 2014

95



MONTH OF MONTH OF Increase
INCOME: June 2014 May 2014 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 103,853                     111,424               (7,571)               
Earned Income 823,955                     861,221               (37,266)             
General Revenue-Contract 1,348,655                  1,205,780            142,875             
TOTAL INCOME 2,276,462                  2,178,424            98,038               

EXPENSES:
Salaries 1,113,691                  1,136,708            (23,018)             
Employee Benefits 220,947                     222,027               (1,081)               
Medication Expense 35,676                       40,321                 (4,645)               
Travel-Board/Staff 43,438                       35,076                 8,362                
Building Rent/Maintenance 47,458                       23,246                 24,212               
Consultants/Contracts 479,021                     482,785               (3,764)               
Other Operating Expenses 234,344                     221,289               13,055               
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,174,574                  2,161,453            13,121               

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 101,888                     16,971                 84,917               

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 4,948                         3,709                   1,240                
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                            -                      -                    
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 4,948                         3,709                   1,240                

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,179,522                  2,165,162            14,361               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Expenses 96,940                       13,263                 83,677               

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                            -                      -                    
Bond Payments Disbursements -                    
Interest Income  
Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over Expenses -                            -                      -                    

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary
With May 2014 Comparative Data

As of June 2014

96



YTD YTD YTD YTD YTD
Mental Other Agency Approved 
Health IDD Services Total Budget Increase

INCOME: June 2014 June 2014 June 2014 June 2014 June 2014 (Decrease)

Local Revenue Sources 839,786                     90,399                          251,499                        1,181,685                     1,418,612              (236,927)             
Earned Income 1,790,433                  4,742,931                     1,294,355                     7,827,720                     7,852,291              (24,571)               
General Revenue-Contract 10,829,367                1,268,609                     12,097,976                   12,128,494            (30,518)               
TOTAL INCOME 13,459,586                6,101,939                     1,545,854                     21,107,381                   21,399,397            (292,016)             

EXPENSES:
Salaries 7,496,477 2,197,265                     1,035,796                     10,729,535                   10,788,664            (59,129)               
Employee Benefits 1,424,911                  461,607                        206,482                        2,093,000                     2,126,225              (33,225)               
Medication Expense 314,864                     20,188                          335,052                        335,995                 (943)                     
Travel-Board/Staff 211,041                     91,282                          43,540                          345,863                        355,926                 (10,063)               
Building Rent/Maintenance 199,582                     92,822                          19,290                          311,694                        304,753                 6,941                   
Consultants/Contracts 1,660,736                  2,877,271                     48,493                          4,586,499                     4,676,638              (90,139)               
Other Operating Expenses 1,430,407                  503,045                        233,201                        2,166,654                     2,249,532              (82,878)               
TOTAL EXPENSES 12,738,018                6,223,292                     1,606,990                     20,568,297                   20,837,733            (269,436)             

Excess(Deficiency) of Revenues over
Expenses before Capital Expenditures 721,568                     (121,353)                       (61,136)                         539,084                        561,664                 (22,580)               

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay-FF&E, Automobiles 91,291                       12,281                          53,767                          157,340                        342,568                 (185,228)             
Capital Outlay-Debt Service Bonds -                                -                       
TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 91,291                       12,281                          53,767                          157,340                        342,568                 (185,228)             

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 12,829,309                6,235,573                     1,660,757                     20,725,637                   21,180,301            (454,664)             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and 
Expenses 630,277                     (133,634)                       (114,903)                       381,744                        219,096                 162,648              

Debt Service and Fixed Asset Fund:
Bond Payments Receipts -                             -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       
Bond Payments Disbursements -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       
Interest Income -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       

 Excess(Deficiency) of revenues over 
Expenses -                             -                                -                                -                                -                         -                       

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Revenue and Expense Summary by Service Type 

Compared to Budget
As of YTD Ended June 2014

97



$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Income and Expense

Income
Expense

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14

98



-$200,000

-$100,000

$0

$100,000

$200,000

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES
Income after Expense

-$500,000

-$400,000

-$300,000

Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 Jan-14 Feb-14 Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14

99



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve FY 2014 Auditor Engagement Letter 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
At the April 24th Board meeting, the Board authorized staff to solicit the Annual Financial 
Audit Engagement Letter from Scott, Singleton, Fincher and Company, P.C. for the FY 2014 
Independent Financial Audit. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Copy of Engagement Letter from Scott, Singleton, Fincher and Company, P.C.  
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve the Engagement Letter from Scott, Singleton, Fincher and Company, 
P.C. for the FY 2014 Independent Financial Audit 
 

 

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107

stellam
Text Box



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve Purchase of up to Three (3) Ford Focus 
Sedans 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Management Team has reviewed the status of existing vehicles and determined that 
there is a need for vehicles for use by staff to provide direct services out of the office as 
well as provide transportation of our clients.  Staff recommends the purchase of three (3) 
Ford Focus Sedans to be purchased at the dealership chosen by the Board. 
 
Listed below are the bids received for the purchase of three (3) Ford Focus Sedans: 

 

 Gullo Ford – Conroe, Texas             $14,320.20  each or $42,960.60  (x3) 
 Anderson Ford – Cleveland, Texas   $14,745.00  each or $44,235.00  (x3) 
 BJ Ford – Liberty, Texas                 $14,879.81  each or $44,639.43  (x3) 

 Bill Fick Ford – Huntsville, Texas      $15,539.92  each or $46,619.76  (x3) 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Bid Information 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve the Purchase of Ford Focus Sedans as Recommended 
 

 

108



109



Anderson Ford 13872 US HY. 59 S.  Cleveland, Texas 77328  

 

2014 Ford Focus (P3E) 4dr Sdn S
 

  

  
 

 

Mechanical 

Engine: 2.0L I‐4 GDI Ti‐VCT Flex Fuel (STD) 

Transmission: Automatic Transmission 

Additional standard equipment 

Front‐Wheel Drive 

3.82 Axle Ratio 

590CCA Maintenance‐Free Battery w/Run Down Protection 

3990# Gvwr 827# Maximum Payload 

Gas‐Pressurized Shock Absorbers 

Front And Rear Anti‐Roll Bars 

Electric Power‐Assist Steering 

12.4 Gal. Fuel Tank 

Single Stainless Steel Exhaust 

Strut Front Suspension w/Coil Springs 

Short And Long Arm Rear Suspension w/Coil Springs 

Front Disc/Rear Drum Brakes w/4‐Wheel ABS, Front Vented Discs and Brake Assist 

Brake Actuated Limited Slip Differential 

Wheels: 15" Steel w/Covers 

Tires: P195/65R15 

Steel Spare Wheel 

Compact Spare Tire Mounted Inside Under Cargo 

Clearcoat Paint Oxford White 

110



Body‐Colored Front Bumper 

Body‐Colored Rear Bumper 

Black Side Windows Trim and Black Front Windshield Trim 

Black Door Handles 

Black Power Side Mirrors w/Convex Spotter and Manual Folding 

Fixed Rear Window w/Defroster 

Light Tinted Glass 

Variable Intermittent Wipers 

Fully Galvanized Steel Panels 

Grille w/Chrome Bar 

Trunk Rear Cargo Access 

Aero‐Composite Halogen Headlamps 

Radio w/Seek‐Scan, Clock and Radio Data System 

Radio: AM/FM Single‐CD/MP3‐Capable ‐inc: 4 speakers, input jack and speed‐sensitive volume control 

Integrated Roof Antenna 

Cloth Bucket Front Seats w/Cloth Back Material Black 

6‐Way Driver Seat ‐inc: Manual Recline, Height Adjustment and Fore/Aft Movement 

4‐Way Passenger Seat ‐inc: Manual Recline and Fore/Aft Movement 

Full Folding Bench Front Facing Fold Forward Seatback Cloth Rear Seat 

Manual Tilt/Telescoping Steering Column 

Gauges ‐inc: Speedometer, Odometer, Engine Coolant Temp, Tachometer and Trip Odometer 

Manual Rear Windows 

Front Cupholder 

Rear Cupholder 

Remote Keyless Entry w/Integrated Key Transmitter and Panic Button 

111



Manual Air Conditioning 

Glove Box 

Driver Foot Rest 

Interior Trim ‐inc: Chrome Interior Accents 

Full Cloth Headliner 

Cloth Door Trim Insert 

Urethane Gear Shift Knob 

Day‐Night Rearview Mirror 

Driver And Passenger Visor Vanity Mirrors 

Full Floor Console w/Covered Storage and 1 12V DC Power Outlet 

Fade‐To‐Off Interior Lighting 

Full Carpet Floor Covering 

Carpet Floor Trim 

Cargo Area Concealed Storage 

Cargo Space Lights 

FOB Controls ‐inc: Trunk/Hatch/Tailgate 

Instrument Panel Bin, Driver / Passenger And Rear Door Bins 

Power 1st Row Windows w/Driver 1‐Touch Down 

Delayed Accessory Power 

Power Door Locks w/Autolock Feature 

Systems Monitor 

Analog Display 

Manual w/Tilt Front Head Restraints and Manual Adjustable Rear Head Restraints 

Securilock Anti‐Theft Ignition (pats) Engine Immobilizer 

1 12V DC Power Outlet 

112



Air Filtration 

Electronic Stability Control (ESC) 

ABS And Driveline Traction Control 

Side Impact Beams 

Dual Stage Driver And Passenger Seat‐Mounted Side Airbags 

Low Tire Pressure Warning 

Dual Stage Driver And Passenger Front Airbags 

Curtain 1st And 2nd Row Airbags 

Airbag Occupancy Sensor 

Driver Knee Airbag 

Rear Child Safety Locks 

Outboard Front Lap And Shoulder Safety Belts ‐inc: Rear Center 3 Point, Height Adjusters and 
Pretensioners 

Warranty 

Basic Years  3     

Basic Miles/km  36,000     

Drivetrain Years  5     

Drivetrain Miles/km  60,000     

Corrosion Years  5     

Corrosion Miles/km  Unlimited     

Roadside Assistance Years  5     

Roadside Assistance Miles/km  60,000 

 

3 total $44,235.00 delivered. 

 

Mike Weisinger 

281‐592‐2611 Dealership main number

mikeweisinger@aol.com   

281‐592‐1040 fax 

281‐433‐4762 cell 

113



114



 

737 I‐45 South 
Huntsville, TX 7340 

936‐295‐3784 

Fleet Quote 
Tri‐County Services 

 

This is a quote for (3) Ford Focus 4 door sedans with the S trim level, and an automatic transmission. 

The vehicles quoted are Oxford White in exterior color, with Charcoal Black cloth seats. 

The vehicles quoted are equipped with everything that comes as standard equipment with the S trim level. 
The only option added is to the vehicles quoted is an automatic transmission.  

Sale price each:     $15,479.34 
Total cost including all fees:   $15,539.92 
License Plate and Fees each:         $60.58 
Total Cost for all vehicles:   $46,619.76 

The vehicles can be made available to you by 60 days after being awarded the contract.  

**The last day I can order a 2014 Ford Focus is August 29, 2014. After this date, the price is subject to change 
due to availability, and different discounts/incentives for the 2015 year model Focus.  

 

Best Regards, 

Adam Chernosky 
Fleet Manager 
Bill Fick Ford 
936‐295‐3784 

115



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Disposition of 117 N. College Avenue in Cleveland, 
Texas 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The 117 N. College Avenue property in Cleveland, Texas has been on the market since 
approximately August 2006.  This facility is an office building that has a total of 2,460 
square feet on approximately .1033 of an acre of land.  It has unpaved parking in the rear 
which accommodates 3 to 4 vehicles while the street parking is not dedicated and includes 
only 2 spots directly in front.  
 
We have received an offer of $105,000.  We have requested an updated appraisal since the 
date of the last appraisal was April 16, 2012 and the appraised value at that time was 
$120,000. The contract has been forwarded to Jackson Walker for their review. 
 
The Center’s Board Goal from FY 2013 was and continues to be to “implement best 
strategies to sell vacant properties”.  This offer provides an opportunity to reduce the 
number of vacant buildings we own.   
 
Staff would like to discuss the possibility of moving forward with the sale of this facility.   
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Commercial Contract  
 
Appraisal Available for Review at the Board Meeting 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Authorize Executive Director to Move Forward as Directed by the Board of 
Trustees 
 

 

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Disposition of 406 N. Washington Avenue in 
Cleveland, Texas 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The 406 N. Washington Avenue property in Cleveland, Texas has been on the market for 
many years.  This facility is an office building that has a total of 7,000 square feet on 
approximately .2842 of an acre of land.  It has roughly 5,000 square feet of concrete 
parking along the front and south side of the building. The current appraised value of the 
property is $280,000. 
 
We have received two offers: 
 

 First Offer - $275,000 
This contract is subject to inspections and buyer’s approval to obtain a pawn shop 
license with the Office of Consumer Credit Commissioner. 
 

 Second Offer - $250,000 
 
The appraisal and contracts have been forwarded to Jackson Walker for their review.   
 
The Center’s Board Goal from FY 2013 was and continues to be to “implement best 
strategies to sell vacant properties”.  The sale of this facility provides an opportunity to 
reduce the number of vacant buildings we own.   
 
Staff would like to discuss the possibility of moving forward with the sale of this facility.   
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
First Offer – Commercial Contract 
 
Second Offer – Contract of Sale 
 
Appraisal Available for Review at the Board Meeting 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Authorize Executive Director to Move Forward as Directed by the Board of 
Trustees 
 

 

136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



2014-07-17 16:49 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 1/18

CONTRACT OF SALE

This Contract of Sale (this "Contract") is made and entered into by and between Tri
County Mental Health, ("Seller"), and Christopher Lee ("Buyer").

ARTICLE I
DEFINED TERMS

1.1 Dcfinitions. As used hcrein, the following terms shall have the meanings respectively
indicatcd:

"Absolute Review Period" has the meaning assigned to it in Section 5.1.

"Business Day" shall mean any day other than Saturday, Sunday or a national holiday.

"Closing" means the consummation of the purchase of the Property by Buyer fTom Seller
in accordance with Article IX.

"Closing Date" means the date specified in Section 9.1 on which the Closing is to be
held.

"Deed" means the General Warranty Deed executed by Seller in favor of Buyer, the
means by which Scllcr shall convey the Property to Buyer, and being in the form, or substantially
in the form, of"Exhibit "B".

"Earnest Money Deposit" means that portion of the Purchase Price deposited by Buyer in
escrow with the Title Company at the time and in the lonn and the amount specified in Section
3.3.

"Effective Date" means the date on whieh the Title company acknowledges receipt of a
fully-executed Contract as indicated by the signature of the Title Company.

"Governmental Authority" means any and all courts, boards, agencies, commissions,
offices, or authorities of any governmental unit (federal, state, county, district, municipal, city, or
otherwise).

"Impositions" means, for the Property, (a) all real estate and personal property taxes,
assessments, excises, and levies (and any associated interest, costs, or penalties), general and
special, ordinary and extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, of any kind and nature, that are at
any time assessed, levied, charged, or imposed on, or with respect to all or any portion of the
Property, or the sidewalks, streets, or alley ways adjacent to the Property, as appropriate, or the
ownership, use, occupancy, or enjoyment thereof, and (b) any assessments made aftcr the
Closing for taxes attributable to a change in land usage or ownership.

"Legal Requirements" means (a) any and all judicial decisions, orders, injunctions, writs,
statutes, rulings, rules, regulations, permits, certificates, or ordinances of any Governmental

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

155



2014-07-17 16: 50 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 2/18

Authority in any way applicablc to the Property, including, without limitation, any of the
aforesaid dealing Witll the design, construction, ownership, use, leasing, maintenance, service,
operation, or condition of real property, or zoning or environmental matters, or parking
requirements, and (b) the tenns of any otherwritten agrccments, and oral agreemcnts of which
Seller has knowledgc, and any and all insurance requirements, documents, or instruments
relating to the Property, or to or by which the Property, or its owner, may be bound or
encumbercd.

"Pennittcd Exceptions" means, with respect to the Property, the exceptions or conditions
that affect or may affect the title to or use of the Property and that are approved by Buyer in
accordance with Section 4.4.

"Property" means the real property and minerals located in Libcrty County, Texas
described in Exhibit A attachcd hereto and all improvements thcreon.

"Purchase Price" means the total consideration to be paid by Buyer to Seller tor the
purchase of the Property.

"Survcy" means a survey satisfying the requirements of a Category IA, Condition II
Survey according to the latest promulgated standards of the Texas Society of Professional
Surveyors and containing the surveyor's certification substantially in the fonn of Exhibit C.

"Title Company" means Allegiance Title Company, located at 8111 Preston Rd.,
Suite 320, Dallas, Texas 75225 (Attention: Trad R. Miller).

"Title Exception" means any lien, mortgage, security interest, encumbrance, pledge,
assignment, claim, charge, lease (surface, space, mineral, or otherwise), condition, restriction,
option, conditional sale contract, right of first refusal, restrictive covenant, exception, easement
(temporary or pennanent), right-of-way, encroachment, overlap, or othcr outstanding claim,
interest, estate, or equity of any nature.

"Title Policy" means the Owner Policy of TitIe Insurance described in Section 4.5.

"Titlc Revicw Period" has the meaning assigned to it in Section 4.3.

"Title Underwriter" means Fidelity National Title Insurance Company.

1.2 Othcr Defined Tenns. Certain other defined tenns shall have tile respective meanings
assigned to them elsewhere in this Contract.

Trl.County Contract 7.17.14

156



2014-07-17 16:50 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 3/18

ARTICLE II
AGREEMENT OF PURCHASE AND SALE

On the tenns and conditions ~'tated in this Contract, Seller hereby sells and agrees to
convey thc Property to Buyer, and Buyer, in consideration of the pelfonnance of the agreements
of ScHer contained in this Contract and in reliance on the representations and warranties of SeHer
contained in this Contract and subject to the conditions precedent contained in this Contract,
hcreby agrees to purchase the Property from ScHer.

ARTICLE III
PURCHASE PRICE, INDEPENDENT CONTRACT

CONSTDERATION. AND EARNEST MONEY

3.1 Purchase Price. The Purchase Price to be paid by Buyer to SeHer shall be Two Hundred
and Fifty Thousand dollars ($250,000.00).

3.2 Independent Contract Consideration. Within three (3) business days after the Effective
Date, Buyer shaH deliver to Seller a check in thc arnountof one hundred dollars ($100.00)
("Independent Contract Consideration"), which amount the parties hereby acknowledge and
agree has been bargained for and agreed to as consideration for Seller's execution and delivery
of this Contract. The Independent Contract Consideration is in addition to and independent of
any other consideration or payment provided in this Contract, is nonrefundable, shall be retained
by Seller notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract and shall be applied to the
Purchase Price if the sale and purchase of the Property is consummated as provided in this
Contract.

3.3 Earnest Money Deposit. Within three (3) business days after the Effective Date, Buyer
shall deliver the sum of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) (the "Earnest Money Deposit") to the
Title Company, to be held by the Title Company in escrow and to be disposed of as provided in
this Contract. At Buyer's option, the Earnest Money Deposit may be in the form ofa check, to be
cashed immediately by the Title Company and placed in an interest-bearing account with a
reputable financial institution in Dallas or Tarrant County, Texas designated by Buyer. Any and
all interest which shall accrue on the Earnest Money Deposit shall accrue for the sole benefit of
Buyer, shall not be included in the definition of the Earnest Money Deposit, and sllall be payable
to Buyer upon demand or, in any event, upon the tcnnination of this Contract. If the purchase
and sale of the Property is consummated in accordance with the tenns and provisions of this
Contract, then the Earnest Money Deposit shall at Buyer's option either be applied to the
Purchase Price or returned to Buyer. In all other events, the Earnest Money Deposit shall be
disposed of by the Title Company as provided in this Contract.

3.4 Payment of Purchase Price. The Purchase Price shall be payable to Seller through the
Title Company in cash at the Closing.

Tei-County Contract 7.17.14

157



2014-07-17 16:58 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 4/18

ARTICLE IV
TITLE AND SURVEY

4.1 Title Commitment: Exception Documents.

(a) Within twenty (20) days after the Effective Date, Seller, at Seller's sole cost and
expense, shall cause to be furnished to Buyer (and to the surveyor selected to prepare the Survey)
a current Commitment for Title Insurance (the "Title Commitment") for the Property issued by
the Title Company, on behalf of the Title Underwriter. The Title Commitment shall set forth the
state of title to the Property, including a list of Title Exceptions affecting the Property that would
appear in an owner's title policy, if one were issued. The Title Commitment shall contain the
expressed commitment of the Title Company to issue the Title Policy to Buyer in the amount of
the Purchase Price insuring the title to the Property as is specified in the Title Commitment.

(b) Along with the Title Commitment, Seller shall be furnished a true, correct, and
legible copies of all instruments that create or evidence Title Execptions affecting the Property,
including those described in the Title Commitment as exceptions to which the conveyance will
be subject and which arc required to be released or cured at or prior to the Closing.

4.2 Survey. Within twenty (20) days after the Effective Date, Seller, at Seller's sale cost and
expense, shall cause a current Survey of the Property to be prepared and shall deliver three (3)
copies of the Survey to Buyer.

4.3 Review of Title Commitment. Survey and Exception Documents. Buyer shall have a
period often (10) days (the "Title Review Period") commencing with the day Buyer has received
the Title Commitment, the Survey, and the items described in Section 4.ICbt in which to give
written notice to Seller specifying Buyer's objections to one or more of those items
("Objections"), ifany.

4.4 Seller's Obligation to Cure; Buyer's Right to Temlinate. If Buyer notifies Seller of
Objections to any of the matters furnished to Buyer pursuant to Section 4.1 and 4.2, then Seller
shall, within ten (10) days after Seller's receipt of notice ("Cure Period"), either satisfy the
Objections at Seller's sole cost and expense or promptly notify Buyer in writing of the
Objections that Seller cannot or will not satisfy at Seller's expense. If Seller fails or refuses to
satisfy any Objections within the Cure Period, and if Buyer and Seller do not agree in writing to
an extension of that period, then Buyer has the option of either (i) waiving the unsatisfied
Objections by notice in writing to Seller within ten (10) days atter the expiration of the Cure
Period, in which event those Objections shall become Permitted Exceptions, or (ii) terminating
this Contract by notice in writing within ten (10) days after the expiration ofilie Cure Period, and
receiving baek the Earnest Money Deposit, in which latter event Seller and Buyer shall have no
further obligatiOi1s, one to the other, with respect to the subject matter of this Contract. If Buyer
fails to deliver written notice of termination to Seller within ten (10) days of the expiration of the
Cure Period, then Buyer shall be deemed to have waived and accepted the unsatisfied
Objections, which (together with all Title Exceptions to which Purchaser has not objected) shall
become Permitted Exceptions, with no reduction in the Purchase Price, and Buyer shall have no
further right to terminate this Contract under this Section 4.4.

Tri-County Contract 7.17.14

158



2014-07-17 16:59 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 5/18

4.5 Title Policy. At the Closing, Seller, at Seller's sale cost and expense, shall cause a
standard Form T-] Texas Owner Policy of Title Insurance (the "Title Policy") to be furnished to
Buyer. The Title Policy shall be issued by thc Titlc Company, on behalf of the Title Underwriter
in the amount of the Purchase Price, and insuring that Buyer has indefcasible fee simple title to
the Property, subject only to thc Permitted Exceptions and all of thc standard printed exceptions
of a standard Form T-l Texas Owner Policy of Title Insurancc. In the event Buyer elects to
modify or dcletc the "survey exception," Buyer shall pay the cost of such modification or
deletion.

ARTICLE V
FEASIBILITY REVIEW PERIOD

5.1 Review Period. Any term or condition of this Contract to the contrary notwithstanding,
tile obligations of Buyer specified in this Contract are wholly conditioned on Buyer's having
determined, in Buycr's sole and absolute discretion, during the pcriod commencing with the
Effective Date and ending forty five (45) days after the Effective Date (the "Absolute Review
Period"), based on such physical examinations and other tests, examinations, studies (including
economic and environmental feasibility studies) and appraisals of the Property as Buyer deems
necessary or desirable, at Buyer's sale cost, that Buyer finds thc Property suitable for Buyer's
purposes. If Buyer is not satisfied with the Property for any reason whatsoever, ilien Buyer may
terminate this Contract by giving written noticc to Scllcr before the end of the Absolute Review
Period, in which case the Earnest Money Deposit shall be returned to Buyer, and the parties shall
have no further obligations under this Contract, onc to the other. If Buyer fails to notify Seller
in writing before the expiration of the Absolute Review Period iliat Buyer has terminated this
Contract pursuant to this Section 5.1, then (a) Buyer shall be deemed to havc accepted the
condition of the Property, (b) Buyer's right to terminate iliis Contract pursuant to this Section 5.1
shall be deemed waived, and (c) the Earnest Money Deposit shall be non-refundable and deemed
earned by Seller in any event other than Seller's default and failure to tender conveyance of the
Property under this Contract or Buyer's termination of this Contract pursuant to the provisions of
Section 4.4.

5.2 Access. To facilitate the review contemplated in Section 5.1 from and after the Effective
Date, Seller shall pennit Buyer and Buyer's agents and representatives to (a) enter upon and
inspect all or any part of the Property, to conduct studics and tests, and (b) make investigations
with regard to zoning and building code requirements. Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold
Seller harmless from and against any liens, claims, or damages suffered or incurred by Seller as a
result of Buyer's conduct of iliese studies and tests. Buyer shall repair or cause to be repaired
any material damages caused by these tests. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the
contrary, the effect of any representations or warranties made by Seller in this Contract shall not
be diminished by any inspections, tests or investigations made by Buyer.

5.3 Confidentiality. Buyer shall maintain confidential all inlormation obtained as a result of
ilie examinations, tests and studies pursuant to Section 5.1 and shall not disclose any of such
information to any person or entity prior to Closing. Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold Seller

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

159



2014-07-17 17:00 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 6/18

harmless from any and all claims, losses and expenses resulting from or in any manner relating
to the breach of the foregoing covenant.

ARTICLE VI
REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, COVENANTS,

AND AGREEMENTS OF SELLER

6.1 Representations and Warranties of Seller. To induce Buyer to enter into this Contract
and to consummate the sale and purchase of the Property in accordance herewith, Seller
represents and warrants to Buyer, as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date, except
where specitic reference is made to another date or dates, in which case the other date or dates
will apply, that:

(a) Seller has good and indcfeasible fee simple title to the Property, subject only to
the Permitted Exceptions;

(b) Seller has the full right, power, and authority to sell and convey the Property as
provided in this Contract and to carry out Seller's obligations hereunder, and that all requisite
action necessary to authorize Seller to enter into this Contract and to carry out Seller's
obligations hereunder has been, or by the Closing will have been, taken;

(c) There are no existing environmental issues with respect to the Property that would
require abatement, removal or remediation;

(d) Except for debts, liabilities, and obligations for which provision is herein made
for proration or other adjustment at Closing, there will be no debts, liabilities, or obligations of
Seller with respect to the Property outstanding as of the Closing Date;

(e) Seller has paid all Impositions that arc due and, on the Closing Date, the Property
will be subject to no liens other than the lien for ad valorem taxes for year of Closing;

(f) Seller is not a "foreign person" as that term is defined in Section 1445 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as an1ended, and any applicable regulations promulgated
thereunder; and

(g) Seller has not received any notice from any Governmental Authority regarding
the condemnation of any portion of the Property.

6.2 Covenants and Agreements of Seller. From the Effective Date until the Closing Date or
earlier termination of this Contract Seller shall:

(a)
Property.

Comply in all material respects with all Legal Requirements affecting the

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

160



2014-07-17 17:01 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 7/18

(b) Advise Buyer promptly of any litigation, arbitration, or administrative hearing
before any Goverrnnental Agency concerning or affccting the Property which is instituted or
threatened after thc Effective Date.

(c) Not take, or omit to take, any action that would result in a violation of any of the
representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements of Seller contained in this Contract.

(d) Not sell, assign, leasc, or convey any right, title or interest whatsoever in or to the
Property, or create or, except as otherwise provided in this Contract, permit to exist any lien,
encumbrance, or charge thereon, that will not be satisfied or terminable without liability at
Closing.

6.3 Survival Beyond Closing. The representations and warranties set forth in Section 6.1 and
all covenants and agreements ofScller contained in this Contract shall survive the Closing.

ARTICLE VII
REPRESENTATrONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER

7.1 Representations and Warranties of Buyer. Buyer represents, warrants, covenants, and
agrees with Seller as of the Effective Date and as of the Closing Date, except where specific
reference is made to another date or dates, that:

(a) Buyer has the full right, power, and authority to purchase the Property from Seller
as provided in this Contract and to carry out Buyer's obligations under this Contract, and all
requisite action necessary to authorize Buyer to enter into this Contract and to carry out Buyer's
obligations hereunder has been or on or before Closing will have been taken; and

(b) As of the Effective Date, Buyer has been hereby advised in writing that Buyer
should have an abstract covering the Property examined by an attorney of Buyer's own selection
or that Buyer should be furnished with or obtain a policy of title insurance.

7.2 Survival Beyond Closing. The representations and warranties of Buyer contained in this
Contract as set forth in Section 7.1 shall survive the Closing.

ARTICLE VIII
CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO BUYER'S PERFORMANCE

8.1 Performance of Seller's Obligations. Buyer is not obligated to perform under this
Contract unless, within the designated time periods, at Seller's sole cost and expense (except as
herein expressly provided to the contrary), all of the following have occurred: (i) Seller has
furnished or caused to be furnished to Buyer all items required to be so furnished under other
Sections of this Contract, and (li) Seller cures or Buyer waives in writing, within the time period
specified in Section 4.4, all ofBuyer's Objections made in accordance with Section 4.4.

8.2 Breach of Seller's Representations, Warranties, Covenants, and Agreements. Buyer is
not obligated to perform under this Contract unless all of the representations, warranties,

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

161



2014-07-17 17:02 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 8/18

covenants, and agreements of SelIer contained in this Contract are true and correct as of the
Effective Date and the Closing Date and unless Seller, on or prior to the Closing Date, has met,
complied with, and performed in all material respects all covcnants, conditions or agreements on
SelIer's part required by this Contract.

8.3 Tcrmination of Leases. IntentionalIy Omitted.

8.4 Adverse Changc. Buycr shalI not be obligated to pcrform under this Contract it; on the
Closing Date, any portion of the Property has bccn condemned or sold undcr threat of
condemnation, or is the subject of a condemnation, eminent domain, or other material
procceding.

8.5 Right to Waive Conditions Precedent. Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Contract to the contrary, Buyer may, at Buyer's option, elect to waive any of the conditions
precedent to the performance of Buyer's obligations under this Contract by giving to the SelIer,
at any time before the Closing, a written waiver specifying the waived condition precedent. If
Buyer so waives a condition precedent, then this Contract shall continue in full force and effect
and the obligations of Buyer and Sellcr shall be unaffected by the waived condition precedent.

8.6 Termination if Conditions Precedent not Satisfied or Waived. If any of thc conditions
precedent to the performance of Buyer's obligations under this Contract have not becn satisfied
or waived by that party, then Buycr may, by giving written notice to Seller, terminate this
Contract on or before the Closing Date. On Buyer'S termination, the Eamest Moncy Deposit
shall immediately bc returned to Buycr by the Title Company. If the Earnest Money Dcposit is
properly returnable to Buyer, then Seller shalI, on written requcst from Buyer, promptly issue
instructions necessary to cause the Title Company to return to Buyer the Earnest Money Deposit
and, thereafter, Buyer and Seller shall have no further obligations under this Contract, one to the
other.

ARTICLE IX
CLOSTNG

9.1 Date and Place of Closing. The Closing shalI take place in the offices of the Title
Company and shall be accomplished through an escrow to be established with the Title
Company, as escrowee. The date of the Closing shall be mutually agreed on by SeIler and
Buyer, but shall not be later than fifteen (IS) days after the expiration of the Absolute Review
Period or such earlier date as is mutually agreed on in writing by Seller and Buyer.

9.2 Items to bc Delivered at the Closing.

(a) Seller. At the Closing, Seller shall deliver or cause to be delivered to Buyer or the
Title Company, at Seller's sole cost and expense (except as herein expressly provided to the
contrary), the following items, all in form satisfactory to Buyer:

(i) The Deed, duly executed by Seller and acknowledged,
subject only to the Permitted Exceptions;

Tri-County Contract 7.17.14

162



2014-07-17 17:03 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 9/18

(ii) An Assignment and Bill of Sale which assigns to Buyer all personal
property located on or used in connection with the Property;

(iii) An assignment of all warranties, ifany;

(Iv) An affidavit, in the fonn, or substantially the fonn, attached as
Exhibit "D", in compliance with Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of J986, as
amended, and any regulations promulgated thereunder, stating under penalty of perjury
Seller's United States identification number and that Seller is not a "foreign person" as
that term is defined in Section 1445, duly executed by Seller and acknowledged;
provided, however, that if Seller fails to deliver this affidavit, Buyer shall be entitled to
withhold from the Purchase Price and pay to the Internal Revenue Service the amounts
required by Section 1445, and applicable regulations promulgated therelmder; and

(v) Other items reasonably requested by the Title Company as administrative
requirements for consummating the Closing.

(b) Buyer. At the Closing, Buyer shall deliver to Seller or the Title Company:

(i) the cash sum required by Section 3.4; and

(ii) other items reasonably requested by the Title Company as administrative
requirements for consummating the Closing.

9.3 Possession at Closing. Possession of the Property shall be delivered to Buyer by Seller at
the Closing.

9.4 Adjustments at Closing. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this
Contract or applicable law, the provisions of this Section 9.4 shall survive the Closing. The
following items shall be adjusted and prorated between Seller and Buyer with respect to the
Property. Rent shall be prorated between Seller and Buyer; Buyer shall be responsible for the
payment of rent only through the Closing Date. Ad valorem taxes related to the Property for the
calendar year in which the Closing shall be prorated between Seller and Buyer as of the Closing
Date. If the actual amount of taxes for the calendar year in which the Closing shall occur is not
known as of the Closing Date, the proration shall be based on the amount of taxes due and
payable with respect to the Property for the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar
year in which the Closing shall occur, and Seller shall pay to Buyer in cash (or by credit on
Buyer's closing statement) at the Closing Seller's pro rata portion of those taxes.

9.5 Costs of Closing. Seller shall pay all transfer fees and taxes payable to any
Governmental Authority which arc attributable solely to the transfer of title to the Propeliy.
Each party is responsible for paying the legal fees of its counsel in negotiating, preparing, and
closing the transaction contemplated by this Contract. Seller is only responsible for paying fees,
costs and expenses specifically identified herein as being the responsibility of Seller. Buyer is
responsible for paying fees, costs, and expenses identified herein as being the responsibility of

TrloCounty Contract 7.17.14

163



2014-07-17 17:04 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 10/18

Buyer. All other expenses shall be allocated between the parties in the customary manner for
closings of real properties simiIarto the Properties in the Bell and Tarrant County, Texas areas.

ARTICLE X
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

10.1 Seller's Defaults: Buyer's Remedies.

(a) Seller's Defaults. Seller is in default under this Contract on the occurrence of any
one or more of the following events:

(i) Any of Seller's warranties or representations contained in this Contract are
untrue in any material respect on the Closing Date; or

(ii) Seller tails to meet, comply with, or perform in any material rcspect any
covenant, agreement, condition precedent or obligation on Seller's part required within
the time limits and in the manner required in this Contract.

(b) Buver's Remedies. If Seller is in default under this Contract, Buyer may, as
Buyer's sale and exclusive remedies, terminate this Contract by written notice delivered to Seller
on or before the Closing Date in which either Buyer shall be entitled to a return of the Eamest
Money Deposit or bring an action for specific performance.

(c) Return of Earnest Money Deposit. On the occurrence of any event deemed by
Buyer to be a default by Seller under this Contract and the continuance of default for a period of
at least five (5) days after Seller's receipt of written notice of the default, the Earnest Money
Deposit, together with any interest thereon, shall be immediately returned to the Buyer by the
Title Company. If the Earnest Money Deposit is properly returnable to Buyer in accordance with
this Section 10.1 (c), then Seller shall, immediately on written request from Buyer, execute and
deliver any documents necessary to cause the Title Company to return to Buyer the Earnest
Money Deposit.

10.2 Buyer's Default: Seller's Remedies.

(a) Buyer's Default. Buyer is in default under this Contract if, after the expiration of
the Absolute Review Period, Buyer fails to deliver, at or prior to the Closing, the items specified
in this Contract for any reason other than a default by Seller under this Contract or tern1ination of
this Contract pursuant to the terms hereof prior to Closing.

(b) Seller's R.emedies. If Buyer is in default under this Contract and such default
continues for a period of at least five (5) days after Buyer's receipt of written notice of the
default, Seller may, as Seller's sole and exclusive remedy, terminate this Contract and receive
the Earnest Money Deposit from the Title Company.

(c) Payment of Earnest Money Deposit. Upon the occurrence of any event deemed to
be a default by Buyer hereunder, the Earnest Money Deposit shall be forthwith tendered by the

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

164



2014-07-17 17:05 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 11/18

Title Company to Seller. If the Eamest Money Deposit may be properly delivered to Seller in
accordance with this Section 10.2(e), then Buyer shall, immediately upon written request from
Seller, execute and deliver such documents as may be required to cause the Title Company to
deliver the Earnest Money Deposit to Seller.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

1J.l Notices. AU notices, demands, requests, and other communications required or permitted
hereunder shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to be delivered, upon the earlier to occur of
(a) actual receipt, and (b) the deposit of the original in a regularly maintained receptacle for the
United States mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as
follows:

Seller:

Buyer:

Tri-County Mental Health
PO Box 3067
Conroe, TX 77305-3067

Christopher Lee
9 Leighton Ct.
MWlsfield, Texas 76063

11.2 Governing Law and Venue. This Contract is being executed and delivered, and is
intended to be performed, in the State of Texas, and the laws of Texas govern the validity,
construction, enforcement, and interpretation of this Contract, unless otherwise specified herein.
This Contract is performable in, and the exclusive venue for any action brought with respect
hereto shall lie in, Tarrant County, Texas.

11.3 Entirety and Amendments. This Contract embodies the entire agreement between the
parties wld supersedes aU prior agreements and understandings, if any, relating to the Property,
and may be amended or supplemented only by an instrument in writing executed by the party
against whom enforcement is sought.

11.4 Parties Bound. This Contract is binding upon and inures to the benefit of Seller and
Buyer, and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

I 1.5 Further Acts. In addition to the acts and deeds recited in this Contract and contemplated
to be performed, executed, Wld/or delivered by Seller to Buyer, Seller and Buyer agree to
perfoml, execute, and/or deliver or cause to be performed, executed, andlor delivered at the
Closing or after the Closing any and all further acts, deeds, Wld assurances as are reasonably
necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby.

Tri-County Contract 7.17.14

165



2014-07-17 17:06 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 12/18

11.6 Time of the Essence. It is expressly agreed by Buyer and Seller that time is of the
essence with respect to this Contract.

I I.7 Assignment. This Contract and all rights hereunder may not be assigned by Buyer
without the prior written consent of Seller, provided; however, Buyer shall be entitled to assign
this Contract to an entity controlled by Buyer without the consent of Seller.

I 1.8 Approvals. Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, whenever approval or consent is
required of any party, it shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided, however, that
this Section 11.8 shall in no way affect Buyer's rights under Section 5.1. Unless provision is
made for a specific time period (in which event that time period is controlling), approval or
consent shall be deemed not to be given within ten (10) days of the receipt of the written request
for approval or consent if a party neither approves nor disapproves the request within the ten
(I O)-day period.

11.9 Risk of Loss. Seller agrees to give Buyer prompt notice of any actual or threatened (to
the extent that Seller has current actual knowledge thereof) taking or condemnation of all or any
portion of the Property. If prior to the Closing, there shall occur the taking or condemnation of
all or any portion of the Property which would materially interfere with the present use of the
Property; then, in such event, Buyer shall have the right to terminate this Contract by written
notice thereof delivered to Seller within ten (10) days after Buyer has received notice from Seller
or otherwise learns of that event. If Buyer does not so timely elect to terminate this Contract,
then the Closing shaH take place as provided herein and there shall be assigned to Buyer at the
Closing all interests of SeHer in and to any condemnation awards payable to Seller on account of
that event. If before the Closing there occurs the taking or condemnation of a portion of the
Property which would not materially interfere with the present use of the Property, then, Buyer
may not terminate this Contract and there shall be assigned to Buyer at the Closing all interest of
Seller in and to any condemnation awards payable to Seller on account oCthat event.

11.10 Exhibits. The Exhibits which are referenced in, and attached to, this Contract are
incorporated in, and made a part of, this Contract for all purposes.

1I.I I Time. If the last day to perform under a provision of this Contract falls on a Saturday,
Sunday or legal holiday, the time for performance is extended until the end of the next day which
is not a Saturday, Sunday or other legal holiday.

I I. I2 Real Estate Commissions. Seller shall be responsible for the payment of all broker fees
and commissions, if any, to Phillip Cameron with Cameron Real Estate. Seller shall indemnify
and hold hannless Buyer of and from any and all broker fees and commissions.

11.13 Expiration of Offer. This offer by Buyer will expire on July 31, 2014 unless a copy of
this Contract executed by Seller is received by Buyer on or before 4:00 p.m. on July 31,2014.

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

166



2014-07-17 17:07 Wells Fargo Bank, NA

Executed by Seller on the
_ day of ,2014

Executed by Buycr on the
l::j.~ day of ::r.J'r ,2014

Trl.County Contract 7.17.14

817 807 4208 »

SELLER:

TRI-COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH

By;----------
Its; _

BUYER:

CHRISTOPHER LEE

P 13/18

167



2014-07-17 17:07 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 14/18

TITLE COMPANY RECEIPT

The undersigned, Allegiance Title Company, referred to in the foregoing Contract as the
Title Company, hereby acknowledges receipt of a fully executed copy (or executed counterparts)
of the foregoing Contract and accepts the obligations of the Title Company as set 10rth therein.
The Title Company hereby agrees to perform all of its obligations and requirements in
accordance with the tenus and provisions of the Contract.

TITLE COMPANY:

ALLEGIANCE TITLE COMPANY

By: -,- _

Traci R. Miller, Escrow Officer

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

168



2014-07-17 17:08 Wells Fargo Bank, NA

I
ADDRESS;
406-B N. Washington Ave.
Cleveland, Texas 77327

817 807 4208 »

EXHIBIT A

P 15/18

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:
EDWARDS, BLOCK 7, LOT 9-12, ACRES .2842

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

169



2014-07-17 17:08 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 »

EXHIBITB

P 16/18

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF LIBERTY §
COUNTY OF TARRANT §

GENERAL WARRANTY DEED

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

That Tri-County Mental Health, (,'Grantor"), for and in consideration of the Sum of ten and
no/l 00 dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable consideration to Grantor paid by Christopher
Lee ("Grantee"), whose address is 9 Leighton Ct., Mansfield, Texas 76063, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, has GRANTED, SOLD AND CONVEYED, and by
thcsc presents docs GRANT, SELL AND CONVEY, unto Christopher Lee all of the real property in
Bell and Tarrant County, Texas, described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof,
together with all improvements attached thcrcto (collcctively, thc "Propcrty"), subject to the items in
Exhibit "B" attached hereto and made a part hereof.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the Property, together with all and singular the rights and
appurtenanccs thereto in anywise bclonging unto Grantee and Grantee's successors and assigns
forever; and Grantor docs hereby bind Grantor and Grantor's successors and assigns to WARRANT
AND FOREVER DEFEND all and singular the Pl'operty unto Grantee and Gl'alltee's successors and
assigns. against every person whomsoever lawfully claiming or to claim the same or any part thcrcof.

Grantee hcrcby assumes the payment of all ad valorem taxes and assessments and all special
assessments of whatevcr kind and charactcr affecting thc Propcrty and other items conveycd
hereunder, and Grantee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Gmntor from any and all claims and
liabi Iities for the payment thereof.

Executed and effcctive as of the __ day of •20 I4

GRANTOR: Tri-County Mcntall-lcalth

By: _

Its:-------------
STATEOFTEXAS §

COUNTYOF __
§
§

TIlis instrument was acknowledged before me this __ day of -', 2014, by

Notary Public in and for the State ofTexas
T,I.County Contract 7,17,14

170



2014-07-17 17:09 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 » P 17/18

EXHIBITC

SURVEYOR'S CERTTFICAnON

The certification for the Properly description and the map or plat should be addressed to
Buyer and to the Title Company, signed by the surveyor, bearing current date, registration
number, and seal and should be in the following form or its substantial equivalent:

TIle undersigncd hcrcby certifies to Buyer and to the Title Company that this survcy
(i) was made on the ground as pcr the field notes shown hereon and correctly shows the
boundary lines and dimensions and area of the land indicated hereon and each individual
parcel thereof indicated hereon, (ii) correctly shows the location of all buildings,
structures, and other improvements, and visible items on the Property, (iii) correctly
shows the location and dimensions of all alleys, streets, roads, rights-of-way, easements,
and other matters of record of which the undersigned has been advised affecting the
Property according to the legal description in such easements and other matters (with
instrument, book, and page number indicated); and except as shown, there are no visible
casements, rights-01~way, party walls, or conflicts, and there arc no visible
encroachments on adjoining premises, streets, or alleys by any of said buildings,
structures, or other improvements, and there are no visible encroachments on the Property
by buildings, structures, or other improvements situated on adjoining premises; and the
distance from the nearest intersecting street and road is as shown hereon, (iv) correctly
states that the Property is located within a flood plain or flood prone arca, (v) correctly
shows the location and dimensions of all creeks, streams, lakes, ponds and rivers, and (vi)
correctly sets forth the total number of gross square feet of surface area within the
perimeter boundaries of the Property.

Trl-County Contract 7.17.14

171



2014-07-17 17:10 Wells Fargo Bank, NA 817 807 4208 »

EXHJBITD

P 18/18

NON-FOREIGN CERTIFICATION

Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, provides that a
transferee of a U.S. real property interest must withhold tax if the transferor is a foreign person.
To infonn Christopher Lee, the transferee, that withholding of tax is not required upon the
disposition of a U.S. real property interest by Tri-County Mental Health ("Transferor"), the
undersigned hereby certifies the following:

(1) Transferor is not a foreign corporation, foreign trust, foreign estate or
foreign person (as those terms are defined in the Internal Revenue Code and Income Tax
Regulations);

(2) Transferor's U.S. employer identification number is as follows:

(3) Transferor's office address is as follows:

Attn: _

Transferor understands that this certit1cation may be disclosed to the Internal Revenue
Service by the transferee and that any false statement contained herein could be punished by fine,
imprisonment, or both.

Under penalties ofperjury, I declare that I have examined this celtification and to the best
of my knowledge and belief it is true, correct and complete, and I further declare that I have
authority to sign this document.

Date: ,2014

By:

Its:

STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF §

This instrument was acknowledged before me this _ day of , 2014, by

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

My Commission Expires:
Printed Name ofNotary

Trl·County Contract 7.17.14

172



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve Recommendation for Tri-County Services 
Employee Health Insurance and Ancillary Plans 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
Tri-County Services currently has employee health insurance coverage through Aetna (we 
offer a structure of four plan types) that will expire on September 30, 2014.  In May 2014, 
Gene Darnell of Benefit Solutions, exclusive agent for Tri-County Services, requested quotes 
for the FY 2015 employee health insurance coverage and provided fully funded plans to the 
Management Team for review.  Aetna provided a quote for continuation of coverage on the 
four plans with a 3% increase over our FY 2014 premiums.  The benefits for each plan did 
not change.  Physicians and hospitals are all contracted through Aetna and there are 
sufficient doctors in all counties.   
 

While Humana provided a quote that is only a 2% increase over our FY 2014 premiums, 
Humana’s plan offerings are not “apples to apples” in comparing to our current plans.  As 
well, the Humana plans do not include the preventive drug rider provided by Aetna for the 
high deductible plans.  We did receive quotes from Blue Cross Blue Shield and United 
Healthcare, but these plans were not considered due to increased cost over our current 
Aetna premiums.  The Management Team is recommending Tri-County Services stay with 
Aetna at the 3% increase to premiums due to the convenience (for staff) of not having to 
switch plans and due to the preventive drug coverage Aetna offers.  The plan options 
provided for employees are described below.   
 

Aetna HSA 3000 Savings Plus Plans: 
The HSA Savings Plus Plan Level I has a $3,000/$6,000 deductible and pays benefits at 
90% once the deductible is met, if employees see a physician or hospital in the Level I 
Network.  The Level 2 plan will pay 70% if the employee chooses to go to the OAMC 
Network.  In an emergency, expenses will be paid at the Level 1 rate if taken to a Level 2 
facility.  Employees will pay 100% for other medical services and prescriptions until their 
deductible is met.  The cost of this plan is $373.57 per month for employee only coverage.  
Tri-County will pay $360.29 per month.  Therefore, the cost to the employee for employee 
only coverage is $13.28 per month; employee and spouse is $454.77; employee and 
children is $413.51 and employee and family is $855.01.   
 

Aetna HSA Middle Plan (C-15): 
The HSA Middle Plan has a $1,500/$3,000 deductible and includes the preventive 
prescription rider with a co-pay of $15/35/50 for prescriptions for certain medical conditions 
including asthma, diabetes, high blood pressure, and cholesterol.  The prescription rider 
allows employees to pay co-pay amounts for certain drugs without having to first meet the 
deductible. This plan will pay 80% of all medical once the deductible is met, for services 
within the Level I Network.  Employees are responsible for co-pays for prescription 
medications after the deductible is met.  The cost for this plan is $589.97 for employee only 
coverage.  Tri-County will pay $360.29.  Therefore, the employee only cost is $229.68 per 
month.  The cost to the employee for employee and spouse is $833.53; employee and 
children is $777.07, and employee and family is $1,377.30.   
 

173



Aetna Savings Plus 1500 PPO: 
The Level 1 option has a $1,500/$4,500 deductible and the Level 2 option has a 
$3,000/$9,000 deductible.  Level 1 pays at 80%, Level 2 pays at 60%.  Office visits are $30 
when seeing a Level 1 provider and the same in Level 2.  However, Specialty Doctor office 
visits are $50 for Level 1 providers and $70 for Level 2 providers.  In an emergency, 
expenses will be paid at the Level 1 rate if taken to a Level 2 facility. Level 1 and 2 
expenses accumulate separately.  Employees must choose from the beginning whether they 
are going to utilize Level 1 or Level 2 providers in order to maximize their benefit.  
Prescriptions co-pays are $10/40/70/30%.  The cost of this plan is $473.77.  Tri-County will 
pay $360.29 toward the employee only cost.  The cost for employee only coverage is 
$113.48 per month.  The cost to the employee for employee and spouse is $673.38; 
employee and children is $621.06 and employee and family is $1,180.97. 
 
Aetna PPO Buy Up (OMAC PPO): 
This option offers a $2,500/$7,500 deductible with a 70%/30% coinsurance, $50 PCP and 
$60 Specialist office co-pay.  Prescription co-pays are available at $20/40/70 after a $200 
deductible.  The cost of this plan is $642.99.  Tri-County will pay $360.29 toward the 
employee only cost.  The cost for employee only coverage is $282.70 per month.  The cost 
to the employee for employee and spouse is $912.25; employee and children is $853.40 
and employee and family is $1,482.94.  
 
Ancillary Plans 
Tri-County Services pays for Basic Life/Accidental Death and Dismemberment (AD&D) and 
Long Term Disability (LTD) coverage for all full time employees.  Coverage is currently 
provided through Metlife.  The renewal for Basic Life/AD&D coverage received a rate pass – 
with no increase to our current premiums; however, the LTD renewal quote showed an 
increase of 21% to $66,441 which is an annual increase of $11,347.  Quotes were also 
received from Lincoln Financial and Guardian.  Lincoln Financial has quoted almost equal 
coverage at lower premiums and provided a quote good for two years.  Basic Life/AD&D is 
quoted at 6.3% less and LTD is quoted at 8.5% less than our current FY 2014 premiums 
through Metlife.  The Management Team recommends that we switch to Lincoln Financial 
for these employer paid plans, realizing a $7,166 savings from premiums paid in FY 2014.   
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Tri-County Services Employee Health Insurance Spreadsheet – FY 2015 
 
Tri-County Services Basic Life Spreadsheet – FY 2015 
 
Tri-County Services Employer Paid LTD Spreadsheet – FY 2015 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve Recommendation for Tri-County Services FY 2015 Employee Health 
Insurance, Basic Life/Accidental Death & Dismemberment and Long Term 
Disability Plans  
 

 

174



SP HSA 3000                        

(In Network Only)

HSA C15                         

(In Network Only)

SP 1500 80/60/50                          

(In Network Only)

PPO Buy Up Plan                       

(In Network Only)

HSA 3000                                    

(In Network Only)

PPO 3000                                  

(In Network Only)

PPO Buy Up Plan                                     

(In Network Only)

Savings Plus/OAMC OAMC Savings Plus/OAMC OAMC

Embedded Aggregate PPO PPO Embedded PPO PPO

Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. $30/$30 Co-pay $50 Co-pay Ded. & Coins. $40 Co-pay $30 Co-pay

Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. $50/$70 Co-pay $60 Co-pay Ded. & Coins. $55 Co-pay $45 Co-pay

Covered 100% Covered 100% Covered 100% Covered 100% Covered 100% Covered 100% Covered 100%

$3,000/$3,000 $1,500 $1,500/$3,000 $2,500 $3,000 $3,000 $1,500

$6,000/$6,000 $3,000 $4,500/$9,000 $7,500 $6,000 $6,000 $3,000

90%/70% 80% 80%/60% 70% 80% 80% 80%

Co-pays & rx apply to the 

OOP

Co-pays & rx apply to 

the OOP

Co-pays & rx apply to the 

OOP Co-pays & rx apply to the OOP

$4,000/$6,000 $2,500 $5,000/$6,350 $6,000 $6,000 $6,250 $6,250

$8,000/$12,000 $5,000 $10,000/$12,700 $12,000 $12,000 $12,500 $12,500

Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited

Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins.

covered with OV if part of 

OV and billed by 

physician

covered with OV if part 

of OV and billed by 

physician Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins.

Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins.

Ded. & Coins. Ded. & Coins. $75 Co-pay $50 Co-pay Ded. & Coins. $75 Co-pay $75 Co-pay

Ded. & 10% Ded. & Coins. $200 Co-pay +20% $150 Co-pay +30% Ded. & Coins. $250 Co-pay +0% $250 Co-pay +0%

after deductible        

$10/$40/$70/30%

after deductible        

$15/$35/$50 $10/$40/$70/30%

$200/$600 deductible* 

$20/$40/$70 Ded. & Coins. $10/$40/$70/25% $10/$40/$70/25%

None $15/$35/$50 N/A N/A None N/A N/A

Employee Only 129 5 50 3 $373.57 $589.97 $473.77 $642.99 $382.58 $463.44 $532.69

Employee/Spouse 2 1 4 0 $815.06 $1,193.82 $1,033.67 $1,272.54 $793.59 $961.31 $1,104.97

Employee/Children 4 0 3 0 $773.80 $1,137.36 $981.35 $1,213.69 $755.14 $914.74 $1,051.43

Employee/Family 1 0 2 0 $1,215.30 $1,737.59 $1,541.26 $1,843.23 $1,165.49 $1,411.82 $1,622.80

136 6 59 3 $54,131 $4,144 $33,850 $1,929 $55,126 $32,585 $5,366

$649,574 $49,724 $406,197 $23,148 $661,513 $391,021 $64,398

$ Change from the current $32,514 $20,803

% Change from the current 3% 2%

Annual Total/Plan

Combined Annual Total 204 $1,128,642 $1,116,932

SP 1500 80/60/50    PPO Buy Up Plan 

HSA 3000 (includes 

current SP HSA enrollees)  

PPO 3000    (includes 

current SP PPO enrollees)       

PPO Buy Up Plan  (includes 

current C15 & PPO Buy Up 

enrollees)  

Monthly Total/Plan

Prescriptions

Preventative Medications Rider

Monthly Total Rate SP HSA 3000  HSA C15

Family OOP- In-Network (includes deductible)

Lifetime Maximum

DiagnosticLab & Xrays
In/Outpatient Hospital Services
Urgent Care

Emergency Room

Individual OOP-In-Network (includes deductible)

Plan Name

Plan Network National POS-Open Access

Bennefit Details

Office Visit

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  S

P
 H

SA
 3

0
0

0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

H
SA

 C
1

5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

SP
 1

5
0

0

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  B

U
Y

 U
P

 P
P

O

Specialty Doctor Visit

Preventative Care

Individual Deductible In-Network (includes deductible)

Family Deductible-In-Network

Coninsurance

Calendar Year of Maximums

Tri-County Services  Health Insurance                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    Effective 
Date October 1, 2014

Benefits Renewal Aetna Quote Humana
Network Name Aetna Humana

175



% Annual Change from the current 0% (-6.3%) 0%

Annual Premium $40,021 $37,519 $40,021 

$ Annual Change from the current $0 -$2501 $0

AD&D Rate $1,000 $0.016 $0.020 $0.016

Monthly Premium $3,335 $3,127 $3,335

Total Basic EE Life & AD&D Volume $26,055,150 $26,055,150 $26,055,150

Life Rate per $1,000 $0.112 $0.100 $0.112

Reduction Schedule
By 35% at 65                                                                 

50% at 70

By 35% at 65                                                                 

add'l  15% at 70

By 35% at 65                                                                 

50% at 70

Rate Guarantee 1 year 2 years 2 years

Portability Not Included Not Included Not Included

Accelerated Benefit Option 80% 75% 50%

Waiver of Premium Definition Applies Applies Applies

Waiver of Premium Benefit Benefit will continue until age 65 Benefit will continue until age 65 Benefit will continue until age 65

AD&D Benefit 100% of Basic Life Benefit 100% of Basic Life Benefit 100% of Basic Life Benefit

Guarantee Issue 2x Salary + $5,000 up to $300,000 2x Salary + $5,000 up to $300,000 2x Salary  up to $300,000

Eligibility Definition All Full Time Employees All Full Time Employees All Full Time Employees

Life Benefit 2x Salary + $5,000 up to $300,000 2x Salary + $5,000 up to $300,000 2x Salary  up to $300,000

Plan Type Basic Term Life Basic Term Life Basic Term Life

Tri-County Services Basic Life Insurance  (Center Paid)                                                                                                                
Effective Date October 1, 2014

Benefits Renewal Metlife Quote Lincoln Financial Quote Guardian

176



% Annual Change from Current 21% (-8.5%) (-1.6%)

ANNUAL COST $66,441 $50,429 $54,211

$ Annual Change from Current $11,347 -$4,665 -$883

Rate per $100 of Payroll $0.437 $0.40 $0.43

MONTHLY COST $5,537 $4,202 $4,518

Rate Guarantee 1 Year 2 Years 2 Years

Monthly Covered Payroll $1,050,609 $1,050,609 $1,050,609

Zero day Residual YES YES YES

Pre Existing Condition 3/12 3/12 3/12

Elimination Period 90 Days 90 Days 90 Days

Definition of Disability (during OOP)
Own Occupation Period-2 years        

Loss of duties & earnings (80%)

Own Occupation Period-2 years                      

Loss of duties & earnings (99%)                             

Loss of Duties Only during EP

Own Occupation Period-2 years        

Loss of duties & earnings (80%)

Maximum Monthly Benefit $10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Benefit Duration SSNRA SSNRA SSNRA

Eligibility Definition All Full Time Employees All Full Time Employees All Full Time Employees

Monthly Benefit Amount 66  2/3 % of Predisability Earnings 66  2/3 % of Predisability Earnings 60 % of Predisability Earnings

Plan Type Long Term Disability Long Term Disability Long Term Disability

Tri-County Services Long Term Disability   (Center Paid)                                                                                                                                                                   
Effective Date October 1, 2014

Benefits Renewal Metlife Quote Lincoln Financial Quote Guardian

177



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Ratify 9th Payment of Non-Refundable Option 
Money to the Property Owner for the Independence Oaks Project 
Site in Cleveland, Texas 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 
 
 

July 24, 2014 

Background Information: 
 

As you may remember, Evan Roberson signed the Second Amendment to Option and 
Purchase Agreement for the property in Cleveland which allows the Board to approve 
extension payments until the close of the transaction, but no later than September 30, 
2014.  
 
Following receipt of the Firm Commitment for Independence Oaks Apartments on March 
31st, staff were working with Beth Hoff, our consultant with Gagnier, Hicks Associates, LLC, 
and David Deaton of Jackson Walker to process the documents needed for initial closing.   
 
Since the last update, we were able to finalize the contract with Auto Zone to establish use 
of the drainage easement and complete the land survey process.  Cook Construction and 
LZT Architects are currently working with The City of Cleveland to finalize building permits 
and make needed revisions to the blueprints based upon the City’s Code requirements. 
 
We were hoping to be able to close with HUD prior to June 30th when the 9th payment of 
Non-Refundable Option Money to the Property Owner for the Independence Oaks Project 
Site was due; however, with the allotted timelines built into the response processes for both 
the City of Cleveland and HUD, an extension of the Firm Commitment was granted on June 
20th until July 29th and subsequently an additional payment was required for the project 
site. 
 
With the approval by Board Chair, David Walker, the 9th payment of Non-Refundable Option 
Money to the Property Owner for the Independence Oaks Project Site was made on June 
27, 2014.  
 
As you may recall, Houston Endowment granted an initial extension to the $200,000 award 
through July 2014 and, along with the extension of the Firm Commitment, has agreed to 
extend the award until September 2014.  
 
The Cleveland Supported Housing, Inc. Board met via phone conference on June 9th to 
discuss the project status and prepare for initial closing in the next several weeks.  Once 
initial closing commences, the Board meetings will increase in frequency as we move into 
the construction phase. 
 

Supporting Documentation: 
 

None 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

Ratify 9th Payment of Non-Refundable Option Money to the Property Owner for 
the Independence Oaks Project Site in Cleveland, Texas 
 

178



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve Assignment of the Intermediate Care 
Facilities for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities Contract for 
FY 2014 from Empowerment Options, Inc. to Educare Community 
Living Corporation-Gulf Coast  
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
 

July 24, 2014 

Background Information: 

 

Tri-County holds the license for 8, 6-bed Intermediate Care Facilities for Individuals with 
Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID).  Empowerment Options, Inc. has managed these homes 
under contract with Tri-County since September 1, 1994.   
 
The owner of Empowerment Options, Inc., Genelle Edwards, notified Tri-County of her plan 
to sell her business (which includes Home and Community-based Services, Texas Home 
Living and ICF/IID Services in Greater Houston and Austin) to Educare Community Living 
Corporation-Gulf Coast on July 1, 2014.  As you will see in Ms. Edwards’ letter (attached), 
she states, “A significant consideration in making that decision was finding a company that 
had the potential of continuing the [Tri-County] contract as seamlessly as possible.” 
 
Educare’s parent company, Rescare, provides services to persons with disabilities around 
the nation and has approximately 48,000 employees nationwide.   
 
Tri-County staff have been in contract negotiations with Empowerment Options for FY 2015 
when we were notified of Ms. Edwards’ intent to sell.  Due to the short timeline for contract 
renewal, the FY 2015 contract was forwarded to Educare for review and consideration.  This 
contract item will be on the agenda for approval at the August Board meeting. 
 
The agreement to assign the contract to Educare was reviewed by Jackson Walker.  They 
have asked for Ms. Edwards to provide evidence that her liability insurance was an 
occurrence policy and that we would have liability coverage on their policy for anything that 
occurred while Empowerment Options was managing the homes.  She will provide 
documentation of this coverage prior to the Board meeting.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 

Notification Letter of Intent to Sell from Genelle Edwards 
 
Agreement to Assign the Contract from Empowerment Options, Inc. to Educare Community 
Living Corporation-Gulf Coast 
 
Evidence of Liability Coverage (Available for Review at the Board Meeting) 
 

Recommended Action: 

 

Approve Assignment of the ICF/IID Contract for FY 2014 from Empowerment 
Options, Inc. to Educare Community Living Corporation-Gulf Coast  
 

179



CENTRAL OFFICE:  P.O. Box 26188  Austin, Texas 78755  (800) 867-0047  FAX (512) 338-1555 

CONROE AREA OFFICE:  P.O. Box 1710  Conroe, Texas 77305  (877) 301-7571  FAX (936) 756-6351 

HOUSTON AREA OFFICE: 3727 Greenbriar Dr, # 100  Stafford, TX 77477  (800) 324-2689  
 

       EMPOWERMENT OPTIONS 

         Empowerment Options, 

Inc. 
 

       Community Living Alternatives 
       “Our Mission – Your Right” 

 
 
 
 

 
 
7/1/14 
 
Evan Roberson 
Executive Director 
Tri-County Services 
 
Dear Evan, 
 
I have come to that point in my life when I need to slow down.  I need 
to be able to be available for grandchildren, if they should happen.  
Also, I want to work personally on my faith based mission efforts 
which have increased significantly over the years. 
 
Due to the factors listed above, I have decided to sell. A significant 
consideration in making that decision was finding a company that had 
the potential of continuing the Tri-C contract as seamlessly as 
possible.  
 
I have decided to sell to Educare.  They are already established in all 
the markets I currently provide services.  They are large enough to 
better absorb the ACA requirements.  They are established in  
ICF-ID services.    They have more experience with managed care 
than most companies. 
 
The reality of my situation is that I would need to address the cost of 
the ACA with you for the Tri-C homes.  Tri-C homes account for 1/3 
of my labor cost company wide while producing approximately 20% of 
my revenue.   I know that Educare is willing to continue the contract 

 

180



CENTRAL OFFICE:  P.O. Box 26188  Austin, Texas 78755  (800) 867-0047  FAX (512) 338-1555 

CONROE AREA OFFICE:  P.O. Box 1710  Conroe, Texas 77305  (877) 301-7571  FAX (936) 756-6351 

HOUSTON AREA OFFICE: 3727 Greenbriar Dr, # 100  Stafford, TX 77477  (800) 324-2689  
 

at the current funding level.  Educare is also willing to hire the 
majority of the existing staff which would greatly reduce the challenge 
of transition.  Day Hab services would continue in the current 
location. 
 
I want you to be assured that I have given serious consideration to 
the Tri-C contract in my negotiations.  My true intent was to be able to 
offer you a viable service provider that would continue the systems 
and relationships that have been established. 
 
I can not express adequately the appreciation I feel for our 
relationship over the years and the opportunity to serve the people 
living in the Tri-County homes.  Our relationship has been an 
example of the public and private sectors working successfully 
together.  I know that the same relationship can continue with 
Educare. 
 
 
Sincerely and respectfully, 
 
Genelle Edwards 
CEO 
Empowerment Options 
 

181



1 
 

ASSIGNMENT, ACCEPTANCE AND CONSENT 

(Tri-County Services) 

 

 This Assignment, Acceptance and Consent (the “Assignment”) is dated and effective as 

of August 1, 2014. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

1) Assignment.  For value received, EMPOWERMENT OPTIONS, INC., a Texas corporation 

(“Assignor”) does hereby assign, set over, transfer and convey to EDUCARE 

COMMUNITY LIVING CORPORATION – GULF COAST, a Texas corporation 

(“Assignee”), all right, title and interest Assignor has in, to, or arising under (a) that certain 

Contract for ICF/MR Residential Services between Assignor and TRI-COUNTY MENTAL 

HEALTH MENTAL RETARDATION SERVICES, d.b.a. Tri-County Services, a Local 

Mental Retardation Authority under the provisions of Chapter 534 of the Texas Health & 

Safety Code Annotated, as amended (the “Authority”), dated  as of ______________, 2013 

(the “Services Contract”) and (b) that certain Tri-County Mental Health Mental Retardation 

Services Lease Agreement between Assignor and the Authority, dated as of _____________, 

2013 (the “Lease,” and together with the Services Contract, collectively, the “Contracts”), 

and represents and warrants to Assignee that Assignor has full right and power to make this 

assignment, subject solely to the consent of the Authority.   

 

2) Acceptance.  For value received, Assignee does hereby accept the assignment specified in 

Paragraph 1 hereof and assumes and agrees with Assignor and the Authority to perform 

faithfully each and every term, covenant and condition of the Contracts on the part of 

Assignor therein to be performed from and after the date hereof.   

 

3) Consent.  For value received, the Authority does hereby (i) consent to the assignment 

specified in Paragraph 1 hereof, and (ii) acknowledges and agrees with Assignor and 

Assignee as follows: 

 

a) The Authority releases Assignee from any claims, judgments, liabilities or expenses in 

any way attributable to any obligations or default by Assignor under the Contracts or any 

act of omission of Assignor under the Contracts for the period prior to the date hereof;  

 

b) The Authority releases Assignor from any claims, judgments, liabilities or expenses in 

any way attributable to any obligations or default by Assignee under the Contracts or any 

act of omission of Assignee under the Contracts for the period from and after the date 

hereof; and  

 

182



2 
 

c) All notices delivered or required to be delivered under the Contracts to Assignee shall be 

given as follows: 

 

    EduCare Community Living Corporation – Gulf Coast  

    c/o Troy L. Robb  

    Operations Officer 

    Res-Care, Inc.  

9901 Linn Station Road 

Louisville, Kentucky 40223 

    Phone: (502) 394-2376 

  Fax: (502) _______ 

 

Copy to:   Steven S. Reed 

Chief Legal Officer  

Res-Care, Inc. 

9901 Linn Station Road 

Louisville, Kentucky 40223 

Phone: (502) 394-2399 

Fax: (502) 394-2285 

 

4)  Counterparts; Facsimile or PDF Delivery.  This Assignment may be executed in one or 

more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall 

constitute one and the same document.  The parties agree that the delivery of this Assignment 

by facsimile or emailed .PDF files of scanned copies bearing their respective signatures shall 

be sufficient and binding upon them as if such document were delivered with original 

signatures. 

 

[remainder of this page is intentionally blank – signatures appear on the next page] 

 

 

183



3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Assignment as of the day and year 

first above written. 

 

    ASSIGNOR: EMPOWERMENT OPTIONS, INC. 

      a Texas corporation 

 

      By:_____________________________________ 

      Its:_____________________________________ 

 

 

    ASSIGNEE: EDUCARE COMMUNITY LIVING   

      CORPORATION – GULF COAST, a Texas  

      corporation 

 

      By:_____________________________________ 

      Its:_____________________________________ 

 

 

    AUTHORITY: TRI-COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH MENTAL  

      RETARDATION SERVICES, d.b.a. Tri-County  

      Services 

 

      By:_____________________________________ 

      Its:_____________________________________ 

 

184



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Ratify DSHS Contract Amendment #2014-044767-
004A: Supportive Housing Project 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
Attached is a revision to the Supported Housing Contract, #2014-044767-004A.  This 
contract lowers our target from 16 to 13 and reduces our funding by $9,952 which was 
previously decided by DSHS and discussed at the March Board meeting.   There are no 
other changes to the contract.   
 
This contract revision was received one week after the May Board meeting and needed to 
be returned to DSHS prior to the July Board meeting.  
 
Evan Roberson visited with Mr. Walker about the contract and he authorized approval of the 
contract change pending ratification at the July Board meeting.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
DSHS Contract Amendment #2014-044767-004A: Supportive Housing Project 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Ratify the DSHS Contract Amendment #2014-044767-004A: Supportive Housing 
Project 
 

 

185



Page - 1 of 2  

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES 

  
Amendment  

 

_______________________________________________________ 

 

The Department of State Health Services (DSHS) and TRI-COUNTY MHMR SERVICES (Contractor) agree to 

amend the Program Attachment # 004 (Program Attachment) to Contract # 2014-044767   (Contract) in 

accordance with this Amendment No. 004A:  Supportive Housing Project, effective 05/14/2014. 

 

The purpose of this Amendment is to revise target numbers and funding. 

 

 
Therefore, DSHS and Contractor agree as follows: 
 
 

SECTION I.  STATEMENT OF WORK, B. Program Design, Item 12, 1a, is revised to read as follows: 

 

1. Meet the following established service targets and expenditure benchmarks: 

a. Service Targets 

(1) FY14 Service Target –Short Term: 1 

(2) FY14 Service Target – Long Term: 16  13  

 

 

SECTION VII.  BUDGET: is revised to read as follows: 

 

Source of Funds:  State 

 

Total payments will not exceed $176,161.00 $166,209.00 
 

 

 
 

 
 

186



AII other terms and conditions not hereby amended are to remain in full force and effect. In the event of a
conflict between the terms of the Contract and the terms of this Amendment, this Amendment shall control.

Department of State Health Services

Signature of Auth

Date:

David L. Lakey, M.D.

Commissioner

1100 WEST 49TH STREET
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78756

512.458.7375

david.lakey@dshs.state.tx.lIs

Contractor

Signature of Authorized Official

Date: --,,6'---f- -· _
~I

Name: Evan Roberson

Title: Executive Director

Address: PO Box 3067

Conroe, TX 77305

Phone: 936-521-6119

Email: EvanR@tricountyservices.org

Page - 2 of2

187



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Ratify DSHS Contract Amendment #2014-044767-
006A: Psychiatric Emergency Service Center and Associated 
Projects 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 
 
 

July 24, 2014 

Background Information: 

 
Attached is a revision to our Psychiatric Emergency Service Center and Associated Projects 
contract, #2014-044767-006A.  This contract revision is related to the Rapid Stabilization 
beds (hospital inpatient) portion of the contract.  The contract increased our target from 38 
to 40 and increases our funding by $100,000.  There are no other changes which effect 
contract administration. 
 
This contract revision was received one week after the May Board meeting and needed to 
be returned to DSHS prior to the July Board meeting.  
 
Evan Roberson visited with Mr. Walker about the contract and he authorized approval of the 
contract change pending ratification at the July Board meeting.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
DSHS Contract Amendment #2014-044767-0046: PESC 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Ratify the DSHS Contract Amendment #2014-044767-006A: PESC 
 

 

188



Page - 1 of 2  

DEPARTMENT OF STATE HEALTH SERVICES 

  
Amendment  

To 

_______________________________________________________ 

 

The Department of State Health Services (DSHS) and TRI-COUNTY MHMR SERVICES_ (Contractor) agree 

to amend the Program Attachment # _006_ (Program Attachment) to Contract # _2014-044767_   (Contract) in 

accordance with this Amendment No. 006A :  Psychiatric Emergency Service Center and Associated Projects_, 

effective _05/01/2014_ . 

 

This Amendment is necessary for:_One-time increase of funding and SOW revision 

 
Therefore, DSHS and Contractor agree as follows:  

  
 

PROGRAM ATTACHMENT NO.006 NO.006A 

 

SECTION I.  STATEMENT OF WORK: is revised as follows 
 

a. Provide the services specified in the proposal submitted in response tothe to the  Needs and Capacity 

Assessment and specified in any subsequent service revisions approved by DSHS; 

 

e. Serve 38 40  clients per fiscal year by providing beds for rapid crisis stabilization as measured through 

the encounter data reports as defined in Section I.C.4.--- of this Program Attachment. 

 

SECTION VII. BUDGET: is revised as follows 
 

Total payments will not exceed $1,893,130.00 $1,993,130.00   

 

SECTION VIII. FUNDING: is revised as follows 
 

C. If Contractor's total allowable expenditures for the term of this Program Attachment are less than the total 

amount disbursed by DSHS in Contractor's four quarterly allocations, Contractor shall be subject to recoupment 

by DSHS of the difference between the total amount disbursed by DSHS and Contractor's total expenditures 

expenditures. 

D. Contractor is permitted, without prior DSHS approval, to make budget line item transfers of  less 

than or equal to 25% of the total contract amount among direct cost categories, other than the equipment 

category, provided that the total budget amount is unchanged. 

 

CARE Budget Instructions 
 

FundingContractor  shall be entered enter funding  into the CARE Report III on line 761, Crisis Services - 

Psychiatric Emergency Service Centers, and distributed distribute it  among the medication Sub-Strategies of 

B.2.1 - Adult Service or Strategy B.2.3 <mailto:B.@.E> Crisis, Transitional, and Intensive Ongoing Services.  
 

 

189



190



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Approve Recommendation to Declare Vehicles as 
Surplus 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
Staff has recommended that the following vehicles be declared as surplus due to the age of 
each vehicle, high mileage, increased maintenance, repair costs and safety: 
 
Vehicle Descriptions: 

 

 1992 Ford Crew Cab 
 License # 73G-CB7 
 Mileage – 169,879 

 

 2005 Chevrolet Astro Van 
 License # BG1-5505 
 Mileage – 229,548 

 
 2007 Ford Focus 

 License # CMC-6151 

 Mileage – 146,351 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
Approve Recommendation to Declare Vehicles as Surplus and Approve Sale of 
Each to the Highest Bidder  
 

 

191



 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Review Tri-County’s FY 2013 990 Tax Return 
Prepared by Scott, Singleton, Fincher & Company, P.C. 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
Scott, Singleton, Fincher & Company, P.C. has completed Tri-County’s 990 Tax Return for 
FY 2013 for review by the Board.   
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
Copy of Tri-County Services FY 2013 990 Tax Return – Mailed Separately to Board 
Members 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

192



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  3rd Quarter FY 2014 Quarterly Investment Report  
 
 
Committee:   Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

Background Information:   
 

This report is provided to the Board of Trustees of Tri-County Services in accordance with 
Board Policy on fiscal management and in compliance with Chapter 2256: Subchapter A of 
the Public Funds Investment Act. 
  

Supporting Documentation:   
 
Quarterly TexPool Investment Report 
 
Quarterly Interest Report 
 

Recommended Action:  
 
For Information Only 
 

 

193



194



195



196



BANK NAME 1st QTR. 2nd QTR.  3rd QTR. 4th QTR. YTD TOTAL 

Alliance Bank - Central Texas CD 423.87$         419.21$         428.53$                  -$               1,271.61$     

Citizens 1st Bank CD 277.28$         274.23$         280.32$                  -$               831.83$        

First Liberty National Bank 1.58$            1.60$            1.69$                     -$              4.87$            

First Liberty National Bank CD 405.13$         400.68$         409.59$                  -$               1,215.40$     

JP Morgan Chase (HBS) 1,568.46$     1,453.91$     1,080.44$              -$              4,102.81$     

Prosperity Bank 12.11$          12.09$          12.51$                   -$              36.71$          

TexPool Participants 73.49$          50.51$          48.65$                   -$              172.65$        

Tradition Bank 4,247.69$     3,922.98$     3,726.22$              -$              11,896.89$   

Total Earned 7,009.61$     6,535.22$     5,987.95$              -$              19,532.78$   

TRI-COUNTY SERVICES 
QUARTERLY INTEREST EARNED REPORT 

FISCAL YEAR 2014
AS OF May 31, 2014

INTEREST EARNED

197



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Board of Trustees’ Unit Financial Statements for 
May and June 2014 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
None 
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
May and June 2014 Board of Trustees’ Unit Financial Statements 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

198



May 14 May 14 YTD YTD
Actuals Budgeted Variance Actual Budget Variance Percent Budget

Revenues
80103998 Allocated Revenue 2,858.00$        2,858.00$        -$                25,726.00$          25,726.00$      -$                     100.00% 34,300.00$      

Total Revenue 2,858.00$        2,858.00$        -$                25,726.00$          25,726.00$      -$                     100.00% 34,300.00$      

Expenses
80105275 Food Items 208.49$           167.00$           41.49$             1,478.14$            1,499.00$        (20.86)$                98.61% 2,000.00$        
80105320 Insurance-Worker Compensation 10.05$             19.00$             (8.95)$             91.47$                 173.00$           (81.53)$                52.87% 230.00$           
80105388 Legal Fees 1,500.00$        1,500.00$        -$                13,500.00$          13,500.00$      -$                     100.00% 18,000.00$      
80155605 Postage-Express Mail 15.25$             -$                 15.25$             36.35$                 -$                36.35$                 0.00% -$                 
80105715 Supplies-Office -$                 -$                 -$                20.17$                 -$                20.17$                 0.00% -$                 
80105736 Telephone - Air cards -$                 13.00$             (13.00)$           (12.77)$               121.00$           (133.77)$              0.00% 160.00$           
80105738 Telephone - Mobile Service -$                 47.00$             (47.00)$           -$                    419.00$           (419.00)$              0.00% 560.00$           
80105750 Training -$                 300.00$           (300.00)$         675.00$               2,700.00$        (2,025.00)$           25.00% 3,600.00$        
80105755 Travel - Local 78.52$             63.00$             15.52$             551.92$               561.00$           (9.08)$                  98.38% 750.00$           
80105757 Travel - Non-local Mileage/Air -$                 350.00$           (350.00)$         1,235.79$            3,150.00$        (1,914.21)$           39.23% 4,200.00$        
80105758 Travel - Non-local Hotel 1,148.16$        300.00$           848.16$           1,862.69$            2,700.00$        (837.31)$              68.99% 3,600.00$        
80105759 Travel - Meals 49.28$             100.00$           (50.72)$           194.10$               900.00$           (705.90)$              21.57% 1,200.00$        

Total Expenses 3,009.75$        2,859.00$        150.75$           19,632.86$          25,723.00$      (6,090.14)$           76.32% 34,300.00$      

Total Revenue minus Expenses (151.75)$          (1.00)$             (150.75)$        6,093.14$           3.00$              6,090.14$           23.68% -$                

Unit Financial Statement
FY 2014

199



June 14 June 14 YTD YTD
Actuals Budgeted Variance Actual Budget Variance Percent Budget

Revenues
80103998 Allocated Revenue 2,858.00$        2,858.00$        -$                28,584.00$         28,584.00$     -$                    100.00% 34,300.00$      

Total Revenue 2,858.00$        2,858.00$        -$                28,584.00$         28,584.00$     -$                    100.00% 34,300.00$      

Expenses
80105275 Food Items -$                167.00$           (167.00)$         1,478.14$           1,666.00$       (187.86)$              88.72% 2,000.00$        
80105320 Insurance-Worker Compensation 8.22$               19.00$             (10.78)$           99.69$                192.00$          (92.31)$                51.92% 230.00$           
80105388 Legal Fees 1,500.00$        1,500.00$        -$                15,000.00$         15,000.00$     -$                    100.00% 18,000.00$      
80155605 Postage-Express Mail -$                -$                 -$                36.35$                -$                36.35$                 0.00% -$                 
80105715 Supplies-Office -$                -$                 -$                20.17$                -$                20.17$                 0.00% -$                 
80105736 Telephone - Air cards -$                13.00$             (13.00)$           (12.77)$               134.00$          (146.77)$              0.00% 160.00$           
80105738 Telephone - Mobile Service -$                47.00$             (47.00)$           -$                    466.00$          (466.00)$              0.00% 560.00$           
80105750 Training -$                300.00$           (300.00)$         675.00$              3,000.00$       (2,325.00)$           22.50% 3,600.00$        
80105755 Travel - Local -$                63.00$             (63.00)$           551.92$              624.00$          (72.08)$                88.45% 750.00$           
80105757 Travel - Non-local Mileage/Air 719.68$           350.00$           369.68$          1,955.47$           3,500.00$       (1,544.53)$           55.87% 4,200.00$        
80105758 Travel - Non-local Hotel 1,622.86$        300.00$           1,322.86$       3,485.55$           3,000.00$       485.55$               116.19% 3,600.00$        
80105759 Travel - Meals 62.27$             100.00$           (37.73)$           256.37$              1,000.00$       (743.63)$              25.64% 1,200.00$        

Total Expenses 3,913.03$        2,859.00$        1,054.03$       23,545.89$         28,582.00$     (5,036.11)$           82.38% 34,300.00$      

Total Revenue minus Expenses (1,055.03)$       (1.00)$             (1,054.03)$     5,038.11$          2.00$             5,036.11$           17.62% -$                 

Unit Financial Statement
FY 2014

200



 

 

 

 

Agenda Item:  Montgomery Supported Housing, Inc. Update 
 
 
Committee:  Business 

Board Meeting Date 

 
July 24, 2014 

 

Background Information: 

 
The Montgomery Supported Housing, Inc. Board met on June 24, 2014 and renewed the 
Directors and Officers Insurance with Travelers Insurance for the upcoming year.  
 
As you may recall, we received word in late March from Steve Colella, Senior Vice President 
of McDougal Property Management, that one of the tenants at Independence Place 
Apartments (IPA) filed a Fair Housing Equal Opportunity (FHEO) Discrimination Claim. Since 
the filing of the claim, we regret to inform you that the resident passed away from a 
medical condition.  At this time, the claim is on hold due to there being no established 
executor to the resident’s estate.  
 
Following this unfortunate news, Tri-County staff provided crisis response, counseling, and 
continued to communicate with IPA Property management and assist with coordination 
through Tri-County Services when requested by residents. 
 
In late May, a HUD HOME grant auditor made an on-site visit to ensure that the proper 
documentation and grant requirements were being met for this federally funded grant. As 
you may remember, we were awarded a HOME grant for one unit at Independence Place 
which provides rental assistance to a qualified applicant residing in the unit. Tri-County staff 
was on-site along with McDougal Property Management to assist as needed.  Upon 
completion of her review, the HUD auditor noted that everything appeared to be in order.  
No additional communication has been received to date regarding this review. 
  
On July 11th, Tri-County received word from McDougal Property Management that the 
Community Director for Independence Place, Virlene Richert, had resigned.  For the 
foreseeable future, both the Montgomery and Huntsville properties will be managed by 
Jenet Genwright, Community Director at Independence Village.  
 

Supporting Documentation: 

 
None 
 

Recommended Action: 

 
For Information Only 
 

 

201



 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS 

August 28th, 2014 – Board Meeting 
 Approve Minutes from July 24, 2014 Board Meeting 

 Approve Goals & Objectives for FY 2015 

 Community Resources Report 

 Consumer Services Report for July 2014 

 Program Updates 

 Annual Election of FY 2015 Board Officers 

 Executive Director’s Evaluation, Compensation & Contract for FY 2015 

 Nominations for the Texas Council Risk Management Fund’s Board of Trustees 

 Personnel Report for July 2014 

 Texas Council Quarterly Board Meeting Update 

 Approve July 2014 Financial Statements 

 Approve FY 2014 Year End Budget Revision 

 Approve Proposed FY 2015 Operating Budget 

 Approve FY 2014-15 DADS Contract Amendment 

 Approve the FY 2015 DSHS Performance Contract 

 Approve FY 2015 Kingwood Pines Inpatient Hospital Contract 

 Approve FY 2015 Cypress Creek Inpatient Hospital Contract  

 Approve FY 2015 Avail Solutions, Inc. Contract  

 Board of Trustees’ Unit Financial Statements for July 2014 

 Other Business Committee Issues 
 

September 25th, 2014 – Board Meeting 
 Approve Minutes from August 28, 2014 Board Meeting 

 Reappoint Mental Health Planning Network Advisory Committee Members 

 Reappoint Intellectual & Developmental Disabilities Planning Network Advisory Committee 
Members 

 Community Resources Report 

 Consumer Services Report for August 2014 

 Program Updates 

 Annual Corporate Compliance & Quality Management Report 

 1st Quarter FY 2014 Corporate Compliance Training 

 Annual Planning Network Advisory Committee Reports 

 Final FY 2014 Goals & Objectives Progress Report 

 Appoint Texas Council Representative & Alternate for FY 2015 

 Board of Trustees Reappointments & Oaths of Office 

 Board of Trustees Committee Appointments 

 Personnel Report for August 2014 

 Analysis of Board Members Attendance for FY 2014 Regular & Special Called Board Meetings 

 Review August 2014 Financial Statements 

 401(a) Account Review 

 Board of Trustees’ Unit Financial Statement for August 2014 

 Montgomery Supported Housing, Inc. Update 

 Cleveland Supported Housing, Inc. Update 

 Other Business Committee Issues 

202


	Board Meeting 7-24-2014
	Agenda
	Minutes 5-22-2014
	ED Report
	CFO Report
	Program Committee
	MCUW Award-Cover
	MCUW Award-Backup

	IDD Local Plan-Cover
	IDD Local Plan-Backup

	IDD QM Plan-Cover
	IDD QM Plan-Backup

	Community Resources Report-Cover
	Community Resources Report-Backup

	Consumer Services Report-Cover
	Consumer Services Report, May-Backup
	Consumer Services Report, June-Backup

	Program Updates-Cover
	Program Updates-Backup

	FY 2014 G&O Progress Report, Q3-Cover
	FY 2014 G&O Progress Report, Q3-Backup

	CC & QM Quarterly Report Q3, FY14-Cover
	CC & QM Quarterly Report Q3, FY14-Backup

	Corporate Compliance Training Q4, FY14-Cover
	Corporate Compliance Training Q4, FY14-Backup


	Executive Committee
	Appoint Nominating Committee for FY 2015 Board Officers-Cover
	Appoint Executive Director's Evaluation Committee-Cover
	Board of Trustees Oath of Office-Cover
	Board of Trustees Oaths of Office-Backup

	Personnel Report-Cover
	Personnel Report, May-Backup
	Personnel Report, June-Backup


	Business Committee
	Approve May Financials-Cover
	1. May 2014 FY 14 Narrative
	2. Balance Sheet TM-LM
	3. Balance by Fund
	4. Revenue & Expense - TM-YTD
	5. Revenue & Expense - YTD-Budget
	6. Revenue & Expense - TM-Budget
	7. Revenue & Expense - YTD TY-LY
	8. Revenue & Expense - Month TY-LY
	9. Revenue & Expense - TM-LM
	10. Income & Expense by Service Type
	11. Income & Expense Graph
	12. Income after Expense Graph

	Approve June Financials-Cover
	1. June 2014 FY 14 Narrative
	2. Balance Sheet TM-LM
	3. Balance by Fund
	4. Revenue & Expense - TM-YTD
	5. Revenue & Expense - YTD-Budget
	6. Revenue & Expense - TM-Budget
	7. Revenue & Expense - YTD TY-LY
	8. Revenue & Expense - Month TY-LY
	9. Revenue & Expense - TM-LM
	10. Income & Expense by Service Type
	11. Income & Expense Graph
	12. Income after Expense Graph

	Approve FY 2014 Engagement Letter-Cover
	Approve FY 2014 Engagement Letter-Backup

	Approve Purchase of Ford Focus-Cover
	Approve Purchase of Ford Focus-Backup

	Disposition of 117 N. College-Cover
	Disposition of 117 N. College-Backup

	Disposition of 406 N. Washington-Cover
	Disposition of 406 N. Washington, First Offer-Backup
	Disposition of 406 N. Washington, Second Offer-Backup

	FY 2015 Employee Health Insurance and Ancillary Plans-Cover
	FY 2015 Employee Health Insurance and Ancillary Plans-Backup

	9th Option Payment-Cover
	Approve Assignment EO to Educare-Cover
	Approve Assignment EO to Educare-Backup

	DSHS Supportive Housing Contract Amendment-Cover
	DSHS Supportive Housing Contract Amendment-Backup

	DSHS PESC Contract Amendment-Cover
	DSHS PESC Contract Amendment-Backup

	Approve Recommendation to Declare Vehicles as Surplus-Cover
	Review Tri-County's Form 990 Tax Return-Cover
	3rd Qtr, FY 2014 Investment Report-Cover
	3rd Qtr, FY 2014 Investment Report-Backup

	Board Unit Financials-Cover
	Board Unit Financials, May-Backup
	Board Unit Financials, June-Backup

	MSHI Update-Cover

	Upcoming Meetings



